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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 for the fiscaar ende
December 31, 2011

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dF JHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 for the tréim
period from to
Commission file number 0-27824
SPAR GROUP, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart
Delaware 33-0684451
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
560 White Plains Road, Suite 210, Tarrytown, New Y& 10591
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area c(@iBt) 332-4100
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(th@®fAct: Common Stock, par value $.01 per share
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405eo8#turities Act. YE&] NO

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. YEEH] NOX

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by SectkB or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve monthsf@rsuch shorter period that the Registrant wasiired to file such reports), and (2) has t
subject to such filing requirements for the past@gs. YESX NOO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélgrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledgeldfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part IIl of this Form KO-
or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant isrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer or a smaller repori
company. (See definition of “large acceleratedrfjldaccelerated filer’, and "smaller reporting cpamy” in Rule 122 of the Exchanc
Act.). (Check one):

Large Accelerated FileEd Accelerd Filer O

Non-Accelerated Filed Smalteporting companyX]

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgje Act.) YEST NO

The aggregate market value of the Common Stocke@Registrant held by naaffiliates of the Registrant on June 30, 2010, Basethe
closing price of the Common Stock as reported lyNhsdag Capital Market on such date, was appragiyn®3,700,000.

The number of shares of the Registrant's CommookStatstanding as of December 31, 2010, was 18864hares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Registrast’definitive proxy statement, which will be filedittv the Securities and Exchange Commission pursta
Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the @hour fiscal year, for our Annual Meeting of $#aolders, presently scheduled to be hel
May 27, 2011, are incorporated by reference intt Feof this Form 10-K.
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PART I

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Fort9-K (this “Annual Report”) of SPAR Group, Inc. (“&RP”, and together with it
subsidiaries, the “SPAR Group” or the “Company”)nclude “forward-looking statementsWithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securiti
Act of 1933, as amended (t"Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securiti€&xchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchangd”Aand
together with the Securities Act, the “Securitiesals”), including (without limitation) the statements conitzed in the discussions under tt
headings “Business”, “Risk Factors” and “Managemei# Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations”You can
identify forwarddooking statements in such information by the Compes use of terms such as "may", "will", "expect","intend", "believe",
"estimate”, "anticipate”, "continue" or similar words or variations or negatives of those words. Yslwould carefully consider all suc
information and the other risks and cautions noted this Annual Report and the Company's other filgs under applicable Securities Lav
(including this report, each a "SEC Report") thatauld cause the Company's actual assets, businesgital, cash flow, credit, expense
financial condition, income, liabilities, liquidity locations, marketing, operations, prospects, salstrategies, taxation or other achieveme
results, risks or condition to differ materially &m those anticipated by the Company and descritrethé information in the Company's forward-
looking statements, whether express or implied, the Company's anticipations are based upon the Camgs plans, intentions and be
estimates and (although the Company believe thenb¢oreasonable) involve known and unknown risks,aentainties and other factors the
could cause them to fail to occur or be realizedtorbe materially and adversely different from theothe Company anticipated.

Although the Company believes that its plans, intiems and estimates reflected or implied in suchni@rd-looking statements ar
reasonable, the Company cannot assure you that sptans, intentions or estimates will be achievedvitnole or in part, that the Company h:
identified all potential risks, or that the Compargan successfully avoid or mitigate such risks imele or in part. You should carefully revie
the risk factors described below (See Iltem 1Risk Factors) and any other cautionary statementstained or incorporated by reference in tr
Annual Report. All forwarclooking and other statements attributable to the@pany or persons acting on its behalf are expressalpject to anc
qualified by all such risk factors and other cautiary statements.

You should not place undue reliance on the Companyorward{ooking statements because the matters they descadle subject ti
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other predictable factors, many of which are beyond itsntrol. The Company's forward-
looking statements are based on the information mntly available to it and speak only as of the dain the cover of December 31, 2010,
other referenced date or, in the case of forwdabking statements incorporated by reference, aghef date of the SEC Report that includes st
statement. New risks and uncertainties arise froimé to time, and it is impossible for the Comparny gredict these matters or how they
arise or affect the Company. Over time, the Comparactual assets, business, capital, cash flovedit, expenses, financial condition, incorr
liabilities, liquidity, locations, marketing, opetans, prospects, sales, strategies, taxation dreotachievements, results, risks or condition v
likely differ from those expressed or implied byethlCompany's forwardeoking statements, and such difference could bgrsficant and
materially adverse to the Company and the valug/ofir investment in the Company's Common Stock.

The Company does not intend or promise, and the @amy expressly disclaims any obligation, to pubjicipdate or revise any forward-
looking statements, risk factors or other cautionastatements (in whole or in part), whether as asué of new information, future events ¢
recognition or otherwise, except as and to the exteequired by applicable law.

Item 1. Business

THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS GENERALLY

SPAR Group, Inc., (“SGRP”), and its subsidiariesgéther with SGRP, the “SPAR Group” or the “Compganys a diversifiec
international merchandising and marketing servima®pany and provides a broad array of servicesdmide to help companies improve th
sales, operating efficiency and profits at retaddtions. The Company provides its merchandisimdy @her marketing services to manufactur
distributors and retailers worldwide, primarily inass merchandisers, office supply, grocery, dregesand other chains, and independ
convenience and electronics stores. The Compasy @bvides furniture and other product assemblyices in stores, homes and offices. *
Company has supplied these project and producticesnin the United States since certain of its peedsors were formed in 1979 «
internationally since the Company acquired itst finlbernational subsidiary in Japan in May of 200hday the Company currently operates |
countries that encompass approximately 47% of aked tvorld population through operations in the tddi States, Canada, Japan, South Af
India, Romania, China, Australia and New Zealand.




Merchandising services primarily consist of regiylacheduled, special project and other productises provided at the store level,
the Company may be engaged by either the retailtrteomanufacturer. Those services may includmckmg and adding new products, remoy
spoiled or outdated products, resetting categddasthe shelf" in accordance with client or stochematics, confirming and replacing shelf t
setting new sale or promotional product displayd advertising, replenishing kiosks, providingsitore event staffing, and providing asser
services in stores, homes and offices. Other naeidiBing services include whole store or departaigrbduct sets or resets, including new ¢
openings, new product launches andtore demonstrations, special seasonal or pronaitimerchandising, focused product support and put
recalls. The Company continues to seek to expanudérchandising, assembly and marketing servigsiméss throughout the world.

An Overview of the Merchandising and Marketing Sées Industry

According to industry estimates over two billionlldes is spent annually in the United States aloneetail merchandising and market
services. The merchandising and marketing serithsstry includes manufacturers, retailers, foankbrs, and professional service merchand
companies. The Company believes that merchandasidgnarketing services add value to retailers, riaatwrers and other businesses and ent
sales by making a product more visible and mordata to consumers. These services primarily imegilacing orders, shelf maintenance, dis
placement, reconfiguring products on store shedwekreplenishing product inventory.

Historically, retailers staffed their stores as degk to provide these services to ensure, that maaturers’ inventory levels, th
advantageous display of new items on shelves, hadmtaintenance of shelf schematics and produceplant were properly merchandis
However retailers, in an effort to improve their ngias, decreased their own store personnel anctased their reliance on manufacturer
perform such services. Initially, manufactureremipted to satisfy the need for merchandising ancketiag services in retail stores by utiliz
their own sales representatives. Additionally, iteta also used their own employees to mercharttiisie stores to satisfy their own merchandi
needs. However, both the manufacturers and théemstaiscovered that using their own sales reprasiwes and employees for this purpose
expensive and inefficient.

Manufacturers and retailers have been, and SPAREelieves they will continue, outsourcing theereshandising and marketing sen
needs to third parties capable of operating ataetacost by (among other things) serving multiplanefacturers simultaneously. The Comg.
also believes that it is well positioned, as a dstmeand international merchandising and markesiegyices company, to more effectively pro
these services to retailers, manufacturers and btienesses around the world.

Another significant trend impacting the merchandisand marketing services business is the tendeficpnsumers to make prod
purchase decisions once inside the store. Accasdingerchandising and marketing services andtare product promotions have proliferated
diversified. Retailers are continually re-merchaimti and remodeling entire stores in an effort to respond éw rproduct developments ¢
changes in consumer preferences. We estimate ltkeat tactivities have increased in frequency over l#ist five years. Both retailers
manufacturers are seeking third parties to helmthreet the increased demand for these labor-ivessirvices.

In addition, the consolidation of many retailers lcaeated opportunities for third party merchamdisehen an acquired retailer's stores
converted to the look and format of the acquiriegiter. In many cases, stores are completely reteddand re-merchandised after a consolidation.

SPAR Group believes the current trend in businesstd globalization fits well with its expansion d&. As companies expand il
foreign markets they will need assistance in mardisng or marketing their products. As evidenaethie United States, retailer and manufac
sponsored merchandising and marketing programiatheexpensive and inefficient. The Company aldebes that the difficulties encountered
these programs are only exacerbated by the logisfioperating in foreign markets. This environmieas created an opportunity for the Comy
to exploit its Internet, hand-held and smart phbaged technology and business model worldwide.

The Company's Domestic and International Geograplidvisions:

In order to cultivate foreign markets and exparel@wmpany's merchandising and marketing servicsiméss outside of the United Sta
modify the necessary systems and implement itsnbasimodel worldwide, and insure a consistent ggprdoo its merchandising and marke
efforts worldwide, and even though it operates sirgle business segment (merchandising and magksérvices), the Company has divide:
world focus into two geographic areas, the Unitedte3, which is the sales territory for its Domedderchandising Services Division, ¢
international (i.e., all locations outside the United States), which taeesales territories for its International Menctizing Services Division. 7
that end, the Company also (1) provides and regailleof its locations to use its Internet basedrating,




scheduling, tracking and reporting systems (incigdianguage translations, ongoing client and fir@neports and ongoing IT support),
provides and requires all of its locations to compith the Company's financial reporting and disclie controls and procedures, (3) prov
accounting and auditing support and tracks andrtepertain financial and other information sepelsaffor those two divisions, and (4) |
management teams in its corporate offices resplenfib supporting and monitoring the managemengssanarketing and operations of each o
Company's international subsidiaries and maintgicionsistency with the Company's other subsidiavieddwide.

Each of these divisions provides merchandising @hdr marketing services primarily on behalf of @amer product manufacturers
retailers at mass merchandisers, drug store cheomsenience and grocery stores in their respettinéories. SPAR Group Ina.’clients includ
the makers and distributors of home entertainmgeneral merchandise, health and beauty care, carsgoods and food products in tt
respective territories.

SPAR Group has provided merchandising and otheketiag services in the United States since the &ion of its predecessor in 1¢
and outside the United States since it acquirefireisinternational subsidiary in Japan in May2801. Today the Company currently conduct
business through its domestic and internationakidins in 9 territories around the world (listedtire table below) that encompass approxim.
47% of the total world population.

The Company's international business in each eeyrivutside the United States is conducted thrauddreign subsidiary incorporatec
its primary territory. The primary territory (totdper with each additional territory in which it ahurcts its business), establishment date (which
include predecessors), the percentage of the Coyfspaquity ownership, and the principal office lboa for its US (domestic) subsidiaries
each of its foreign (international) subsidiarieassfollows:

Primary Territory Date SGRP Percentage Principal Office Location
(+ additional Territory’ Establishec Ownershig
United States of America 1979 100% Tarrytown, New York
United States of Americ
Japar May 2001 100% Osaka, Japa
Canadze June 200! 100% Toronto, Canad
Turkey July 2003 51%* Istanbul, Turkey
South Africa April 2004 51% Durban, South Africi
India April 2004 100%** New Delhi, India
Lithuania September 200 519p*** Siauliai, Lithuanie
Australia (+ New Zealanc April 2006 51% Melbourne, Australii
Romania July 20089 519%p**** Bucharest, Romani
China March 201C 519p***** Shanghai, Chin
* Currently not in operation while the Company expka change in this subsidiary's market fo
*x As of September 30, 2010, the Company owned 1008ti®tubsidiary

rkk The Company closed this subsidiary's operatiofunrth Quarter 201(

**xx Currently the Company owns two subsidiariegsRomania. One Subsidiary is 100% owned and tbenskesubsidiary, acquired in July
2009, is 51% ownec

*kkk Currently the Company owns two subsidiaries in @hi®ne Subsidiary is 100% owned and the secorgldiaty, acquired in March 20:
and operational in August 2010, is 51% owr

One key to the Comparg/international expansion strategy is its intesndiveloped capability to translate all of its ewmtr and futur
proprietary Internebased logistical, communications, scheduling, tregland reporting software applications into amyglaage for any market
which it operates or would like to enter. Throutje Companys IT operations currently located in the facilitissAuburn Hills, Michigan, |
provides worldwide access to the Companproprietary logistical, communications, schedylitracking and reporting software to its er
operations worldwide on a 24/7/365 basis.

Another key to the Comparg/international strategy is its policy of seekingnaterial investor in a new subsidiary in an ing&iona
location who is an experienced person or companyhé local country who is not otherwise affiliatedth the Company (each a "Lo
Investor"). The Company generally seeks to owheast 51% of a foreign subsidiary. As of the daft¢his Annual Report, the Company o
100% of the equity of its international subsidiaria Canada, India and Japan, and one of its ttesriational subsidiaries in each of China
Romania. The




Company is actively seeking another Local Investdndia. A Local Investor provides equity, creslitpport and certain services to each
international subsidiary not wholly owned by then@pany, as well as the useful local attention, perpe and relationships of an equity owner
with a strong financial stake in such subsidiasyscess. The Company provides executive managemergupport to each foreign subsidiary as
well its operational backbone (and the Companysegutures and controls) through its proprietaryrivgebased logistical, communications,
scheduling, tracking, reporting and accounting prots. (See Item 1A, Risks of Having Material Loleadestors in International Subsidiaries, page
18, below.)

Financial Information about the Company’s Domestaend International Geographic Divisions

The Company operates in the same single businggresg (e.g., merchandising and marketing servioeshoth its domestic at
international divisions, and the Company tracks amgorts certain financial information separatety €ach of those divisions, as descr
above. The Company measures the performance dbitestic and international divisions and subsiggatsing the same metrics. The prin
measurement utilized by management is operatiniif pewel, historically the key indicator of longgrm growth and profitability, as the Compan
focused on reinvesting the operating profits oteafits international subsidiaries back into dsdl markets in an effort to improve its marketrs
and continued expansion efforts. Certain financi@drmation regarding each of the Company's twoggephic divisions, which includes th
respective net revenues and operating income fdr efthe years ended December 31, 2010, and Dexre®ih 2009, and their respective long-
lived assets as of December 31, 2010, and DeceBihe2009, is provided in Note 12 to the Companymsolidated Financial Statements
Geographic Data, below.

THE COMPANY 'S BUSINESS STRATEGIES

As the marketing services industry continues toaexipboth in the United States and internationddisge retailers and manufacturers
outsourcing their merchandising and marketing servieeds to thirgarty providers. The Company believes that offerimgyketing services or
national and global basis will provide it with angpetitive advantage. Moreover, the Company belighas successful use of and contint
improvements to a sophisticated technology infumstire, including the Company's proprietary Intétesed software, is key to providing clie
with a high level of client service while maintaigi efficient, low cost operations. The Compangbjective is to become an international r
merchandising and marketing service provider byping its operating and growth strategy, as desdriielow.

Increasing the Company's Sales Effort

The Company is seeking to increase revenues bgasirg sales to its current clients, as well asbéishing longterm relationships wit
new clients, many of which currently use other rhargising companies for various reasons. The Cowniestieves its technology, fie
implementation and other competitive advantagekaNdw it to capture a larger share of this marne¢r time. However, there can be no assut
that any increased sales will be achieved.

Developing New Products

The Company is seeking to increase revenues thrthegmternal development and implementation of peaducts and services that
value to its clientstetail merchandising related activities, some ofavhhave been identified and are currently beirgie for feasibility an
market acceptance. However, there can be no assuthat any new products of value will be developedhat any such new product car
successfully marketed.

Strategic Acquisitions

The Company is seeking to acquire businesses @r émio joint ventures or other arrangements wittmpanies that offer simil
merchandising or marketing services both in theté¢hBtates and worldwide. The Company believesititaéasing its industry expertise, adc
product segments, and increasing its geographiadtinewill allow it to service its clients more effently and cost effectively. Through st
acquisitions, the Company may realize additionarapng and revenue synergies and may leveragéinexigelationships with manufacture
retailers and other businesses to create @ellisg opportunities. However, there can be na@sge that any of the acquisitions will occu
whether, if completed, the integration of the acegiibusinesses will be successful or the anticipaticiencies and crosselling opportunities wi
occur.

On December 4, 2009, the Company acquired subalgrail of the domestic merchandising service bass and customer contracts
hired certain employees of Brenner Associates lmbich also did business as National Marketing Bes/or "NMS". The NMS assets acqu
included all of the stock of its wholly owned subiaries; National Assembly Services, Inc. ("NASH),New Jersey corporation that perfo
furniture assembly services in stores,




homes and offices, and NMS Retail Services ULC (SRa Nova Scotia unlimited Liability Company that perhs merchandising services
Canada. See Note 14 to the Consolidated FinaBtagé¢éments — Acquisitions.

In March 2010, the Company established a new Canaslibsidiary, SPAR Wings & Ink Company ("SWI"). @gpril 1, 2010, SW
acquired substantially all of the business, custotnatracts, receivables, woik-progress and other assets and assumed ceraiifisp liabilities
of 2078281 Ontario Limited, an Ontario merchandjsand marketing services company doing busines#/iags & Ink (the "Seller"). At th:
closing, SWI also hired substantially all of thdl&g&s employees, which included consulting contracth¢oprincipals of the Seller. See Note 1
the Consolidated Financial Statements — Acquisstion

Leveraging and Improving on the Company's Technoicgl Strengths:

The Company believes that providing merchandisimjraarketing services in a timely, accurate antiefit manner, as well as deliver
timely, accurate and useful reports to its clieats, key components that are and will continueetaritical to the Compang’success. The Compk
has developed Internetsed logistic deployment, communications, schaduliracking and reporting systems that improveptoauctivity of it:
merchandising specialists and assembly technicems provide timely data to its clients. The Compammerchandising specialists and asse
technicians use hand-held, laptop and personal et@rpand Interactive Voice Response (“IVREthnology to report the status of each sto
client product they service. Merchandising spesigland technicians report on a variety of issueb 8s store conditions, status of client proc
(e.g. out of stocks, inventory, display placementhey may scan and process new orders for cgstanfucts.

The Company has developed a proprietary automatsar tracking system for its merchandising spestiland assembly technician:
communicate work assignment completion informatianthe Internet or other telecommunication infrasture by using, among other things,
held, laptop and personal computers, cellular tedaps, landlines or IVRs. This tracking systembéemthe Company to report hours and ¢
completion information for each work assignmentoaaily basis and provides the Company with daigtailed tracking of work completion. T
information is analyzed and displayed in a varigtyeports that can be accessed by both the Comgaahyits clients via a secure website. Tl
reports can depict the status of merchandisingeptsjin real time. This tracking technology aldovas the Company to schedule its merchand
specialists and technicians more efficiently, glyickuantify the benefits of its services to clientapidly respond to clientsieeds and rapid
implement programs.

The Company intends to continue to utilize comp(itezluding handheld computers), Internet, cellular telephone ath@motechnologies
enhance its efficiency and ability to provide réaie data to its clients, as well as, maximizesheed of communication, and logistical deployr
of its merchandising specialists and assembly fe@mns. Industry sources indicate that clients iaFeasingly relying on merchandising
marketing service providers to supply rapid, vadaleled information regarding the results of merchsingl and marketing expenditures on sales
profits. The Company (together with certain ofaffliates) has developed and owns proprietaryrheebased, handdeld and smart phone softw
technology that allows it to utilize the Internet communicate with its field management, schedtdestorespecific field operations mc
efficiently, receive information and incorporate ttlata immediately, quantify the benefits of ites&es to clients faster, respond to clienteed
quickly and implement client programs rapidly. Tempany has successfully modified and is curreutilizing certain of its software applicatic
in the operation of its international subsidiaries.

The Company believes that it can continue to impravodify and adapt its technology to support mandising and other marketi
services for additional clients and projects in theted States and in foreign markets. The Comdsy believes that its proprietary Interietsec
wireless and other software technology gives ibrapetitive advantage in the marketplace.

Improving the Company's Operating Efficiencie

The Company will continue to seek greater operatffigiencies. The Company believes that its emgstfield force and technolo
infrastructure can support additional clients aadenue in both its Domestic Merchandising Servibedsion and International Merchandisi
Services Division.

DESCRIPTIONS OF THE COMPANY 'S SERVICES

The Company currently provides a broad array ofcimemdising and marketing services to some of thddisleading companies, b¢
domestically and internationally. The Company hedieits fullline capabilities provide fully integrated solut®that distinguish the Company fr
its competitors. These capabilities include thditgbio develop plans at one centralized locatieffect chain wide execution, implement ra
coordinated responses to its clients’ needs anattrep a real time Internet enhanced basis throuthe world. The Company also believes its




international presence, industry-leading technalagntralized decision-making ability, local follewrough, ability to recruit, train and supen
merchandisers, ability to perform largeale initiatives on short notice, and strong tetaielationships provide the Company with a siigaifi
advantage over local, regional or other competitors

The Companys operations are currently divided into two divigsothe Domestic Merchandising Services Divisiod #re Internation
Merchandising Services Division. The Company's datinalivision provides merchandising and marketsegvices, furniture and other prod
assembly services, RFID services, technology sesvémd marketing research to manufacturers, distrip and retailers in the United States. T
services are primarily performed in mass merchamgjsoffice supply, grocery, drug store and othairs, and independent, convenience
electronics stores. The Company's internationdsidin, established in May 2001, currently provideailar merchandising, marketing services
in-store event staffing through subsidiaries in Jagamada, South Africa, India, Romania, China, Aalstrand New Zealand. Today the Comg
operates in 9 countries that encompass approxiynéiéb of the total world population.

The Company currently provides five principal typEsmerchandising and marketing services: synditatervices, dedicated servic
project services, assembly services and in-stoeatestaffing services.

Syndicated Service:

Syndicated services consist of regularly schedumated merchandising and marketing services peavit the retail store level for varic
manufacturers and distributors. These servicepar®rmed for multiple manufacturers and distribgtancluding, in some cases, manufactt
and distributors whose products are in the sameyatacategory. Syndicated services may includevisies such as:

. Reordering and replenishment of prodt

. Ensuring that the Company's clients' products aizéd for distribution are in stock and on the §belsales floo
Adding new products that are approved for distidoubut not yet present on the shelf or sales 1

Designing and implementing store planogram sches

Setting product category shelves in accordance ayifiroved store schemat

Ensuring that product shelf tags are in pl

Checking for overall salability of the clients' prects

Placing new product and promotional items in pranirpositions

Kiosk replenishment and maintenar

Dedicated Services

Dedicated services consist of merchandising andketiag services, generally as described above, twhie performed for a speci
retailer or manufacturer by a dedicated organimatiocluding a management team working exclusivelythat retailer or manufacturer. Th
services include many of the above activities tidain syndicated services, as well as, new stet@yss, store remodels and fixture installati
These services are primarily based on agreed-ugien and fixed management fees.

Project Services
Project services consist primarily of specificsitore services initiated by retailers and manufacsy such as new store openings,

product launches, special seasonal or promotiormatinandising, focused product support, productlleda-store product demonstrations and
store product sampling. The Company also perfortherqroject services, such as kiosk product régtenent, inventory control, new store ¢

and existing store resets, re-merchandising, refa@ohel category implementations, under annualasrdstlone project contracts or agreements.

Assembly Service:

The Company's assembly services are initiated kgilees, manufacturers or consumers, and upon stgiie Company assemk
furniture, grills, fithess equipment and many otpavducts in stores, homes and offices. The Cosmnpanforms ongoing routed coverage at r.
locations to ensure that furniture and other prodines are well displayed and maintained, anddag any new items or replacement items
required. In addition, the Company provides in-koamd ineffice assembly to customers who purchase theidymbfrom retailers, whether
store, on line or through catalog sales.

n_



In-Store Event Staffing Services:

The Company provides in-store product samplingsiassiore product demonstrations to national chairtariget markets worldwide. T
Company has also developed additional productioffsrin an effort to expand this aspect of its bess.

Other Marketing Services:
Other marketing services performed by the Compaalde:

Test Market Research - Testing promotion alternatives, new products amiekbgising campaigns, as well as packaging, pricang
location changes, at the store level.

Mystery Shopping - Calling anonymously on retail outlets (e.g. storestaurants, banks) to check on distributionigpldy of a bran
and to evaluate products, service of personnellitons of store, etc.

Data Collection - Gathering sales and other information systemiititar analysis and interpretation.

RFID — Utilizing technology to track merchandiser perforro@, product inventory at store level as well abeptrelate
merchandising and marketing applicatic

THE COMPANY 'S SALES AND M ARKETING

The Company offers global merchandising solutiamslients that have worldwide distribution. Thidoef is spearheaded out of
Company's headquarters in the United States, aedCithmpany continues to develop local markets throitlg domestic and internatiol
subsidiaries throughout the world.

The Companys marketing and sales efforts within its Domestierdhandising Services Division are structured teetig new natione
regional and local business within the United Stairecluding new sales and customers through thepg@oy's acquisitions of existing busines
The Companys domestic corporate business development tearctglits efforts toward the senior management o§pective and existing clien
Marketing and sales targets and strategies ardajec at the Company’s headquarters and commuuditatthe Companyg’ domestic sales for
for execution. The Company's sales force is locattbnwide and works from both the Company's effiand their home offices. In addition,
Company’s domestic corporate account executiveg @aimportant role in the Compasyhew business development efforts within its @éxg
manufacturer, distributor and retailer client base.

The Company's marketing and sales efforts witlsiniriternational Merchandising Services Division streictured to develop new natiol
regional and local businesses in both new andiegigtternational territories by acquiring existibgsinesses (or establishing new joint ventt
and within the Company's existing internationatiteries through targeted sales efforts. The Camgd@as an international acquisition team wi
primary focus is to seek out and develop acquisstithroughout the world and consists of personoedted in the United States, Greece
Australia and other support from the Company'srinfation technology, field operation, client sergi@nd finance specialists. Marketing and ¢
targets and strategies are developed within amnati®nal subsidiary, in consultation with the Camp's U.S. headquarters, with assistance
the applicable Local Investor, and are communicatedhe Company's applicable international salesefofor execution. The Compar
international sales force for a particular tergtis located throughout that territory and worknfrethe Company's office in that territory and t
home offices. In addition, the Company's intewrsdl corporate account executives play an importatg in the Company's new busin
development efforts within the Company's existirgnufacturer, distributor and retailer client basehin their respective territories.

As part of the retailer consolidation, retailers aentralizing most administrative functions, irthg operations, procurement and cate
management. In response to this centralizationthadgrowing importance of large retailers, many uiacturers have reorganized their sel
organizations around a retailer team concept thaides on a particular retailer. The Company hsporeled to this emerging trend and curre
has on-site personnel in place at select retailers.

The Companys business development process includes a duenliégperiod to determine the objectives of the geotve or existin
client, the work required to satisfy those objeesivand the market value of such work to be perfdriidhe Company employs a formal ¢
development and proposal process that determigesast of each element of work required to ach&weh clients objectives. The Company u
these costs, together with an analysis of markesrdo develop a formal quotation that is theriewed at various levels within the organizat
The pricing of this internal proposal must meet@wmpany’s objectives for profitability, which aestablished as part of the business




planning process. After the Company approves thistajion, a detailed proposal is presented to thm@any's prospective or existing clie
However, the Company has agreed, and in the fuhayg agree, from time to time to perform servicasdalient that become or turn out to
unprofitable even though the Company expected t&ene profit when agreeing to perform them. SeesKRiof Unprofitable Services" a
"Variability of Operating Results and UncertaintyClient Revenue" in Part 1A — Risk Factors, below.

The C omPANY ' SCUSTOMER BASE

The Company currently represents nhumerous manuéstand/or retail clients in a wide range of ftethains and stores worldwide, ¢
its customers (which it refers to as clients) inleu

Mass Merchandisers

Drug

Grocery

Office Supply

Other retail outlets (such as discount and eleatrsiores, i-home and i-office, etc.)

One customer accounted for 10% of the Company'srexeinues for the years ended December 31, 201D,2889, resulting frol
merchandising services performed for a large pheeutical distributor. This customer accounted fopraximately 5% and 6% of the Compal
accounts receivable at December 31, 2010, and 20688ectively.

In addition, approximately 10% and less than 1%ihef Companys net revenue for the years ended December 31,, 201D 200¢
respectively, resulting from merchandising and g services performed for a major office supphain and for manufacturers within t
chain. These customers accounted for approxim&giyand less than 1% of the Compangtcounts receivable at December 31, 2010, and,
respectively.

Approximately 7% and 6% of the Compasyiet revenues for the years ended December 30, 208 2009, respectively, resulted fi
merchandising services performed for manufactusacsothers in stores operated by a leading massharedising chain in the United States. -
customer accounted for approximately 4% and 9% ®iQompany’s accounts receivable at December 31, 20hd 2009, respectively.

In 2010, the Company performed merchandising andetiag services for manufacturers and others matioonal drug store chain. Thi
services accounted for approximately 6% of the Camgfs net revenues for the twelve months ended DeceBihe2010. Effective March 1, 20:
the Company will no longer be providing these maralising and marketing services in this nationafdstore chain.

THE CoMPANY 's COMPETITION

The marketing services industry is highly competitiThe Companyg competition in the Domestic Merchandising Serwibévision ani
International Merchandising Services Divisions esifrom a number of large enterprises, many of vhie national or international in scope.
Company also competes with a large number of wegtismall enterprises with specific client, chanoregeographic coverage, as well as with
internal marketing and merchandising operationigsoéxisting and prospective clients. The Compaalielses that the principal competitive fac
within its industry include development and depl@yrnof technology, breadth and quality of clienvgees, cost, and the ability to execute spe
client priorities rapidly and consistently over ades geographic area. The Company believes thatuitsent structure favorably addresses t
factors and establishes it as a leader in the masshandiser, electronics and chain drug storergtarof trade. The Company also believes i
the ability to execute major national and interoadil instore initiatives and develop and administer natiand international retailer prograi
Finally, the Company believes that, through the arse continuing improvement of its proprietary it software, other technological efficien:
and various cost controls, the Company will rem@impetitive in its pricing and services.

THE COMPANY 'S TRADEMARKS

The Company has numerous registered trademarksoudh the Company believes its trademarks may fake, the Company believ
its services are sold primarily based on breadthcarality of service, cost, and the ability to extecspecific client priorities rapidly, efficientinc
consistently over a wide geographic area. (SeeO&karview of the Merchandising and Marketing Sersitelustry” and “Competition”, above).
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THE COMPANY 'S EMPLOYEES

Worldwide the Company utilized a labor force of appmately 10,000 people in 2010. Today the Compapgrates in 9 countries tl
encompass approximately 47% of the total world enpan.

During 2010, the Company’Domestic Merchandising Services Division utilizedabor force of approximately 7,500 people. A
December 31, 2010 there were 76 full-time employeed 42 part-time employees engaged in domesticatprs. The Compang’ Domesti
Merchandising Services Division utilized the seedof its affiliate, SPAR Management Services, (8MSI”), to schedule and supervise its fi
force of merchandising specialists and assemblyinie@ns, which consists of field merchandising ciplest furnished by SPAR Marketi
Services, Inc. (“SMS”), another affiliate of the iBpany, as well as the Company’s domestic field eyg®s. (See Item 13Gertain Relationshiy
and Related Transactions and Director Independdratew) and (Note 10 to the Consolidated FinanStatements Related Party Transactiol
SMS and SMSI furnished approximately 7,300 merctsamgl specialists and assembly technicians (alvbbm are independent contractor:
SMS) and 54 field managers (all of whom were finld employees of SMSI), respectively

As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s Internatid@rchandising Services Divisios’'labor force consisted of approximately 2,
people. There were 227 full-time and 34 parte employees engaged in international operatidie International Merchandising Servi
Division’s field force consisted of approximately2Q0 merchandising specialists.

To support the International Merchandising Servibégsion, the Company utilizes employees of itsnistic Merchandising Servic
Division as well as the employees of its affiligt€81SI and SMS. However, dedicated employeesheiladded to the International Merchandi
Services Division as the need arises. In 2009Cthmpany’s affiliate, SPAR InfoTech, Inc. (“SIT'3Jso provided programming and other assist
to the Company’s various divisions. In 2010 thesevices are now provided directly by the Compebge(ltem 13 Certain Relationships a
Related Transactions and Director Independencewel

The Company, SMS, SMSI and SIT consider their ieatwith their respective employees and field rhangdising specialist to be good.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are various risks associated with investingy common stock issued by SGRP ("SGRP CommockStthat are more full
described below. You should carefully consider eatcthose risk factors before you purchase or trage SGRP Common Stock. If any of
described risks develops into actual events, oradhgr risks arise and develop into actual evahtsCompany's present or future assets, bus
capital, cash flow, credit, expenses, financialditton, income, liabilities, liquidity, locationsnarketing, operations, prospects, sales, strat
taxation or other achievement, results, risks arditton could be materially and adversely affecfedwhole or in part), the market price of
SGRP Common Stock could decline, and you could ddiser part of your investment in your SGRP Comngtack.

The Company has described the risk factors thairitently consider material based on its best egémrespecting those risk factors,
Company's current and future assets, businesstatapash flow, credit, expenses, financial cowditiincome, liabilities, liquidity, locatior
marketing, operations, prospects, sales, strateiration or other achievement, results or coodjtihe likelihood of those risks developing
actual events and the likely impact of those evemdhem, which all involve and include "forwaabking statements"” within the meaning
applicable Securities Law (as discussed aboveg Jdmpany also may be facing additional risks iiadiglly, and the Company's industry or
economy may be facing additional risks, whether estivally or internationally, that are currentlykaown to the Company, that are more mat
or otherwise different than the Company currentblidves, or that the Company may have incorrectiglyged (whether as to the nature
likelihood of such risks or their potential effectTlhere also may be risks that you (as a poteimi@stor or trader) would recognize or cons
more likely or material than the Company does.

Any of the risk factors or other cautionary statetsedescribed in this Annual Report or any otheC3Eeport, or any other event
circumstance bearing risk or harm, could at anetarise, become applicable, change or worsen éasabe may be) and materially and adve
effect the Company or any of its assets, businemsital, cash flow, credit, expenses, financialditbon, income, liabilities, liquidity, location
marketing, operations, prospects, sales, strateigiestion or other achievement, results, risksasdition.

-11-




Accordingly, the Company's risk factors and forwhrdking statements each involve known amknown risks, uncertainties, poten
errors and misjudgments and other factors thatdcomadterially and adversely affect, and could cbute to the Company's failure to achiev
realize, in whole or in part, the Company's estedadr desired assets, business, capital, cash fieajt, expenses, financial condition, inco
liabilities, liquidity, locations, marketing, opéians, prospects, sales, strategies, taxationt@raichievement, results, risks or condition, whet:
expressed or implied by such forward-looking staets.

The Company does not intend or promise, and thepaosnexpressly disclaims any obligation, to pulichdate or revise any forward-
looking statements, any of those risk factors or @ther cautionary statements (in whole or in pavt)ether as a result of new information, fu
events or recognition or otherwise, except as arie extent required by applicable law.

Dependence on Largest Customer and Large Retail i0k:

As discussed above in “Customer Bagh® Company has a significant amount of busines egrtain customers. The loss of any of tl
customers, the loss of the ability to provide maradising and marketing services in those chainsheffailure to attract new large clients cc
significantly decrease the Compasyevenues and such decreased revenues could naatem@al adverse effect on the Company or itsreggd o
desired assets, business, capital, cash flow, tcredbenses, financial condition, income, lial@ij liquidity, locations, marketing, operatic
prospects, sales, strategies, taxation or othéewaament, results or condition.

Dependence on Trend Towards Outsourci

The business and growth of the Company dependsde Ipart on the continued trend toward outsourofmgerchandising and market
services, which the Company believes has resuttad the consolidation of retailers and manufactjraes well as the desire to seek outsou
specialists and reduce fixed operation expensesteTtan be no assurance that this trend in outsguvdgll continue, as companies may elec
perform such services internally. A significant aba in the direction of this trend generally, otrend in the retail, manufacturing or busir
services industry not to use, or to reduce theafseutsourced marketing services such as thoseided by the Company, could significar
decrease the Compasyfevenues and such decreased revenues could haaéeral adverse effect on the Company or itareded or desire
assets, business, capital, cash flow, credit, esgrfinancial condition, income, liabilities, lidity, locations, marketing, operations, prospe
sales, strategies, taxation or other achievemesults or condition.

Failure to Successfully Compete

The merchandising and marketing services industhighly competitive and the Company has compaetitioat are larger (or part of lar
holding companies) and may be better financed.diition, the Company competes with: (i) a large bemof relatively small enterprises w
specific client, channel or geographic coveraggite internal merchandising and marketing operegiof its existing and prospective clients;
independent brokers; and (iv) smaller regional fers. Remaining competitive in the highly compegitmerchandising and marketing serv
industry requires that the Company monitor andordgo trends in all industry sectors. There candassurance that the Company will be akt
anticipate and respond successfully to such trém@stimely manner. If the Company is unable tocsssfully compete, it could have a mate
adverse effect on the Company or its estimatedesired assets, business, capital, cash flow, ¢ceegienses, financial condition, income, liabisi
liquidity, locations, marketing, operations, prosise sales, strategies, taxation or other achiemgmesults or condition.

If certain competitors were to combine into intégdamerchandising and marketing services compaaieadditional merchandising &
marketing service companies were to enter intorttasket, or existing participants in this industrgre to become more competitive, it could ha
material adverse effect on the Company or its egtchor desired assets, business, capital, cashdtedit, expenses, financial condition, inca
liabilities, liquidity, locations, marketing, opdi@ns, prospects, sales, strategies, taxationharatchievement, results or condition.

Risks of Continuing Losses and Financial Covenaniolations

The Company was profitable in both 2010 and in 2(B¥e Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, bel@dlwg Compar
also was profitable in 2008 but suffered losse2®7. The Company's 2007 losses and related effsnised repeated violations of cel
covenants in the Company's old domestic creditifaauring 2007, 2008 and 2009, which its old lengberiodically waived for fees rather tl
permanently reset to realistically achievable Isvédiowever, the Company changed its domestic hsnitke2010 and entered into a new cr
facility with financial covenants that the Compahglieve are more realistic and thus less likelyreéquire waivers. The Company was
compliance of all its bank covenants in 2010. 8een 7 — Managemerd’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord eResults ¢
Operations, Liquidity and Capital Resources, below.
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There can be no assurances that in the future dmep@ny will be profitable, will not violate covertanof its current or future Cre
Facilities, its lenders would waive any violationfssuch covenants, the Company will continue toehastequate lines of credit, or will continut
have sufficient availability under its lines of dit Accordingly, continued losses or marginal jgaddility by the Company, as well as any failur
maintain sufficient availability or lines of crediom the Company lenders, could have a material adverse effett®@@Company or its estimatec
desired assets, business, capital, cash flow, tcredbenses, financial condition, income, lial@ij liquidity, locations, marketing, operatic
prospects, sales, strategies, taxation or othéewaament, results or condition.

Variability of Operating Results and Uncertainty iGlient Revenue

The Company has experienced and, in the future, exggrience fluctuations in quarterly operatingutiss Factors that may cause
Company’s quarterly operating results to vary friimme to time and may result in reduaedyenue and profits include: (i) the number of\vaetilien
projects; (ii) seasonality of client products;)(dlient delays, changes and cancellations in ptsj€iv) the timing requirements of client progcv)
the completion of major client projects; (vi) theing of new engagements; (vii) the timing of pemsel cost increases; and (viii) the loss of
clients. In addition, the Company is subject toerave or profit uncertainties resulting from factsueh as unprofitable client work (see below)
the failure of clients to pay. The Company attentptsnitigate these risks by dealing primarily witlige creditworthy clients, by entering in
written or oral agreements with its clients andusing project budgeting systems. These revenuéufitions could materially and adversely af
the Company or its estimated or desired assetsndmss capital, cash flow, credit, expenses, firnmondition, income, liabilities, liquidit
locations, marketing, operations, prospects, satesgtegies, taxation or other achievement, resultondition.

Risks of Unprofitable Service

The Company has agreed, and in the future may affee time to time to perform services for itsetit that become or turn out to
unprofitable even though the Company expected tkenaaprofit when agreeing to perform them. The @any's services for a particular clien
project may be or become unprofitable due to mestadr changes in circumstance, including (withouithtion) any (i) mistake or omission me
in investigating, evaluating or understanding amlevant circumstance, requirement or request ofGbepany's client or any aspect of
prospective services or their inherent problem},nfistake made in pricing, planning or performitige prospective service, (iii) service non-
performance, mis-performance or freeperformance, or (iv) change in cost, personnelyleggn or other performance circumstance. Unpabfe
services could reduce the Company's net revenuksfanaterial in gross amount or degree of unpabfiity, could materially and adversely aff
the Company or its actual, expected, estimatedsired assets, business, capital, cash flow, ¢cegienses, financial condition, income, liabift
liquidity, locations, marketing, operations, prosise sales, strategies, taxation or other achiemgmesults or condition.

Failure to Develop New Products

A key element of the Comparg/growth strategy is the development and sale of pducts. While several new products are u
current development, there can be no assurancehba@ompany will be able to successfully develog earket new products. The Company’
inability or failure to devise useful merchandisimgmarketing products or to complete the develagnee implementation of a particular prod
for use on a large scale, or the failure of suabdpcts to achieve market acceptance, could adyeadtdct the Companyg’ ability to achieve
significant part of its growth strategy and theeatx of such growth could have a material advdfseteon the Company or its estimated or des
assets, business, capital, cash flow, credit, esgrfinancial condition, income, liabilities, lidity, locations, marketing, operations, prospe
sales, strategies, taxation or other achievemestylts or condition and could limit the Compangbility to significantly increase its revenuesl
profits.

Inability to Identify, Acquire and Successfully ligrate Acquisitions

Another key component of the Compasigrowth strategy is the acquisition of businesseess the United States and worldwide that
similar merchandising or marketing services. Theceasful implementation of this strategy dependsiupe Company ability to identify suitabl
acquisition candidates, acquire such businessexogptable terms, finance the acquisition and rategheir operations successfully with thos
the Company. There can be no assurance that sndidates will be available or, if such candidates available, that the price will be attractive
that the Company will be able to identify, acquifi@ance or integrate such businesses successfuallgddition, in pursuing such acquisit
opportunities, the Company may compete with othdities with similar growth strategies, these cotiipes may be larger and have gre
financial and other resources than the Company.pétition for these acquisition targets could akssuit in increased prices of acquisition tar
and/or a diminished pool of companies availableaftquisition.

The successful integration of these acquisitioss alay involve a number of additional risks, inohgd (i) the inability to retain the clier
of the acquired business; (ii) the lingering effect poor client relations or service
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performance by the acquired business, which alsotaiat the Company’ existing businesses; (iii) the inability to retétie desirable managem:
key personnel and other employees of the acquiusihess; (iv) the inability to fully realize thegiieed efficiencies and economies of scale; (v
inability to establish, implement or police the Gmany's existing standards, controls, procedures anctipslion the acquired business;
diversion of management attention; and (vii) expesto client, employee and other legal claims fdiivities of the acquired business priol
acquisition. In addition, any acquired businesdaperform significantly worse than expected.

The inability to identify, acquire, finance and sassfully integrate such merchandising or marketagvices business could hav
material adverse effect on the Company or its egeohor desired assets, business, capital, cashdtedit, expenses, financial condition, inca
liabilities, liquidity, locations, marketing, opdi@ns, prospects, sales, strategies, taxationharatchievement, results or condition.

Uncertainty of Financing for, and Dilution Resultig from, Future Acquisitions

The timing, size and success of acquisition effartd any associated capital commitments cannog¢dily predicted. Future acquisitic
may be financed by issuing shares of the SGRP Canfstock, cash, or a combination of Common Stock cagh. If the SGRP Common St
does not maintain a sufficient market value, grdfential acquisition candidates are otherwise liimgito accept the SGRP Common Stock as
of the consideration for the sale of their busieesshe Company may be required to obtain additiceaital through debt or equity financings.
the extent the SGRP Common Stock is used for almortion of the consideration to be paid for fatacquisitions, dilution may be experience:
existing stockholders. In addition, there can beamsurance that the Company will be able to obtanadditional financing it may need for
acquisitions on terms that the Company deems aaloleptFailure to obtain such capital would matgriahd adversely affect the Company o
estimated or desired assets, business, capitdl, fas, credit, expenses, financial condition, int® liabilities, liquidity, locations, marketir
operations, prospects, sales, strategies, taxatiother achievement, results or condition.

Reliance on the Internet and Third Party Vendo

The Company relies on the Internet for the scheduliracking, coordination and reporting of its oiendising and marketing servic
The Internet has experienced, and is expectedrtinee to experience, significant growth in the ters of users and amount of traffic as we
increased attacks by hackers and other sabotenithieTextent that the Internet continues to expedencreased numbers of users, frequency ¢
or increased bandwidth requirements of users, tharebe no assurance that the Internet infrastreictill continue to be able to support
demands placed on the Internet by this continuedvir or that the performance or reliability of the&ernet will not be adversely affect
Furthermore, the Internet has experienced a vadaggutages and other delays as a result of acziand intentional damage to portions o
infrastructure, and could face such outages araydeh the future of similar or greater effect. Thempany relies on thirdarty vendors to provic
its Internet access and other services used bugmess, and the Company has no control over thirchparty providers. Any protracted disrupt
or material slowdown in Internet or other servicesild increase the Compasycosts of operation and reduce efficiency andoperdnce, whic
could have a material adverse effect on the Compmaniys estimated or desired assets, businesstatapash flow, credit, expenses, finan
condition, income, liabilities, liquidity, locatien marketing, operations, prospects, sales, steste¢axation or other achievement, result
condition.

Economic and Retail Uncertaint

The markets in which the Company operates areajciind subject to the effects of economic dowrgtuiitne current political, social a
economic conditions, including the impact of teisor on consumer and business behavior, make itulifffor the Company, its vendors and
clients to accurately forecast and plan future hess activities. Substantially all of the Comparkey clients are either retailers or those seetd
do product merchandising at retailers. Should éteilrindustry experience a significant economiwvdturn, the resultant reduction in product s
could significantly decrease the Companyevenues. The Company also has risks associatiedtsvclients changing their business plans ar
reducing their marketing budgets in response to@eic conditions, which could also significantlycdease the Compars/tevenues. Such revel
decreases could have a material adverse effeche@ompany or its estimated or desired assetsnémssi capital, cash flow, credit, exper
financial condition, income, liabilities, liquidiffocations, marketing, operations, prospects,ssagategies, taxation or other achievement, ts
or condition.

Risks Associated with Furniture and Other Relatedgembly Service
The Company's technicians assemble furniture amer giroducts in the homes and offices of custom@rerking at a customer's home
office could give rise to claims against the Comp#or errors, omissions or misconduct by those néghns, including (without limitatiol

harassment, personal injury, death, damage toedt ofi customer property, or other civil or crimimaisconduct by such technicians. Claims
could be made against the
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Company as a result of its involvement in such msde services due to (among other things) prodssembly errors and omissions, prot
defects, deficiencies, breakdowns or collapse, yotsdthat are not merchantable or fit for theirtipatar purpose, products that do not confori
published specifications or satisfy customer exqt@ms, or products that cause personal injurythdea property damage, in each case whi
actual, alleged or perceived by customers, andpgetive of how much time may have passed sinde asgembly. If such claims are assertec
adversely determined against the Company, therhéoeitent such claims are not covered by indenatiio from the product's seller
manufacturer or by insurance, they could have eer@tadverse effect on the Company or its estithatedesired assets, business, capital,
flow, credit, expenses, financial condition, incqrabilities, liquidity, locations, marketing, opions, prospects, sales, strategies, taxatiathen
achievement, results or condition.

Dependence Upon and Potential Conflicts in Serviéaesvided by Affiliates

The success of the Compasydomestic business is dependent upon the suctessfoution of its field services by SPAR Marke
Services, Inc. ("SMS”), and SPAR Management Sesjitec. (“SMSI”), each of which is an affiliate, but not a subsidjarf/the Company, ai
none of which is consolidated in the Companfihancial statements. SMS provides substant&llypf the merchandising specialists used by
Company in conducting its domestic business (86%omnestic field expense in 2010), and SMSI provisigisstantially all of the domestic fit
management services (94% of domestic field manageline2010) used by the Company in conducting itsitess (See Item 13 Certair
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Dirdottependence), and (See Note 10 to the Consetidéinancial StatementsRelated Pari
Transactions). These services provided to the Cognpg SMS and SMSI are on a cqdirs basis pursuant to contracts that are caneet@bl6(
days notice prior to December 31 of each year dh WBO days notice at any other time (See Item T3rain Relationships and Rela
Transactions, and Director Independence, belowd, (82e Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Stamsn—Related Party Transactions). -
Company has determined that the services provigle®MS and SMSI are at rates that are slightly fabta to the Company.

SMS and SMSI (collectively, the “SPAR Affiliatesgre owned solely by Mr. Robert G. Brown, founderector, Chairman of tt
Company, and Mr. William H. Bartels, founder, di@c, and Vice Chairman of the Company, each of whomadse directors and execut
officers of each of the SPAR Affiliates (See IteB-dCertain Relationships and Related TransactionsParettor Independence, below), and (M
10 to the Consolidated Financial StatemenRelated Party Transactions). In the event of aspude in the business relationships betwee
Company and one or more of the SPAR Affiliatessipossible that Messrs. Brown and Bartels may ltae or more conflicts of interest w
respect to those relationships and could causeoomaore of the SPAR Affiliates to renegotiate oneal their contracts with the Company
otherwise act in a way that is not in the Compalivgst interests.

While the Company relationships with SMS and SMSI are excellengrehcan be no assurance that the Company coule¢éssat
under the circumstances) replace the field merdsany specialists and management currently providgdSMS and SMSI, respectively,
sufficient time to perform its client obligations at such favorable rates in the event the SPARi#tH#s no longer performed those services.
cancellation, other nonperformance or materialipgigncrease under those affiliate contracts cdwslde a material adverse effect on the Com
or its estimated or desired assets, businessatagash flow, credit, expenses, financial conditincome, liabilities, liquidity, locations, martikeg,
operations, prospects, sales, strategies, taxatiother achievement, results or condition.

Risks of Common Stock Ownersh

Dividends on SGRP Common Stock are discretionayemever been paid, are subject to restrictiotlsérCompany's credit facilities &
applicable law and can only be paid to the holdé¢iSGRP Common Stock if the accrued and unpaididivds and potential dividends are first |
to the holders of the Series A Preferred Stockthénevent of the Company's liquidation, dissolutior windingup, the holders of Common Stc
are only entitled to share in the Company's asffeasyy, that remain after the Company make paynoéreind provision for all of the Compan
debts and liabilities and the liquidation preferemnof all of the Company's outstanding PreferrextiSt There can be no assurance that suffi
funds will remain in any such case for dividendslistributions to the holders of SGRP Common Stock.

Risks related to the Company's Preferred Stc
The Company's ability to issue or redeem PrefeBtadk, or any rights to purchase such shares, aistdburage an unsolicited acquisit
proposal. For example, the Company could impebasiness combination by issuing a series of prefestock containing class voting rights

would enable the holders of such preferred stodidok a business combination transaction. Altéved, the Company could facilitate a busir
combination transaction by issuing a series ofgrefl stock having sufficient voting rights to pid®/a required percentage vote of
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the stockholders. Additionally, under certain girstances, the Company's issuance of preferrel stadd adversely affect the voting power
the holders of the Company's common stock. Altlhotlte Company's board of directors is required ttkenany determination to issue ¢
preferred stock based on its judgment as to theibisests of the Company's stockholders, the Gmyis board of directors could act in a mar
that would discourage an acquisition attempt oepthansaction that some, or a majority, of the @any's stockholders may believe to be in t
best interests or in which stockholders may receaiypeemium for their stock over prevailing markdates of such stock. The Company's boar
directors does not at present intend to seek stadd&happroval prior to any issuance of currentlharized stock, unless otherwise required by
or applicable stock exchange requirements.

Risks of llliquidity in SGRP Common Stoc

The market price of the Company's common stockhissrically experienced and may continue to exgeré significant volatility. Durin
the year ended December 31, 2010, the sale pri&&&P Common Stock fluctuated from $0.42 to $1.d0ghare. The Company believes tha
Common Stock is subject to wide price fluctuatidng to (among other things) the following:

« the relatively small public float and correspondihgn trading market for SGRP Common Stock, attable to (among other things)
large block of voting shares beneficially ownedthy Company's céunders (as noted below) and generally low tradiolgmes, and th
thin trading market may cause small trades to Isgym@ficant impacts on SGRP Common Stock pr

« the substantial beneficial ownership of approxitya62.4% of the Company's voting stock and posntontrol by the Company's co-
founders (who also are directors and executiveceif§i of the Company), Mr. Robert G. Brown, who bierely owns approximatel
36.4% (or 7,678,289 shares) of SGRP Common Staud, Mr. William H. Bartels, who beneficially owns goximately 26.1% (c
5,490,505 shares) of SGRP Stock, which amounts eadoellated using total beneficial ownership (21,161 shares) and their individ
beneficial ownerships at March 11, 2011 (includailgshares then beneficially owned under currepttercisable warrants and ves
options), as more fully described above and be

« the periodic potential risk of the delisting of SBRommon Stock from trading on Nasdaq (as deschémiv);

« any announcement, estimate or disclosure by thep@ay or any projection or other claim or pronouneat by any of the Compan
competitors or any financial analyst, commentattsgger or other person, respecting (i) any newdpcb created, product improveme
significant contract, business acquisition or ietahip, or other publicized development by the @any or any of its competitors, or
any change, fluctuation or other development in @wnpany's actual, estimated or desired asset&dsss capital, cash flow, cre
expenses, financial condition, income, liabilitiéiguidity, locations, marketing, operations, prests, sales, strategies, taxation or ¢
achievement, results or condition or in those of ahthe Company's competitors, in each case ieedge of accuracy or validity a
whether or not adverse or materand

« the general volatility of stock markets, consurmed @vestor confidence and the economy generalhidwoften affect the prices of stc
issued by the Company and many others without degafinancial results or conditior

If the Company issues (other than at fair markétievdor cash) or the Company's fmnders sell a large number of shares of St
Common Stock, or if the market perceives such amaisce or sale is likely or imminent, the markétgpof SGRP Common Stock could decl
and that decline could be significant.

In addition, the volatility in the market price &GRP Common Stock could lead to class action geesiditigation that (howeve
unjustified) could in turn impose substantial coststhe Company, divert managemendttention and resources and harm the Comparmgk
price, business, prospects, results of operatindginancial condition.

The Company is endeavoring to increase its pultiat fand reduce such volatility by the sale of @34000,000 shares of SGRP Comr
Stock by the Company and certain selling stockhslde the public pursuant to (among other thingsgistration statement on Form33hat is
being amended and will soon be resubmitted to € fr additional and potentially final review. &&SGRP Common Stock Offering and S-3
Registration Statement ", on page 22, below.
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Risks Related to the Company's Significant Stoclkdels: Potential Voting Control and Conflict

The Company's co-founders, Mr. Robert G. Brown &frd William H. Bartels are directors, executive ioffrs (Chairman and Vice-
Chairman, respectively) and significant stockhaddef the Company, and also are selling stockholdeder the 2011 S-Registration Stateme
(see "SGRP Common Stock Offering an@ Registration Statement” on page 22, below). Bdown beneficially owns approximately 36.4%,
Bartels beneficially owns approximately 26.1%, &ney own approximately 62.4% in the aggregate ef SIGRP Common Stock, which amot
were calculated using total beneficial ownership,101,161 shares) and their individual beneficiherships (7,678,289 shares and 5,49(
shares, respectively) at March 11, 2011, which eships included all shares beneficially owned urzlerently exercisable warrants and ve
options. Although the Company expects those péages to decrease through sales of SGRP CommoR Byothe Company and the Sell
Stockholders pursuant to the 2011 S-3 Registra@imtement (See SGRP Common Stock Offering and S-3 Registration Statement " on page 2:
below), after all such sales, Mr. Brown will beridily own at least 7,178,289 shares (or 31.0%), Bhrtels will beneficially own at lez
4,990,505 shares (or 21.6%), and Mr. Brown andBdrtels will beneficially own in aggregate at 1e&48t168,794 shares (or 52.6%) of the St
Common Stock then beneficially owned on a pro fotrasis (assuming no other changes). Mr. Brown andBdrtels have, should they choos
act together, and under certain circumstances MswB acting alone may have, the ability to contted election of directors, the approva
mergers and all other matters that must or maypipeozed by the Company's stockholders. In any £\WWn Brown and Mr. Bartels continue
have significant influence over the Company's bessnand operations and the outcome of the Companyrate actions, including thc
involving stockholder approvals. The interestsany significant stockholder may be different froime to time from, and potentially in confl
with, the interests of other stockholders, and aship concentration could delay or prevent a chaingthe Company's control or otherw
discourage the Company's potential acquisitionrimtteer person, any of which could cause the markee of the SGRP Common Stock to dec
and that decline could be significant.

Risks of Dilution

The Company may issue and the selling stockholdeyg sell SGRP Common Stock at varying prices urderpending 2011 S-
Registration Statement once it becomes effectiee [SGRP Common Sock Offering and S-3 Registration Statement " on page 22, below). T
Company will try to maximize the net proceeds teiges in each sale, and it hopes to sell the SG&Rmon Stock for more than the Compa
net book value per share (and thus avoid dilutiregeixisting equity of its existing stockholdersitsysales of newly issued SGRP Common St
but there can be no assurance that the Companybwilible to do so. The Selling Stockholders aselling shares of Common Stock that
already issued and outstanding, and those sale®tdilute or otherwise affect the existing equitythe Company's existing stockholders.
Company also will issue Common Stock at $0.40 feres under the repriced stock options describedegb@s and when exercised, and
Company may issue additional options to directofficers, employees and consultants in the futingeashare exercise prices below the price
pay. In addition, the Company may issue share3GRP Common Stock in the future in furtherancehef€ompany's acquisitions or developn
of businesses or assets. Each of those and abearices of SGRP Common Stock could have a dilefifect on the value of your shai
depending on the price the Company are paid (ovdhee of the assets or business acquired) for sbhates, market conditions at the time and «
factors.

Risks of a Nasdaq Delisting

The SGRP Common Stock is currently trading, hasntg traded and could continue to trade for lbss1t$1.00 per share, which is be
Nasdag's minimum trading price for continued ligton the Nasdaq stock market. On two separatesimetaduring the last two years (Septer
2009 and April 2010), the Company received notitesr Nasdaqg advising that the Company failed tormaén a minimum closing bid price
$1.00 per share for shares of SGRP Common Stodkéagprior 30 consecutive business days as reqgbirédasdaq Listing Rule 5550(a)(2) (knc
as the " Bid Price Rul§, and that the Company had a 180 day grace périadich to regain compliance with the Bid Pricel®&by maintaining
closing bid price of $1.00 per share for the SGRfn@on Stock for a minimum of ten consecutive bussngays. In each case such compli
was achieved within the applicable grace perioasl the Company received notice from Nasdaq (in Bdes 2009 and September 2(
respectively) that the Company had regained comgdiavith the Bid Price Rule and that such mattes etased.

There can be no assurance that the Company wibl®eto comply with the Bid Price Rule during sugrhce period or be able to com
in the future with Nasdaq's continued listing regmients. If the Company continues to be in ntompliance after such six month grace period ¢
Nasdag may commence delisting procedures agaiasCtimpany (during which the Company will have addal time of up to six months
appeal and correct its naompliance). If the SGRP Common Stock shares whimately delisted by Nasdag, the market liquidifythe SGR
Common Stock could be adversely affected and it&kebgrice could decrease, even though such shmsgscontinue to be traded "over
counter”, due to (among other things) the potefitialncreased spreads between bids and asks, loaging volumes and reporting delays in over-
the-counter trades and the negative implicationkparceptions that could arise from such a defistin

Risks Associated with International Subsidiari

While the Company endeavors to limit its exposurediaims and losses in any international subsydiarough contractual provisiot
insurance and use of single purpose entities foh sentures, there can be no assurance that the@ugnwill not be held liable for the clail
against and losses of a particular internationbsigliary under applicable local law or local inteation of any subsidiary agreements or insur
provisions. If any such claims and losses shoultlgdbe material in amount and be successfullyresbagainst the Company, such claims
losses could
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have a material adverse effect on the Companysastimated or desired assets, business, catdl, ftow, credit, expenses, financial condit
income, liabilities, liquidity, locations, markegnoperations, prospects, sales, strategies, texatiother achievement, results or condition.

Risks of Having Material Local Investors in Interrtéonal Subsidiaries

The Companys international model is to join forces with lodavestors having merchandising service expertisé emmbine the
knowledge of the local market with the Companyroprietary software and expertise in the merdisimy business. As a result, each of
Company's international subsidiaries (other thanada, Japan and China) that is owned in materiélyaan entity in the local country where
international subsidiary resides and that is nbentise affiliated with the Company (each a "Lo8#&bckholder"). The joint venture agreem
between the Company and the Local Stockholdereanréispective international subsidiaries specifyprgnother things, the equity, programn
and support services the Company is required toigeoand the equity, credit support, certain s&aviand management support that the 1
Stockholder is required to provide to the interoradil subsidiary. In the event of any disagreenmendther dispute in the business relations
between the Company and Local Stockholder, it ssibe that the Local Stockholder may have one arenconflicts of interest with respect to
relationship and could cause the applicable inteynal subsidiary to operate or otherwise actwag that is not in the Company’s best interests.

The joint venture agreements generally have undidntontract terms and parties generally do not tiaeeight to unilaterally withdra
However, a nordefaulting party has the right to terminate sucteament upon the other party's default, receiptotice and failure to cure withir
specified period (generally 60 days). In additieitherparty, at any time after the end of a specifiedgue(usually between three and five ye:
may: (1) sell all or part of its equity interestthe international subsidiary to a third party bpyding a written notice to the other party of B
intentions (in which case the other party has thbtrof first refusal and may purchase the equityhe offering party under the same terms
conditions) (a "Right of First Refusal"); or (2)fef to purchase the equity of the other party (lmok case the other party has 120 days to ¢
accept or reject the offer or to reverse the tretiza and actually purchase the offering pastgquity under the same terms and condition
"Buy/Sell Right").

The Company believes its relationships with thedl&tockholders in its international subsidiariesiain good. Several of the company’
respective international subsidiary contracts #fteeeat or near the end of the applicable peribaisng which either of the parties may trigger
Right of First Refusal and Buy/Sell provisions désed above. Both the Company and such Local $iwiders, as part of their ongo
relationship, are or will be assessing appropiaaten as described above.

There can be no assurance that the Company cduiéggssary under the circumstances) replace equéglit support, management .
other services currently provided by any Local 8hmtder in sufficient time to perform its client l@ations or that the Company could pros
these services and or equity in the event the L8tatkholder was to sell its stock or reduce amypsut to the Compang’ subsidiary in tk
applicable country. Any cancellation, other nofgenance or material change under the joint venageeements with Local Stockholders ct
have a material adverse effect on the Companysastimated or desired assets, business, catdl, ftow, credit, expenses, financial condit
income, liabilities, liquidity, locations, markeginoperations, prospects, sales, strategies, texatiother achievement, results or condition.

Risks Associated with Foreign Currenc

The Company also has foreign currency exposurecaded with its international subsidiaries. In 201l@ese exposures are prima
concentrated in the Canadian Dollar, South AfriBamd, Japanese Yen, and Australian Dollar.

Risks Associated with International Busine

The Companys expansion strategy includes expansion into var@muntries around the world. While the Companyeerdrs to limit it
exposure by entering only countries where the ipalit social and economic environments are condutiv doing business, there can be
assurances that the respective business enviroamdhtemain favorable. In the future, the Companinternational operations and sales ma
affected by the following risks, which may adveyseifect United States companies doing businesréign countries:

Political and economic risks, including politicaktability;

Various forms of protectionist trade legislatioattlcurrently exist, or have been propos
Expenses associated with customizing prodi

Local laws and business practices that favor looaipetition;

Dependence on local vendo
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Multiple, conflicting and changing governmental land regulation:

Potentially adverse tax consequent

Local accounting principles, practices and procedand limited familiarity with US GAAF
Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuatic

Communication barriers, including those arisingvirlanguage, culture, custom and times zones
Supervisory challenges arising from distance, ptajsibsences and such communication bari

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The 2oy leases certain office space and storagetfesifor its corporate headquart
divisions and subsidiaries under various operd#ages, which expire at various dates during tiext five years. These leases generally requit
Company to pay rents at or below market rates estildp periodic adjustments, plus other chargesuding utilities, real estate taxes and com
area maintenance. The Company believes that atioeships with its landlords generally to be goddwever, as these leased facilities gene
are used for offices and storage, the Company\ssithat other leased spaces could be readily fanddutilized on similar terms should the r
arise.

The Company maintains its corporate headquarteeppmoximately 5,600 square feet of leased offjggce located in Tarrytown, N
York, under an operating lease with a term expi@aober 31, 2013, and maintains its data procgssnter and warehouse at its regional offi
Auburn Hills, Michigan, under an operating leas@igrg October 31, 2015. The Company believes itisa¢xisting facilities are adequate for
current business. However, new facilities may bdeddshould the need arise in the future.

The following is a list of the headquarter locatidar the Company and its international subsidgrie

DOMESTIC:
Tarrytown, NY (Corporate Headquarte
Auburn Hills, MI (Regional Office, Warehouse andn@al Computer Operation

INTERNATIONAL:

Toronto, Ontario, Canac  Tokyo, Japat Bucharest, Roman

Durban, South Africi New Delhi, India Melbourne, Australi
Shanghai, Chin

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Longstanding litigation with Safeway Inc. ("Safewpagoncluded in August 2010. On October 24, 20Cife®way filed a complaint agai
PIA Merchandising Co., Inc. ("PIA Co."), a whollywaed subsidiary of SPAR Group, Inc. ("SGRP"), Pav@&ales Company ("Pivotal"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of PIA Co., and SGRP in Alamedar®p (California) Superior Court, case no. 2001@B4Safeways claims, as subsequer
amended, alleged causes of action for breach dfaminand breach of implied contract. PIA Co. aivbfal filed crosselaims against Safews
including causes of action for breach of contrat mterference with economic relationships. Theegaroceeded to trial by jury. On May 26, 2!
the jury returned a verdict that awarded certaimages on different claims to PIA Co. and Pivotadl amwvarded certain damages to Safe'
resulting in a net award of $1,307,700 to Pivalagment was entered in favor of Pivotal and ag&afeway on August 14, 2006, for $1,307,
A subsequent order awarded Pivotal certain cowgtscmtaling $33,725.

Thereafter, both sides filed appeals. On May 2402the California Court of Appeal issued a decisadfirming the judgment in full. A
appellate proceedings concluded on July 28, 2@® August 2, 2010, Safeway tendered, and the Coynaegepted, payment of $1,888,000 in
payment of the judgment.

In addition to the above, the Company is a partyai@ous other legal actions and administrativecpealings arising in the normal cours
business. In the opinion of Compasyhanagement, disposition of these other mattersatr anticipated to have a material adverse efiadhe
Company or its estimated or desired assets, bissioapital, cash flow, credit, expenses, financ@addition, income, liabilities, liquidity, locatia
marketing, operations, prospects, sales, strategestion or other achievement, results or cooniti
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurityHolders

None.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edy Securities
The Company's Capital Stock Generally:

SGRP's certificate of incorporation authorizesoititsue 47,000,000 shares of common stock withravalme of $0.01 per share (the "SC
Common Stock"), which all have the same votingjdéind and liquidation rights. SGRP Common Stockasled on the Nasdaq Capital Ma
("Nasdaq") under the symbol "SGRP". On March 10112 the SGRP Common Stock closing price was $pe35share; there were 19,923,
shares of SGRP Common Stock issued and outstandirige aggregate, which had an aggregate marketevaf $38,850,419; there wi
21,101,161 shares of SGRP Common Stock beneficiaityed in the aggregate, which beneficial owneréhguded all shares then beneficii
owned under currently exercisable warrants andedesptions; there were 15,216,001 shares (or appatgly 72%) of SGRP Common St
beneficially owned by the officers, directors affiliates of SGRP in the aggregate, which affildtewnership included shares then benefic
owned under currently exercisable warrants andedesptions and had an aggregate market value g6%2202; and there were 5,885,161 st
(or approximately 28%) of SGRP Common Stock beraficowned by norgffiliates of the Company in the aggregate (i.6R®'s public float
which float included shares then beneficially ownedier currently exercisable warrants and vesteémgpand had an aggregate market valt
$11,476,063. See “ltem 12 — Security Ownershifeftain Beneficial Owners and Management and Relateckholder Matters”, below.

SGRP's certificate of incorporation also authoriitegs issue 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock @ipar value of $0.01 per share (the "Si
Preferred Stock"), which may have such preferemees priorities over the SGRP Common Stock and otigéts, powers and privileges as
Company's Board of Directors may establish in iscrétion from time to time. The Company has @daand authorized the issuance

maximum of 3,000,000 shares of Series A Prefertedk3pursuant to SGRP's Certificate of Designatib&eries "A" Preferred Stock (the "SG
Series A Preferred Stock"), which have dividend &qudidation preferences, have a cumulative divilef 10% per year, are redeemable a
Company's option and are convertible at the haldeption (and without further consideration) on re-to-one basis into SGRP Comrn
Stock. The number of shares authorized by suclymizson could, however, be reduced by amendmeneademption to facilitate the creation
other SGRP Preferred Series. On December 31, B5U0402 shares of SGRP Series A Preferred Stook issued and outstanding, such prefe
shares are fully paid and nassessable, the Company owed $123,000 in accumiwdate unpaid dividends on those preferred shallesf #hose
preferred shares were held by two pension planstantially for the benefit of affiliates of the Cpany, and there were 2,445,598 share
authorized Series A Preferred Stock that remaimggsued and available for issuance. See “ltem &&eurity Ownership of Certain Benefic
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder idattand “ltem 13 —Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, Rinelctol
Independence”, below. See "Note 8 to Consolid&iedncial Statements Preferred Stock", below, respecting the conversibsuch preferre
shares into SGRP Common Stock on March 11, 2011.

The holders of SGRP Common Stock and Series A PeefStock vote together for directors and othettens, other than matters pertaining onl
the Series A Preferred Stock (such as amending SGR#ttificate of Designation of Series "A" PreéatrStock) where only the holders of
Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to vote. @&orore complete description of the SGRP CommookSdod SGRP Preferred Stock, director
officer exculpation and indemnification, absencewmulative voting rights and certain other govecematters, please see "Our Capital Stocl
pages 7 through 11 of SGRP's Amendment No. 1 fRetsistration Statement on Form S-3 as filed wih$EC on February 7, 2011.

Price Range of Common Stoc

The following table sets forth the reported highl dow sales prices of the Common Stock for the wuarindicated as reported on
Nasdag Capital Marke

2010 2009
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $ 110 $ 0.76 $ 0.75 $ 0.45
Second Quarte 1.00 0.45 0.70 0.36
Third Quartel 1.09 0.42 0.95 0.36
Fourth Quarte 1.10 0.80 1.10 0.65

Dividends

The Company has never declared or paid any castiediys on its Common Stock and does not anticipageng cash dividends on
Common Stock in the foreseeable future. While tlenany's recently issued Preferred Stock accrue®a dividend payable in either cast
common stock when authorized by the Board, the Gmymloes not anticipate paying a cash dividenchénforeseeable future. The Comp
currently intends to retain future earnings to fica its operations and fund the growth of the lessnAny payment of future dividends will b
the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Qamy and will depend upon, among other things,Gbmpanys earnings, financial conditic
capital requirements, level of indebtedness, cotied restrictions in respect to the payment ofd#inds and other factors that the ComparBoart
of Directors deems relevant.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
SGRP did not repurchase any of its equity secaritiging its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

SGRP Common Stock Issuanc

SGRP did not issue any SGRP Common Stock durin§ @010 other than (i) pursuant to its existiagistered stock compensation
stock purchase plans, (i) its Offer to Exchanget&e Outstanding Stock Options for New Stock Opsialated August 24, 2009 (as filed with
SEC in SGRR Schedule TO on August 25, 2009), (iii) its agrestron August 15, 2009, to privately sell 120,088res of SGRP Common Stt
to Alliance Advisors, LLC, for total consideratiarf $0.47 per share (the fair market value at tetof our agreement) or $56,000 in the aggre
(as more fully described in Item 2(a) of SGRP's i@arly Report respecting the quarter ended SepteB8Me2010), and (iv) its agreement on Mz
26, 2010, to privately issue warrants to purch&@00 shares of SGRP Common Stock to Michael Anthidoidings, Inc., in consideration of
term loan to us (as that loan is more fully dessdiln Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial StatamenSGRP's Quarterly Report respecting
quarter ended September 30, 2010), which warramts bn exercise price of $0.85 per share (theraiket value at the time of such agreerr
and expire on March 26, 2012. The offer and satbeshares referenced in clause (iii) and theavas and shares referenced in clause (iv) o
paragraph have not been registered under the 8esukict or other securities laws, as they were enid a norpublic offer and sale made
reliance upon (among other things) Section 4 (ZhefSecurities Act.

SGRP Common Stock Offering anc-3 Registration Statement

The Company has filed and amended a registratateraent on Form S-3 (as amended, the "20B1R&gistration Statement") for the ¢
of SGRP Common Stock to the public, which curreiglipeing amended and will soon be resubmittetieécSEC for additional and potentially fi
review. When effective, the Company will be petedtto sell a maximum of 2,000,000 shares for @sdfit and the selling stockholders,
Brown and Mr. Bartels, will be permitted to sellreaximum of 500,000 shares each for their respedteugefit under the 2011 $-Registratio
Statement (which maximums could be increased byndment and payment of the requisite fees). Howewased on the SGRP Common S
beneficially owned by the Company's naffiliates (i.e., its public float) and the SGRPrmon Stock Price of $1.95 per share on March 111,
the Company will be further limited under the appble S-3 rules to sales of approximately 25,316 in proceeds (or 1,961,701 shares) a
price, and the maximum sales by Mr. Brown and MartBls will be proportionally reduced accordinghn increase in its public float or
discounted offering sale price would permit the @amy to sell more of its Common Stock under thel2843 Registration Statement.
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SGRP Common Stock Performan:

The following graph shows a comparison of cumutatietal returns for SGRB’Common Stock, the Nasdaq Stock Market (
Companies) Index and the Nasdag Stocks (SIC 738® U.S. Companies) Miscellaneous Business Sernicdex, Russell 2000 and S
Advertising for the period during which SGRRCommon Stock has been registered under Sectiai 2 Securities Exchange Act of 1934
amended (the “Exchange Act)he graph assumes that the value of an investme@bimmon Stock and in each such index was $100emembe
31, 2005, and that all dividends have been reiedest

The comparison in the graph below is based on fiisiodata and is not intended to forecast the iptesguture performance of SGRP’
Common Stock.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among 5P AR Group, Inc. ..

40 -
420
0
12005 1206 1207 12008 12108 12M0
—HBE— SPAR Grow, Inc. — & — HASDAG Composite - - O - - Bussell 2000 —#*— S5 &P Advertising

HI00 irvested on 1203108 in stodk or indes, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fizcal wear ending December 34.

Copyright@ 2011 5&P, a division of The McGran-Hill Companies Ine. Al rights resenced.

12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0: 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1(
SPAR Group, Inc 100.0( 135.4; 76.5¢ 83.2¢ 88.7¢ 92.1%
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 111.74 124.67 73.71 107.1: 125.9:
Russell 200( 100.0( 118.3% 116.5: 77.1% 98.11 124 .4¢
S&P Advertising 100.0( 124.9¢ 106.8( 59.41 92.31 115.3¢
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Not applicable.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations, Liquidiy and Capital Resources

Statements contained in this “Management’s Discumsiand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resultsf Operations” include
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning ahe Securities Laws and are based on the Compargést estimates and determinations. \
can identify forwardiooking statements in such information by the Commpes use of terms such as "may", "will", "expect","intend",
"believe", "estimate”, "anticipate”, "continue" or similar words or variations or negatives of thosemds. You should carefully consider ¢
such information and the other risks and caution®ted in this Annual Report and the Company's othHéings under applicable Securities Law
(including this report, each a "SEC Report") thatauld cause the Company's actual assets, businesgpital, cash flow, credit, expense
financial condition, income, liabilities, liquidity locations, marketing, operations, prospects, salstrategies, taxation or other achieveme
results, risks or condition to differ materially &m those anticipated by the Company and descritrethé information in the Company's forward-
looking statements, whether express or implied, the Company's anticipations are based upon the Camgs plans, intentions and be
estimates and (although the Company believe thenb¢oreasonable) involve known and unknown risks,centainties and other factors ths

could cause them to fail to occur or be realizedtorbe materially and adversely different from treothe Company anticipated.

Although the Company believes that its plans, intems and estimates reflected or implied in suchnf@rd-looking statements ar
reasonable, the Company cannot assure you that sptans, intentions or estimates will be achievedvitnole or in part, that the Company h:
identified all potential risks, or that the Compargan successfully avoid or mitigate such risks imele or in part. You should carefully revie
the risk factors described above (See Iltem 1Risk Factors, above) and any other cautionary statnts contained or incorporated by referen
in this Annual Report. All forwardlooking and other statements attributable to the@pany or persons acting on its behalf are expressipject
to and qualified by all such risk factors and otheautionary statements.

You should not place undue reliance on the Companyorward{ooking statements because the matters they descadle subject ti
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other predictable factors, many of which are beyond itsntrol. The Company's forward-
looking statements are based on the information mtly available to it and speak only as of the dain the cover of December 31, 2010,
other referenced date or, in the case of forwdmbking statements incorporated by reference, ashaf date of the SEC Report that includes st
statement. New risks and uncertainties arise froimé to time, and it is impossible for the Comparny gredict these matters or how they
arise or affect the Company. Over time, the Comparactual assets, business, capital, cash flovedit, expenses, financial condition, incorr
liabilities, liquidity, locations, marketing, opeténs, prospects, sales, strategies, taxation dreotachievements, results, risks or condition v
likely differ from those expressed or implied byethCompany's forwardeoking statements, and such difference could bgrsficant and
materially adverse to the Company and the valug/ofir investment in the Company's Common Stock.

The Company does not intend or promise, and the @amy expressly disclaims any obligation, to pubjicipdate or revise any forward-
looking statements, risk factors or other cautionastatements (in whole or in part), whether as asué of new information, future events ¢
recognition or otherwise, except as and to the exteequired by applicable law.

Overview

SPAR Group, Inc. (“SGRP”), and its subsidiariegéther with SGRP, the “SPAR Group” or the “Companig’ a diversified internationi
merchandising and marketing services company aodides a broad array of services worldwide to regmpanies improve their sales, opera
efficiency and profits at retail locations. The many provides merchandising and other marketimgicges to manufacturers, distributors ¢
retailers worldwide, primarily in mass merchandsseoffice supply, grocery, drug store and otherirthand independent, convenience
electronics stores, as well as providing furnitanel other product assembly services in stores, 8@neé offices. The Company has supplied t
project and product services in the United Staiesescertain of its predecessors were formed in918@d internationally since the Comps
acquired its first international subsidiary in Jaja May of 2001. Today the
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Company operates in 9 countries that encompas®xpmately 47% of the total world population, thréugperations in the United States, Cani
Japan, South Africa, India, Romania, China, Auigtrahd New Zealand.

Critical Accounting Policies & Estimates

The Companys critical accounting policies, including the asgtions and judgments underlying them, are disclosgtie Note 2 to th
Consolidated Financial Statements. These policaas tbeen consistently applied in all material resgpand address such matters as rev
recognition, depreciation methods, asset impairmrenbgnition, consolidation of subsidiaries andeoteompanies. While the estimates
judgments associated with the application of theskcies may be affected by different assumptioncanditions, the Company believes
estimates and judgments associated with the repataounts are appropriate in the circumstancesr Edtical accounting policies a
consolidation of subsidiaries, revenue recognitalowance for doubtful accounts, and internal ssféware development costs.

Consolidation of Subsidiaries

The Company consolidates its 100% owned subsigiafiee Company also consolidates all of its 51%exsubsidiaries as the Comps
believes it is the primary beneficiary and contrtile economic activities in accordance whbcounting Standards Codification (ASC) 810-10,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entity .

Revenue Recognitio

The Companys services are provided to its clients under cotgrar agreements. The Company bills its cliensetaipon service fee a
per unit fee billing arrangements. Revenues uneeice fee billing arrangements are recognized wtherservice is performed. The Companyér
unit fee arrangements provide for fees to be eab@seéd on the retail sales of a clisntroducts to consumers. The Company recognizearyk
fees in the period such amounts become determimalol@re reported to the Company.

Allowance for Doubtful Account:

The Company continually monitors the validity of iaccounts receivable based upon current cliertitcireformation and financie
condition. Balances that are deemed to be uncitllecafter the Company has attempted reasonablectioh efforts are written off through
charge to the bad debt allowance and a creditdouatts receivable. Accounts receivable balancesyfremny applicable reserves or allowances,
stated at the amount that management expects lectblm the outstanding balances. The Companyiges for probable uncollectible amou
through a charge to earnings and a credit to bad allowance based in part on managengeassessment of the current status of indivi
accounts. Based on managemegrissessment, the Company established an allof@ndeubtful accounts of $143,000 and $317,000 etdbnbe
31, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Bad debt expemses $265,000 and $412,000 in 2010, and 2009¢otisply.

Internal Use Software Development Co:

In accordance withPASC-350-10-720, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use , the
Company capitalizes certain costs associated vatimternally developed software. Specifically, empany capitalizes the costs of materials
services incurred in developing or obtaining intdémse software. These costs include (but areimiteld to) the cost to purchase software, the
to write program code, payroll and related benefitd travel expenses for those employees who egetlyi involved with and who devote time
the Company'’s software development projects. Chigéich software development costs are amortized three years on a straight-line basis.

The Company capitalized $632,000 and $586,000 stscelated to software developed for internal ins2010, and 2009, respective

and recognized approximately $518,000 and $396¢g®@0nortization of capitalized software for the iveemonths ended December 31, 2010,
2009, respectively.
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Results of Operation
The following table sets forth selected financialadand such data as a percentage of net revesrube fyears indicated (in millions).

Year Ended December 31

2010 % 2009 %

Net revenue $ 63.2 100.% $ 57.t 100.(%
Cost of revenue 42.2 66.€ 40.C 69.t
Selling, general & administrative exper 17.1 27.1 16.1 28.C
Depreciation & amortizatio 1.C 1.€ 11 1.€
Interest expens 0.3 0.5 0.2 0.2
Other (income) — — (0.6) (1.0)
Income before income te

provision and nc-controlling interes 2.€ 4.C 0.7 i.&
Provision for income taxes 0.3 0.4 0.1 0.3
Net income 2.3 3.€ 0.€ 1.C
Net (income) attributable to n-

controlling interest (0.2) (0.2 (0.1) (0.2)
Net income $ 2.2 3.4% $ 0. 0.€%

Results of operations for the twelve months endeztBmber 31, 2010, when compared to the same pénic2009

Net Revenue

Net revenues of the Company for the twelve montided December 31, 2010, were $63.2 million, conpaoe$57.5 million for th
twelve months ended December 31, 2009, an inci&aks 7 million.

The Companys domestic net revenues increased $10.2 milliddB8ot% to $36.6 million in 2010 from $26.4 million 2009. The increa
was attributable to both acquisition and organaagh.

The Companys international net revenues totaled $26.6 milfien2010, decreasing 15% from $31.1 million in 2008e primary reasc
for the decrease in 2010 international net reveasesompared to 2009 was the loss of marginallfitplde sales promotion business in Japan
loss of a key client in India, partially offset mcreased revenue in Canada related to the busitgssred from Wings and Ink.

Cost of Revenues

The Company’s cost of revenues consists of in-staber and field management wages, related beneéfésel and other direct labor-
related expenses. Cost of revenues was 66.8% aEwnetues for the twelve months ended Decembe2@®!0, compared to 69.5% for the twe
months ended December 31, 2009.

Domestic cost of revenues of the Company as a p&ge of its domestic net revenues were 64.1% 8ri2¥6for the twelve months enc
December 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Theedse in cost of revenues as a percentage of vextues was less than 1% due primarily tc
mix of project work. Approximately 87% and 84%tbé Companys domestic cost of revenue in both the twelve moetided December 31, 20
and 2009, respectively, resulted from in-store mancliser and field management services purchased fine Company affiliates, SMS ar
SMSI, respectively. (See Item 13Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,Qirettor Independence, above) and (See Note e
Consolidated Financial Statements — Related Paggshctions).

Internationally, the Company’cost of revenues as a percentage of its intemadtinet revenues were 70.4% and 74.9% for theve

months ended December 31, 2010, and 2009, resplyctihe cost of revenue percentage improvemedt®percentage points was primarily
to a profitable mix of product services in Japad Aastralia, partially offset by an unfavorable gat mix of business in Canada and China.
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Operating Expenses

The Companys operating expenses consist of selling, genelaaministrative expenses, depreciation and anatidiz. Selling, gener
and administrative expenses of the Company inckhatporate overhead, project management, informagohnology, executive compensat
human resource, legal and accounting expensesollbeing table sets forth the Compasydperating expenses and percentage of net revéon
the years indicated (in millions):

Year Ended December 2

2010 % 2009 %
Selling, general & administrativ $ 17.1 27.1% $ 16.1 28.(%
Depreciation and amortization 1.C 1.€ 1.1 1.6
Total operating expenses $ 18.1 28.71% $ 17.2 29.€%

The Companys domestic selling, general and administrative pgpe totaled $9.2 million for 2010 compared to $#iion in 2009. Th
increase in domestic selling, general and admatistr expenses of approximately $1.4 million or4®8.was primarily due to the incremel
spending required to support the acquisition oftthgeiness of National Marketing Services.

International selling, general and administratixpenses of the Company for the twelve months ermdecEmber 31, 2010, were $
million compared to $8.3 million for the prior yedthe decrease of approximately $350,000 or 4.2#enCompanys international selling, gene
and administrative expenses was primarily due ferge reductions in Japan of $1.1 million primadifiven by lower salary and other emplo
related expenses as a result of ownership chafigis. favorability was partially offset by increaserpenses in the Canadian market attribut
the Wings and Ink acquisition.

The Companys depreciation and amortization charges were $1lllbmfor the twelve months ended December 31, ®0dompared 1
$1.1 million for the twelve months ended DecemiderZ)09.

Interest Expense

The Companys interest expense totaled approximately $309,00@®10, compared to interest expense of approrima&t178,000 fc
2009. The increase of $131,000 resulted from irsm@dorrowings both domestically and internatignafi Australia and Canada.

Other Income

The Companys other income was approximately $21,000 for twetvenths ended December 31, 2010, compared to atheme o
approximately $582,000 for the twelve months enbBedember 31, 2009. The 2009 income resulted frdhird party litigation settlement anc
credit from counsel against prior period legal exges.
Income Taxes

The Companys income tax provision for the twelve months enBedember 31, 2010, was $263,000 resulting primdrdyn domesti
Alternative Minimum Tax, state and internationad &xpense of $61,000, $95,000 and $107,000, raspbctThe Companys income tax provisic
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009,$4&9,000 resulting primarily from tax provisionsated to international profits.

Non-Controlling Interest

The Company’s non-controlling interest income ofl$,000 and $55,000 resulted from the net operginofits of the Companyg 51%
owned subsidiaries for the twelve months ended Déee 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Net Income

The SPAR Group had a net income for 2010 of appratély $2.2 million or $0.11 per diluted share, pamed to net income for 2009
approximately $502,000, or $0.03 per diluted share.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

None.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2010Ctmpany had a net income before mamirolling interest of $2.3 million, compal
to a net income before non-controlling interes$®57,000 for the twelve months ended December 319.2

The Companys operating activities for the year ended Decen#ier2010 was $260,000, compared to net cash prbvigeoperatin
activities of $1.4 million in 2009. The decreaseapproximately $1.2 million in cash provided by ogéng activities is primarily due to increase
accounts receivable and payments of accounts payabtrued expenses and other liabilities partiaffget by decreases in other assets
increased net income.

Net cash used by the Company in investing actiwitae the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,94& million and $831,0C
respectively. The change in its net cash usedvesiting activities was a result of purchases operty and equipment and software capitaliza
including the Company’s purchases of the businé¥gings & Ink and certain non-controlling interéstsubsidiaries.

Net cash provided by the Compasyinancing activities for the year ended Decen83gr2010 was $376,000 compared with net cash
in financing activities of $743,000 for the yearded December 31, 2009. The cash provided by fimgnactivities was primarily a result of |
Company’s net borrowings on its lines of crediseffby payments on capital leases.

The above activities resulted in a decrease irChmpany’s cash and cash equivalents for the twelve momtiedDecember 31, 2010,
$736,000.

The Company had positive working capital of $4.4lioxi at December 31, 2010 compared to positivekingr capital of $252,000
December 31, 2009. The Compasgurrent ratios were 1.37 and 1.02 at Decembe2(@l0Q and 2009, respectively. The increase in wgrkiapita
and current ratio were primarily due to increaseadcounts receivable and decreases in accourablpayartially offset by reduced cash and ¢
assets and increased accrued expenses and otfil@rds

Credit Facilities:

Domestic Credit Facility (“Webster Credit Facility)(reporting period through July 5, 2010):

In January 2003, the Company (other than SGRéreign subsidiaries) and Webster Business Ceaaliporation, then known as Whitet
Business Credit Corporation (“Webster&ntered into the Third Amended and Restated Rewpl@redit and Security Agreement (as amer
collectively, the “Webster Credit Facility”Yhe Webster Credit Facility provided for a $5.0lioil revolving line of credit which matured on Mha
15, 2010. In February 2008, the Webster Creditlifagias amended to establish monthly EBITDA covasauntil September 30, 2008, and to ¢
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant for the yede@ December 31, 2008. In January 2009 the WeBstelit Facility was amended to ext
the agreement until March 15, 2009, adjust therésterate to the greater of 5%, the AlternativeeBRsite or 30 day LIBOR plus 2.75% ani
increase the limit on the capital expenditurest@$nillion. In March 2009, the Webster Credit fiacwas amended to extend the maturity t
March 15, 2010, extend the monthly Fixed ChargeeCaye Ratio covenant until March 15, 2010 and r#se=tiimit on capital expenditures
$800,000. On March 15, 2010, the Webster Creddilifawas further amended to extend the maturityd a&ontinue the monthly coven
requirements until September 15, 2010.

Borrowings were based upon a borrowing base formaslalefined in the agreement (principally 85% dfgfble” domestic accoun
receivable less certain reserves). The WebsteriiGfadility was secured by all of the assets of @menpany's domestic subsidiaries. The We
Credit Facility also limited certain expenditurgs;luding, but not limited to, capital expendituaasd other investments.

In addition, Mr. Robert G. Brown, a Director, thbédirman and a major stockholder of SGRP, and Miliditi H. Bartels, a Director, tl
Vice Chairman and a major stockholder of SGRP, iplexy personal guarantees of the Webster Creditifyaoitaling $1.0 million.

The basic interest rate under the Webster Credillifyawas the greater of i) Webster’s “AlternatiBase Rate’plus 1.0% per annui
which automatically changed with each change mad&Viebster in such Alternative Base Rate, ii) LIB@Ris 2.75% per annum, or iii) t
minimum rate imposed by Webster of 5% per annune ddtual average interest rate under the WebsastitGracility was 5% per annum for
period that commenced on January 1, 2010, and
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ended on July 6, 2010. The Webster Credit Facilias secured by substantially all of the assethhefCompany (other than SGRPforeigr
subsidiaries and their assets).

New Domestic Credit Facility (“Sterling Credit Facility”)(July 6, 2010, to present):

SGRP and certain of its domestic direct and indisebsidiaries, namely SPAR Incentive Marketing;. Ii°PlA Merchandising Co., In
Pivotal Sales Company, National Assembly Servides,, SPAR/Burgoyne Retail Services, Inc., SPAR uprdnternational, Inc., SPA
Acquisition, Inc., SPAR Trademarks, Inc., SPAR Matikg Force, Inc. and SPAR, Inc. (each a "Subsidgorrower"”, and together with SGF
collectively, the " Borrowers "), entered into avRlring Loan and Security Agreement dated as oy &j12010 (the "Loan Agreement"), w
Sterling National Bank and Cornerstone Bank aslémelers (the "Lenders"), and issued their SecuredoRing Loan Notes in the origir
maximum principal amounts of $5.0 million to StediNational Bank and $1.5 million to CornerstoneBéhe "Notes"), to document and gov
its new credit facility with them (the "Sterling &iit Facility"). The Sterling Credit Facility rigiged the Webster Credit Facility on July 6, 2!
and the first advance under such new facility wseduto fully repay and terminate the Webster Creddtlity and its documents and liens.

In addition, Mr. Robert G. Brown, a Director, thédrman and a major stockholder of SGRP, and Miliditi H. Bartels, a Director, tl
Vice Chairman and a major stockholder of SGRP, lmweeided personal guarantees of the Sterling €featility totaling $2.5 million pursuant
their Limited Continuing Guaranty in favor of thehders dated as of July 6, 2010. (the "Limited Gui1").

Revolving Loans of up to $6.5 million are availabethe Borrowers under this new Sterling Creditiltgt based upon the borrowing bi
formula defined in the Loan Agreement (principali$% of "eligible" domestic accounts receivable lesstain reserves). The Sterling Cr
Facility is secured by substantially all of the etssof the Borrowers (other than SGRP's foreignsislidiries, certain designated dome
subsidiaries, and their respective equity and asset

The domestic revolving loan balance outstandingeutide Sterling Credit Facility was approximateB.Smillion at December 31, 20:
and the revolving loan balances outstanding underWebster Credit Facility was approximately $ #hillion at December 31, 2009. As
December 31, 2010, the Company had unused aviiabiider the Sterling Credit Facility of $1.7 riolh out of the remaining maximum $:
million unused revolving line of credit.

The basic interest rate under the Sterling Credliflfy is equal to the fluctuating Prime Rate wifieirest published in the Wall Street Jou
from time to time plus one and ohef (1.50%) percent per annum, which automaticallanges with each change in such rate. The gag
interest rate on December 31, 2010, was 4.75% parm under that formula. The actual average istaegte under the Sterling Credit Facility \
4.75% per annum for the period that commenced Bn6Ji2010, and ended on December 31, 2010.

Because of the requirement to maintain a lock boangement with the Agent and the Lenders' abiititinvoke a subjective accelerat
clause at its discretion, borrowings under thelfageCredit Facility will be classified as current.

The new Sterling Credit Facility contains certainahcial and other restrictive covenants and aisotd certain expenditures by |
Borrowers, including, but not limited to, capitadpenditures and other investments. At Decembe2810 the Company was in compliance \
such covenants and does not expect to be in \dolati future measurement dates. However, therbeawo assurances that the Company will n:
in violation of certain covenants in the futuredastould the Company be in violation; there camdassurances that the Lenders will issue we
for any future violations.

International Credit Facilities :

The Japanese subsidiary SPAR FM Japan,driné of credit agreement totaling 100 million Yenapproximately $1.1 million (bas
upon the exchange rate at November 30, 2009) waeltad on November 30, 2009, in connection witlRBG increase in ownership from 50%
100%.

In 2008, the Australian subsidiary, SPARFACTS Aaigtr Pty. Ltd., entered into a revolving line ofedit arrangement wi
Commonwealth Bank of Australia (CBA) for $2.0 nulti (Australian). On September 11, 2009, the liferedit arrangement was amende
reduce the line of credit to $1.5 million (Austeal), or approximately $1.5 million (based upon #xehange rate at December 31, 2010
December 31, 2010, SPARFACTS Australia Pty. Ltd.
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had $540,000 (Australian), or approximately $548,0futstanding under the line of credit (based ubenexchange rate at that date). The awv
interest rate under this facility was 10.2% perwanrior the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.

On October 20, 2006, SPAR Canada Company, a wlaliyed subsidiary, entered into a secured credi&eagent with Royal Bank
Canada providing for a Demand Operating Loan fonaimum borrowing of $750,000 (Canadian) or apprately $750,000 (based upon
exchange rate at December 31, 2010). The Demanda@ue Loan provides for borrowing based upon aniga as defined in the agreerr
(principally 75% of eligible accounts receivablsdecertain deductions) and a minimum total deliagible net worth covenant. On March
2008, Royal Bank of Canada amended the secured agrdement to reduce the maximum borrowing to0$8@0 (Canadian) however, in Octa
2008, Royal Bank of Canada reinstated the loant ltmi$750,000 (Canadian). At December 31, 2010, BR¥anada Company had $623,
(Canadian or USD), outstanding under the line eflitr(based upon the exchange rate at Decemb&03D). The average interest rate undel
line of credit was 4.0% per annum for the twelventhe ended December 31, 2010.

The Company was in compliance with the minimumltdébt to tangible net worth covenant under this Ibf credit at December 31, 20

At the March 2010 quarterly board meeting of SGRE,Board of Directors authorized the Company tusebridge financing for futu
acquisition efforts in an amount not to exceed $hilion. On March 26, 2010 the Company signed ar@nd Security Agreement an
Promissory Note with Michael Anthony Holdings, Ifier a total of $1.0 million and the Company reegiits first advance of $500,000 which
used for the acquisition of certain assets of aa@em company that closed on April 1, 2010. Thetigmramended such loan agreemer
November 5, 2010, to reduce the applicable intei@ss. The remaining $500,000 balance of theiraily-contemplated loan would have b
advanced to the Company upon request and satwsfiagticertain conditions prior to maturity, but tBempany currently does not expect to rec
that advance. The loan matures and is due iofuMarch 31, 2011. The Company currently plangpay the loan in full on maturity.

The loan is payable on an interest only basiseatdte of 9.5% per annum (originally 14% per anquior to such amendment). If the lc
is not paid in full by March 31, 2011, the intereste automatically increases to 14% per annumawhiould have been 24% per annum pric
such amendment). The average interest rate ®idhn was 13.1% per annum for the twelve montde@m®ecember 31, 2010.

In addition to the cost of interest, the Companidpat closing, to Michael Anthony Holding, Inc.fee of $10,000 in cash and iss
75,000 warrants to purchase 75,000 shares of tiRPSGmmon Stock. The warrants are exercisabletax®(2) years at the market price of $(
per Common share (SPARtlosing stock price on that date). The Compaagnded a $52,000 expense for the cost of the ntardauring 2010. |
addition, the loan is secured by the stock of S”¥Rada Company.

The Companys international model is to form a joint venturédsidiary with a local investor having local merctiming expertise ar
combine the local investor's knowledge of the locerket with the Company’ proprietary software and expertise in the merdisamg an
marketing business. In 2001, the Company estalalighdirst international subsidiary and has coméd this strategy. As of this filing, the Comp
is currently operating in Japan, Canada, SoutlcAfrindia, Romania, China, Australia and New Zealfmnough 7 active international subsidiaries.

Certain of these international subsidiaries areginaily profitable while others are operating dbss. None of these entities have ex
cash reserves. In the event of continued lossesCtimpany may find it necessary to provide additi@ash infusions into these subsidiaries.

Management believes that based upon (among othrs)hits anticipated business, revenues and rablgs collections and the exist
credit facilities, the Company’s sources of casdilability will be sufficient to support ongoing emations over the next twelve months.
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Certain Contractual Obligations

The following table contains a summary of certafntte Companys contractual obligations by category as of Decen®ie 2010 (i
thousands).

Payments due by Perioc
Less than 1 More than 5
Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Credit Facilities $ 5,26% | $ 5,26 - - —
Capital Lease Obligatior 252 99 | $ 154 - —
Operating Lease Obligatiol 2,85¢ 78C 1,60¢ | $ 467 —
Total $ 8,36¢ | $ 6,142 | $ 1,76C | $ 467 —

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures aout Market Risk
Not applicable.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.(T) Controls and Procedures

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing anidtaiaing adequate internal control over finanai@porting for th:
registrant, as such term is defined in ExchangeRudes 13a-15(f) and 15t5(f). Management has designed such internal cbatrer financie
reporting by the Company to provide reasonable rasse regarding the reliability of financial repogt and the preparation of consolide
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principléhe United States of America.

The Company’s management has evaluated the e#eetds of the Company’s internal control over fir@neporting using thelfiterna
Control — Integrated Framework (1992)” created hg Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadway Commission (“COSQ”
framework. Based on this evaluation, managemesitchacluded that internal controls over financegarting were effective as of December
2010.

Under applicable Securities Law, the Company isyebtrequired to obtain an attestation report ftbmmCompany's independent regist
public accounting firm regarding internal contraleo financial reporting, and accordingly such aestation has not been obtained or include
this Annual Report.

Management's Evaluation of Disclosure Controls andProcedures

The Company’s chief executive officer and chiefafigial officer have each reviewed and evaluateceffectiveness of the Compansy’
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 18g{e)) as of the end of the period covered by riyort, a
required by Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(b) and RGt:16(b). Based on that evaluation, the chief exeeutifficer and chief financial officer ha
each concluded that the Compangurrent disclosure controls and procedures dgetafe to insure that the information requirec®disclosed
the Company in reports it files, or submits under Exchange Act were recorded, processed, sumrdaaizeé reported within the time per
specified in the Commissiomtules and forms. Disclosure controls and proesiinclude, without limitation, controls and prduees designed
ensure that information required to be disclosedabyissuer in the reports that it files or subnuitgler the Exchange Act is accumulated
communicated to the issuemanagement, including its principal executive pridcipal financial officers, or persons performisimilar functions
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regardieqguired disclosure.
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Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in the Company’s iteom#rols over financial reporting that occurradtidg the Company fourth quarte
of its 2010 fiscal year that materially affected,aoe reasonably likely to materially affect, then@panys internal controls over financial reporti
except for completion of the improvements the Comyphad undertaken with respect to its Indian suasjts period end closing and report
procedures related to accumulation and reportingnoiual financial results and disclosures (as mdhe described in the Compars’/Amendmer
No. 2 to its 2009 Annual Report on Formr-K as filed with the SEC on October 8, 2010.
Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

Reference is made to the information set forthhima Companys definitive proxy statement, which will be fileditiv the Securities at
Exchange Commission for its Annual Meeting of Shatders, presently scheduled to be held on May2Pé.1, pursuant to Regulation 14A
later than 120 days after the end of our fiscalryedoich information is incorporated by referencethis Annual Report. Notwithstanding
foregoing, information appearing in the sectionsé&utive Compensation Report of the Compensatiani@ittee” and “Audit Committee Report”
shall not be deemed to be incorporated by referamttés Annual Report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Reference is made to the information set forthhima Companys definitive proxy statement, which will be fileditiv the Securities at
Exchange Commission for its Annual Meeting of Shalders, presently scheduled to be held on May2R8]1, pursuant to Regulation 14A
later than 120 days after the end of our fiscalryednich information is incorporated by referencethis Annual Report. Notwithstanding
foregoing, information appearing in the sectiongé€&utive Compensation Report of the Compensatiomr@ittee” and “Audit Committee Report”
shall not be deemed to be incorporated by referamttés Annual Report.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Reference is made to the information set forthhima Companys definitive proxy statement, which will be fileditiv the Securities at
Exchange Commission for its Annual Meeting of Shatders, presently scheduled to be held on May2Pé.1, pursuant to Regulation 14A
later than 120 days after the end of our fiscalryednich information is incorporated by referencethis Annual Report. Notwithstanding
foregoing, information appearing in the sectiongé€utive Compensation Report of the Compensatiomr@ittee” and “Audit Committee Report”
shall not be deemed to be incorporated by referanttés Annual Report.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaatns, and Director Independence

Reference is made to the information set forthhima Companys definitive proxy statement, which will be fileditiv the Securities at
Exchange Commission for its Annual Meeting of Shatders, presently scheduled to be held on May2Pé.1, pursuant to Regulation 14A
later than 120 days after the end of our fiscalryedoich information is incorporated by referencethis Annual Report. Notwithstanding
foregoing, information appearing in the sectionsé&utive Compensation Report of the Compensatiani@ittee” and “Audit Committee Report”
shall not be deemed to be incorporated by referamttés Annual Report.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Reference is made to the information set forthhima Companys definitive proxy statement, which will be fileditiv the Securities at
Exchange Commission for its Annual Meeting of Shalders, presently scheduled to be held on May2R8]1, pursuant to Regulation 14A
later than 120 days after the end of our fiscalryednich information is incorporated by referencethis Annual Report. Notwithstanding
foregoing, information appearing in the sectionsé&utive Compensation Report of the Compensatiani@ittee” and “Audit Committee Report”
shall not be deemed to be incorporated by referamttés Annual Report.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

1.

Index to Financial Statements filed as parf this report:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings
— Rehmann Robsa
— Nagesh Behl & Cc
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, a8tilDecember 31, 20!
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseicember 31, 2010, and December 31, .
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yeargdrdecember 31, 2010, and December 31, .
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yermiled December 31, 2010, and December 31,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:
Financial Statement Schedule.
Schedule 11 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts fbe two years ended December 31, 2010
Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of SPAR Group, Inceferred to therein under its former name of PIA éh@ndising Service
Inc.), as amended ("SGRP"), incorporated by referen SGRP's Registration Statement on Forin(Begistration Nc
33-80429), as filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission ("SEC") on December 14, 1995 (the tF8¢L"), anc
the Certificate of Amendment filed with the Secrgtaf State of the State of Delaware on July 8,9198hich, amon
other things, changes SGRP's name to SPAR Groap, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 8R8's Quarter
Report on Form 10-Q for the 3rd Quarter ended Seipde 30, 1999).
3.2 Amended and Restated Bgws of SPAR Group, Inc., adopted on May 18, 2G8tamended through August 5, 2
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoFRorm 8-K, as filed with the SEC on August 10,20
3.3 Amended and Restated Charter of the Audit Commdfabe Board of Directors of SPAR Group, Inc., pdal on May 1¢
2004 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's CurrepbR on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on May 2004).
3.4 Charter of the Compensation Committee of the Baazfrdirectors of SPAR Group, Inc., adopted on May, 280
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoRorm 8-K, as filed with the SEC on May 27, 2004
35 Charter of the Governance Committee of the BoardDoéctors of SPAR Group, Inc., adopted on May 280

(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoFRorm K, as filed with the SEC on May 27, 200
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3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

SPAR Group, Inc. Statement of Policy Respectingl&tolder Communications with Directors, adoptedvay 18, 200.
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoFRorm K, as filed with the SEC on May 27, 200

SPAR Group, Inc. Statement of Policy Regarding &oe Qualifications and Nominations, adopted on May 200:
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoFRorm K, as filed with the SEC on May 27, 200

Certificate of Designation of Series "A" Preferr8tbck of SPAR Group, Inc., As of March 28, 2008c@rporated b
reference to SGRP's Annual Report on FornK1for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 jled With the SEC o
March 31, 2008)

Registration Rights Agreement entered into as nfidey 21, 1992, by and between RVM Holding CorgoratRVM/PIA,
a California Limited Partnership, The Riordan Foatimh and CreditanstaBankverine (incorporated by reference to
Form S-1).

Amended and Restated Series A Preferred Stock Sptise Agreement by and among SGRP, Robert G. Brdiilliam
H. Bartels and SPAR Management Services, Inc.,\aad&e corporation ("SMSI"), dated September 30, 2688 effectiv
as of March 31, 2008 (incorporated by referenc€@&RP's Current Report on FormK8dated October 6, 2008, as fi
with the SEC on October 10, 2008).

Series A Preferred Stock Subscription Agreemenaiby among SGRP, SP/R Inc. Defined Benefit Pensian, Rcting
through Robert G. Brown, its Trustee, WHB Servides, Defined Benefit Trust, acting through Williakh Bartels, it
Trustee, and WHB Services, Inc. Investment Savihgst, acting through William H. Bartels, its Trest affiliates of Mi
Robert G. Brown and Mr. William H. Bartels, dateépBmber 30, 2008, and effective as of September20a¢
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current Repofiorm 8K dated October 6, 2008, as filed with the SEC atobe
10, 2008).

SGRP's Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding S@yutions for New Stock Options dated August 24, 2@D&orporate
by reference to Exhibits 99(a)(1)(A) through (G)SBRP's Schedule TO dated August 24, 2009, aswviiddthe SEC o
August 25, 2009 ("SGRP's SC TO-I")).

Form of SGRP's Common Stock Certificatediporated by reference to SGRP's BEffective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration388-162657) as filed with the SEC on Februarg01,1).

Form of SGRP's Preferred Stock Certificateqrporated by reference to SGRP's Bfiective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration388-162657) as filed with the SEC on Februarg01,1).

SPAR Group, Inc. 2008 Stock Compensation Planct¥ie as of May 29, 2008, and as amended througi 28a 200!
(the "SGRP 2008 Plan") (incorporated by referemc&GRP's Current Report on FornK8&8lated June 4, 2009, as fi
with the SEC on June 4, 2009).

Summary Description and Prospectus dated Augus2@9, respecting the SPAR Group, Inc. 2008 Stocin@nsatio
Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference tabiExd8(a)(1)(G) to SGRP's SC TO-I).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Contract for newmvards under the SGRP 2008 Plan (incorporated feyerece t
SGRP's first and final amendment to its SC [T@ Schedule TO I/A dated October 20, 2009, adfivith the SEC c
October 22, 2009).

2000 Stock Option Plan, as amended through May2@66 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's Quarfedgort ol
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2806led with the SEC on November 14, 2006).

2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporateéfeyence to SGRP's Proxy Statement for SGRP'sahstackholder
meeting held on August 2, 2001, as filed with tiECSn July 12, 2001).

2001 Consultant Stock Purchase Plan (incorporayexkierence to SGRP's Proxy Statement for SGRPai&inmeetin
held on August 2, 2001, as filed with the SEC dy 1@, 2001).
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Amended and Restated Change in Control SeveranceeAmgnt between William H. Bartels and SGRP, dated
December 22, 2008 (incorporated by reference to B&Rnnual Report on Form X0{or the year ended December
2009, as filed with the SEC on April 15, 2010).

Amended and Restated Change in Control SeveranceeA®nt between Gary S. Raymond and SGRP, dated
December 30, 2008 (incorporated by reference to B&Rnnual Report on Form X0{or the year ended December
2009, as filed with the SEC on April 15, 2010).

Amended and Restated Change in Control SeveranmeAgent between Kori G. Belzer and SGRP, dated Beaembe
31, 2008 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's AnReport on Form 106 for the year ended December 31, 200¢
filed with the SEC on April 15, 2010).

Amended and Restated Change in Control SeveranaseAgnt between Patricia Franco and SGRP, datetilecembe
31, 2008 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's AnReport on Form 1@ for the year ended December 31, 200¢
filed with the SEC on April 15, 2010

Amended and Restated Change in Control SeveranceeAgnt between James R. Segreto and SGRP, datef
December 20, 2008 (incorporated by reference to B&Rnnual Report on Form X0{or the year ended December
2009, as filed with the SEC on April 15, 201

Amended and Restated Field Service Agreement dated effective as of January 1, 2004, by and betw®&RAF
Marketing Services, Inc., and SPAR Marketing Fotne, (incorporated by reference to SGRP's Quartedport on Fort
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004, as filgd the SEC on May 21, 2004).

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Field 8erigreement between SPAR Marketing Services, mtevad
corporation (" SMS "), and SPAR Marketing Force;.Jra Nevada corporation (" SMI;, dated September 30, 2008,
effective as of September 24, 2008 (the " First Admeent") (incorporated by reference to SGRP's Currentdrepr
Form 8-K dated October 6, 2008, as filed with tESn October 10, 2008).

Amended and Restated Field Management Agreemeet! datd effective as of January 1, 2004, by and éerwSPAI
Management Services, Inc., and SPAR Marketing Fdrae (incorporated by reference to SGRP's Qugrieeport o1
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004ijes with the SEC on May 21, 2004).

Amended and Restated Programming and Support Agmeteby and between SPAR Marketing Force, Inc. aR4R
Infotech, Inc., dated and effective as of Septeniser2007 (incorporated by reference to SGRP'se@uiReport on For
8-K, as filed with the SEC on November 14, 2007).

Trademark License Agreement dated as of July 89,189 and between SPAR Marketing Services, Incd 8RAF
Trademarks, Inc. (incorporated by reference to S&RRnual Report on Form 1-for the fiscal year ended Decem
31, 2002, as filed with the SEC on March 31, 20

Trademark License Agreement dated as of July 89,189 and between SPAR Infotech, Inc., and SPARI&mzarks, Inc
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Annual Reporform 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002led
with the SEC on March 31, 200:

Master Lease Agreement by and between SPAR Matk@&grvices, Inc. and SPAR Marketing Force, Incedads c
November 2004 relating to lease of handheld compgaipment (incorporated by reference to SGRPisudhReport o
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3042@s filed with the SEC on April 12, 2005).

Amended and Restated Equipment Leasing ScheduladdMaster Lease Agreement by and between SPAR dfiag
Services, Inc., and SPAR Marketing Force, Inc.edas of November 1, 2004, relating to lease ofihald compute
equipment (incorporated by reference to SGRP's @@amReport on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 31, 200t
filed with the SEC on May 18, 2005).

Amended and Restated Equipment Leasing Scheduledd®aster Lease Agreement by and between SPAR dfiag
Services, Inc., and SPAR Marketing Force, Inc.edaas of January 4, 2005, relating to lease of elddcompute
equipment (incorporated by reference to SGRP's t@iamReport on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 31, 200¢
filed with the SEC on May 18, 200¢
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10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Amended and Restated Equipment Leasing Scheduledd®Baster Lease Agreement by and between SPAR dfiag
Services, Inc., and SPAR Marketing Force, Inc.edaas of January 31, 2005, relating to lease otifmald compute
equipment (incorporated by reference to SGRP's @amReport on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 31, 200t
filed with the SEC on May 18, 2005).

Equipment Leasing Schedule 004 to Master Leaseehgeat by and between SPAR Marketing Services, &rd, SPAF
Marketing Force, Inc., dated as of March 24, 20@fating to lease of handheld computer equipmertdofporated b
reference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on Forn@Q1fer the quarter ended March 31, 2005, as fileth wie SEC on Me
18, 2005).

Master Lease Agreement by and between SPAR Madk&#nvices, Inc. and SPAR Canada Company datefl Jmsoar
2005 relating to lease of handheld computer equiprfiecorporated by reference to SGRP's Annual RepoForm 10K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, ad filith the SEC on April 12, 2005).

Amended and Restated Equipment Leasing ScheduledOMaster Lease Agreement by and between SPAR dfiag
Services, Inc., and SPAR Canada Company dated danofry 4, 2005, relating to lease of handheldpeben equipmel
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Repo Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2005, as fileth
the SEC on May 18, 2005).

Bill of Sale and Lease Termination Under Certaimettules to Master Equipment Leases by and among, SRAF
Canada Company, a Nova Scotia corporation, and 8A&l September 30, 2008, and effective as of Bdyetie24, 200
(the "Bill of Sale") (incorporated by referenceSGRP's Current Report on FornkK8dated October 6, 2008, as filed v
the SEC on October 10, 2008).

Master Lease Agreement by and between SPAR Matke®iervices, Inc. ("SMS"), and SGRP's subsidiaryAR
Marketing Force, Inc. ("SMF"), dated as of July2008, relating to leases of handheld computer egeiipt (incorporate
by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on Forn@Q1fo+ the quarter ended March 31, 2009, as fileth whe SEC o
May 15, 2009).

Equipment Leasing Schedule No. 001 to Master Léageement by and between SMS and SMF dated adyfl,J200¢
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Repo Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, as fileth
the SEC on May 15, 2009).

Equipment Leasing Schedule No. 002 to Master LAaseement by and between SMS and SMF dated aspiéi@éer 1
2008 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's Quarkelyort on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, as
with the SEC on May 15, 2009).

Joint Venture Agreement dated as of March 26, 2094and between Solutions Integrated Marketing iSesvLtd. an
SPAR Group International, Inc., respecting the ©oafion's subsidiary in India (incorporated by refeee to SGRF
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ehlecember 31, 2004, as filed with the SEC on AlRil 2005).

Joint Venture Agreement dated as of May 1, 2001,abg between Paltac Corporation and SGRP, respeitti
Corporation's subsidiary in Japan (incorporateddfgrence to SGRP's Annual Report on FornK1for the fiscal yee
ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the SEC il A2, 2005).
Agreement on Amendment dated as of August 1, 2B94nd between SGRP and SPAR FM Japan, Inc., rixsgehe
Corporation's subsidiary in Japan (incorporateddfgrence to SGRP's Annual Report on FornKlfor the fiscal yee
ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the SEC qonil A2, 2005).

Joint Venture Agreement dated as of January 265,200 and between Best Mark Investments Holdings Ahd SPAI

International Ltd., respecting the Corporation'sssdiary in China (incorporated by reference to $&Rnnual Report ¢
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iled Wwith the SEC on April 12, 200%
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10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

1041

10.42

10.43

Joint Venture Agreement dated as of March 29, 20p&nd between FACE AND COSMETIC TRADING SERVIC
PTY LIMITED and SPAR International, Ltd., respecfirthe Corporation's subsidiary in Australia (incmgied b
reference to SGRP's Annual Report on FornK1for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006,led ith the SEC o
April 2, 2007).

Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement by and amongrarice Holdings, Inc. and SPAR Incentive Marketihg.,
effective as of June 30, 2002 (incorporated byresfee to SGRP's Quarterly Report on FormQLr the quarter end:
June 30, 2002, as filed with the SEC on AugusD?).

Revolving Credit, Guaranty and Security Agreementamd among Performance Holdings, Inc. and SPARtiee
Marketing, Inc., effective as of June 30, 2002 ¢iporated by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Repofam 10 for the
quarter ended June 30, 2002, as filed with the 8&8ugust 14, 2002).

Term Loan, Guaranty and Security Agreement by andrg Performance Holdings, Inc. and SPAR Incentaeketing
Inc., effective as of June 30, 2002 (incorporatgddference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on FornQ1f@r the quarte
ended June 30, 2002, as filed with the SEC on Autfis2002)

Promissory Note in the principal amount of $764,201by STIMULYS, Inc., in favor of SPAR Incentivedvketing, Inc.
dated as of September 10, 2004 (incorporated Breefe to SGRP's Annual Report on FormKlpr the fiscal yee
ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the SEC il A2, 2005).

Payoff and Release Letter by and between STIMULMSE,, and SPAR Incentive Marketing, Inc., datecbhSeptembe
10, 2004 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's AnReport on Form 10 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2
as filed with the SEC on April 12, 200!

Sales Proceeds Agreement by and between STIMULYS,dnd SPAR Incentive Marketing, Inc., dated aSefptembe
10, 2004 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's AnReport on Form 10 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2
as filed with the SEC on April 12, 200!

Third Amended and Restated Revolving Credit andutgcAgreement dated as of January 24, 2003 (asnded, th
"Webster Credit Agreement”), by and among Webstesifess Credit Corporation, formerly known as WialeBusines
Credit Corporation ("Webster") with SGRP, SPAR Maikg Force, Inc., SPAR, Inc., SPAR/Burgoyne Re&slvices
Inc., SPAR Incentive Marketing, Inc., SPAR Tradeksaidnc., SPAR Marketing, Inc. (DE), SPAR Marketingc. (NV),
SPAR Acquisition, Inc., SPAR Group Internationai¢c SPAR Technology Group, Inc., SPAR/PIA Reta&h&es, Inc
Retail Resources, Inc., Pivotal Field Services,IRtA Merchandising Co., Inc., Pacific Indoor DiaplCo. and Pivot
Sales Company (as such borrower list may be ameficed time to time, collectively, the "SPAR Borroksg),
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Annual Reporform 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002jlad
with the SEC on March 31, 2003).

Consent, Joinder, Release and Amendment AgreemAemer(dment No. 1) to the Webster Credit Agreementragnthe
SPAR Webster Borrowers and Webster dated as oft®ct®l, 2003 (incorporated by reference to SGRRIsuAl Repo
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2803, as filed with the SEC on March 30, 2004).

Waiver and Amendment Letter (Amendment No. 2) s\Webster Credit Agreement among the SPAR Webstep®er:
and Webster dated as of January 1, 2004 (incomgxbiay reference to SGRP's Amended Annual RepoRoom 10K/A
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, ad filith the SEC on June 28, 2004).

Waiver And Amendment No. 3 To Third Amended And faesd Revolving Credit And Security Agreemernte(, to the

Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebsteoBers and Webster dated as of March 26, 2004 (purated b
reference to SGRP's Current Report on Fo-K, as filed with the SEC on May 26, 200¢
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10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

Waiver And Amendment No. 4 To Third Amended And faesd Revolving Credit And Security Agreemente(, to the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebsteroBers and Webster dated as of May 17, 2004 (porated b
reference to SGRP's Current Report on Form 8-Kilexswith the SEC on May 26, 2004).

Waiver and Amendment No. 5 to Third Amended andt&®ed Revolving Credit and Security Agreemenme(, to the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebsteroBers and Webster dated as of August 20, 20@b(jporate:
by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on Forn@Q1f@r the quarter ended June 30, 2004, as fileth wie SEC o
August 23, 2004).

Waiver and Amendment No. 6 to Third Amended andt&®ed Revolving Credit and Security Agreemene(, to the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebsteroBers and Webster dated as of November 15,
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Repo Form 10Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, ad
with the SEC on November 17, 2004).

Waiver to the Third Amended and Restated RevolMirgdit and Security Agreementig. , to the Webster Crel
Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrowers andst¥elblated as of March 31, 2005 (incorporated Isreace t
SGRP's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quameed March 31, 2005, as filed with the SEC ory &, 2005).

Waiver to the Third Amended and Restated RevolM@rgdit and Security Agreementig. , to the Webster Crel
Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrowers ands¥ebated as of May 11, 2005, with respect tditdwal quarte
ended March 31, 2005 (incorporated by referenceG&RP's Quarterly Report on Form QOfor the quarter ended Mai
31, 2005, as filed with the SEC on May 18, 20!

Waiver to the Third Amended and Restated RevolM@rgdit and Security Agreementig. , to the Webster Crel
Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrowers andsWeldated as of August 10, 2005, with respech&fisca
quarter ended June 30, 2005 (incorporated by mederéo SGRP's Quarterly Report on FormQ@er the quarter end:
June 30, 2005, as filed with the SEC on Augus2DBp).

Waiver to the Third Amended and Restated RevolMiirgdit and Security Agreementig. , to the Webster Crel
Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrowers andsWellated as of November 10, 2005, with respethéddisca
quarter ended September 30, 2005 (incorporatecetgyence to SGRP's Quarterly Report on FornQlfor the quarte
ended September 30, 2005, as filed with the SERawember 14, 2005).

Amendment No. 7 to the Third Amended and RestatedoRing Credit and Security Agreement.€. , to the Webstt
Credit Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrovegrd Webster dated as of January 18, 2006 (incdgmbray
reference to SGRP's Current Report on Form 8-KiJeswith the SEC on January 26, 2006).

Waiver And Amendment No. 8 To Third Amended And fae=d Revolving Credit And Security Agreemente(, to the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebstemBers and Webster dated as of March 28, 200'h megpect t
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference to SGRP's Annual Report on Forr{ 1@-year ende
December 31, 2006, as filed with the SEC on Apr2@07).

Waiver And Amendment No. 9 To Third Amended And faesd Revolving Credit And Security Agreemerte(, to the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebsteroBers and Webster dated as of May 18, 2007, wispect t
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (incorpdral reference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on FtOHY for the
quarter ended March 31, 2007, as filed with the $SEG®ay 21, 2007).

Limited Guaranty of Robert G. Brown respecting aiertobligations of the SPAR Webster Borrowers urtier Webste
Credit Agreement in favor of Webster dated as of/NI&, 2007 (incorporated by reference to SGRP'st@up Report o
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007ijed with the SEC on May 21, 2007).

Limited Guaranty of William H. Bartels respectingrain obligations of the SPAR Webster Borrowerdarthe Webst

Credit Agreement in favor of Webster dated as of/NI8, 2007 (incorporated by reference to SGRP'st@uy Report o
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 200Tijes with the SEC on May 21, 2007).
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10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

Waiver And Amendment No. 10 To Third Amended AndcsR&ed Revolving Credit And Security Agreement. (ite the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebstermBers and Webster dated as of August 1, 200h regpect t
the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007 (incorpdrayereference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on Fd#Q Tor the quarte
ended June 30, 2007, as filed with the SEC on Aug@s2007)

Waiver And Amendment No. 11 To Third Amended Ands&ed Revolving Credit And Security Agreement. (ite the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebstaoBers and Webster dated as of November 16, 2007 respec
to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (incatpd by reference to SGRP's Quarterly Report amF®-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2007, as filed witls#€& on November 19, 2007).

Waiver And Amendment No. 12 To Third Amended AndsR&ed Revolving Credit And Security Agreement. (ite the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebstetoBers and Webster dated as of February 12, 2008, respec
to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 (incatpd by reference to SGRP's Annual Report on FOH{ for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, as filed thighSEC on March 31, 2008).

Waiver And Amendment No. 13 To Third Amended AndsR&ed Revolving Credit And Security Agreement. (ite the
Webster Credit Agreement) among the SPAR WebsteoBers and Webster dated as of August 14, 2008, ispect t
the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2008 (incorpdrayereference to SGRP's Quarterly Report on Fa#Q Tor the quarte
ended June 30, 2008, as filed with the SEC on Autis2008).

Amendment No. 14 To Third Amended And Restated Ré&wvp Credit And Security Agreement (i.e., to theeliéte
Credit Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrovegrd Webster dated as of January 23, 2009 (incdgmbray
reference to SGRP's Annual Report on FornK1f@r the year ended December 31, 2009, as filat thie SEC on Apr
15, 2010).

Amendment No. 15 To Third Amended And Restated Ré&wvyp Credit And Security Agreement (i.e., to theellgte
Credit Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borrovaerd Webster dated as of Marchl5, 2009 (incorporatg
reference to SGRP's Annual Report on FornK1f@r the year ended December 31, 2009, as filat tie SEC on Apr
15, 2010).

Amendment No. 16 To Third Amended And Restated Ré&wvp Credit And Security Agreement (i.e., to theeliéte
Credit Agreement) among the SPAR Webster Borroveard Webster dated as of March 15, 2010 (incorpdrat
reference to SGRP's Annual Report on FornK1f@r the year ended December 31, 2009, as filat thie SEC on Apr
15, 2010).

Revolving Loan and Security Agreement dated awubyf 8, 2010 (the "Sterling Loan Agreement”), by aardong SGRI
and certain of its direct and indirect subsidigriesmely SPAR Incentive Marketing, Inc., PIA Merol&sing Co., Inc
Pivotal Sales Company, National Assembly Services., SPAR/Burgoyne Retail Services, Inc., SPAR up
International, Inc., SPAR Acquisition, Inc., SPARadlemarks, Inc., SPAR Marketing Force, Inc. and BPWc. (each
"Subsidiary Borrower", and together with SGRP, ediively, the "SPAR Sterling Borrowers"), and StegINational Bank
as Agent (the "Sterling Agent"), and Sterling NatdbBank and Cornerstone Bank, as lenders (coliggti the "Sterlin
Lenders") (incorporated by reference to SGRP'sé&iiReport on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC oly 12, 2010).

Secured Revolving Loan Note in the original maximprmcipal amount of $5,000,000.00 issued by th&RSFSterling
Borrowers to Sterling National Bank pursuant tod@overned by) the Sterling Loan Agreement andddateof July ¢
2010 (incorporated by reference to SGRP's CurrepbR on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on July 2@10).

Secured Revolving Loan Note in the original maximprmcipal amount of $1,500,000.00 issued by thé&RSFSterling
Borrowers to Cornerstone Bank pursuant to (and m@eeby) the Sterling Loan Agreement and datedfakily 6, 201!
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoFRorm 8-K, as filed with the SEC on July 12, @01

Limited Continuing Guaranty of the obligations bEtSPAR Sterling Borrowers under the Sterling Légneement fror

Robert G. Brown and William H. Bartels in favor tife Sterling Lenders dated as of July 6, 2010 (pmated b
reference to SGRP's Current Report on Fo-K, as filed with the SEC on July 12, 201
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10.67
10.68
10.69

10.70

14.1
14.2

211
23.1
23.2
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

Confirmation of Credit Facilities Letter by RoyalaBk of Canada in favor of SPAR Canada Company dased
October 17, 2006 (incorporated by reference to S&RRnual Report on Form 1Kfor the fiscal year ended Decem
31, 20086, as filed with the SEC on April 2, 20C

General Security Agreement by SPAR Canada Compafgvdr of Royal Bank of Canada dated as of Oct@ge200!
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Annual Repofform 10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006jled
with the SEC on April 2, 2007

Waiver Letter and Amendment by and between RoyatkBaf Canada Company, dated as of March 31,
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Annual Repoform 10-K, as filed with the SEC on March 31080

Debtor Finance Agreement dated as of May 24, 289@Gand among Bendingo Bank Limited ACN and SPARF&
Pty Ltd. together with Bendingo Bank Limited ACNa8tlard Terms and Conditions (incorporated by refs¥etc
SGRP's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quameed March 31, 2008, as filed with the SEC ory ¥, 2008).

Code of Ethical Conduct for the Directors, Senigeé&utives and Employees, of SPAR Group, Inc., dMeg 1, 200
(incorporated by reference to SGRP's Current RepoRorm 8-K, as filed with the SEC on May 5, 2004)

Statement of Policy Regarding Personal Securitragagactions in SGRP Stock and Non-Public Infornmatés adopted
and restated on May 1, 2004, and as further ametihdedgh March 10, 2011 (as filed herewith).

List of Subsidiaries (as filed herewitl

Consent of Rehmann Robson (as filed herew

Consent of Nitin Mittalan & Co. (as filed herew)tl

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (as filed herewitr
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (as filed herewitr
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (as filed herewitr
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 (as filed herewitr
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this amendr
to the report to be signed on its behalf by theausigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SPAR Group, Inc

By: /s/ Gary S. Raymon

Gary S. Raymon
Chief Executive Office

Date: March 15, 201
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this amendment to the reportiieesn signed below by the followi
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in thecgitips indicated.
SIGNATURE TITLE
/sl Gary S. Raymon Chief Executive Officer and Direct

Gary S. Raymon
Date: March 15, 201

/s/ Robert G. Browi Chairman of the Board and Direc!
Robert G. Browi
Date: March 15, 201

[s/ William H. Bartels Vice Chairman and Directc
William H. Bartels
Date: March 15, 201

[s/ Jack W. Partridg Director
Jack W. Partridg
Date: March 15, 201

Isl Jerry B. Gilber Director
Jerry B. Gilber

Date: March 15, 201

/sl Lorrence T. Kella Director
Lorrence T. Kellar
Date: March 15, 201

/sl C. Manly Molpus Director
C. Manly Molpus
Date: March 15, 201

[s/ James R. Segre Chief Financial Officer
James R. Segre Treasurer and Secretary (Principal Financial ancbnting Officer)
Date: March 15, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfmm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Tarrytown, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaried &eocember 31, 2010 and 2009, and
related consolidated statements of income, stodenslequity, and cash flows for years then ended. Oditaalso included the financial staten
schedule for these years as listed in the indekeat 15. These consolidated financial statements sohedule are the responsibility of
Companys management. Our responsibility is to expresspémian on these consolidated financial statementsszhedule based on our audits.
did not audit the financial statements of SPAR 8Bohs India Private Limited as of and for the yeamsled December 31, 2010 and 2009. T
statements reflect total assets constituting 5%7&awf consolidated total assets as of Decembe2@®ll0 and 2009, respectively, and total reve
constituting 5% and 9% of total consolidated reeffor the years then ended, respectively. Suchdiah statements were audited by anc
auditor whose report has been furnished to uspanapinion, insofar as it relates to the amount¢fuided for SPAR Solutions India Private Limi
for 2010 and 2009, is based solely on the repathie@bther auditor.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBo(United States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the consalifiatincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the consolidated financial statem
An audit also includes assessing the accountimgciples used and significant estimates made by genant, as well as evaluating the ow
financial statement presentation. We believe toaaodits and the report of the other auditor pte\a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the repoftthe other auditor for 2010 and 2009, the consdéid financial statements referred to al
present fairly, in all material respects, the cdidsbed financial position of SPAR Group, Inc. afdbsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and :
and the consolidated results of their operatiorts their cash flows for the for the years then endedonformity with U.S. generally accep
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, théated financial schedule for those years, whenidened in relation to the consolidated finan
statements taken as a whole presents fairly, imaterial respects, the information set forth threre

/s/ Rehmann Robsc

Troy, Michigan
March 15, 2011




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SPAR Solutions Merchandising Private Limited
New Delhi, India

The board of directors and stockholders of SPARitBnis Merchandising Private Limited

We have ranstated the accompanying balance sheets of SPARI@®s Merchandising Private Limited, a compangarporated under the laws
India, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 (Audite&tayutory Auditors of the company) and the relaiedements of income, stockholders' eq
and cash flows for the years then ended. Thesadiabstatements are the responsibility of the Camyfs management. Our responsibility is to re-
instate these financial statements based on auiti@acials provided to us.

We conducted this reinstatement in accordance gétierally accepted auditing standards of the P@uimpany Oversight Board (United Stat
Those standards require that we plan and perfoemeimstatement to obtain reasonable assurance ahether the financial statements are fre
material misstatement. An audit includes examimatio a test basis, evidence supporting the amamutglisclosures in the financial statements
audit also includes assessing the accounting jpiexiused and significant estimates made by theageament, as well as evaluating the ov
financial statement presentation. We believe oditayprovide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the financial position of SPAR Solug

Merchandising Private Limited as of December 31,(@nd 2009, and the results of their operationistlagir cash flows for the years then ende
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in United States.

/s/ Nitin Mittal & Co.

New Delhi, India
March 11, 2011




Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale
Accounts receivable, n
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Goodwill

Intangibles

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabil
Accrued expenses due to affilia
Customer deposi
Lines of credit and other debt

Total current liabilities

Equity:
SPAR Group, Inc. equit
Preferred stock, $.01 par vali
Authorized share- 3,000,00(
Issued and outstanding sh-
554,402- December 31, 2010 and 20
Common stock, $.01 par valt
Authorized share- 47,000,00(
Issued and outstanding shares -
19,314,30¢- December 31, 201
19,139,365 December 31, 200
Treasury stoc
Additional pai-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Accumulated deficit
Total SPAR Group, Inc. equi
Non-controlling interest

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes.

SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share and per share data)
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December 31

2010 2009
92z $ 1,65¢
13,99¢ 10,231
1,28: 1,182
16,20¢ 13,07:
1,45: 1,55(
84¢ 79¢
362 -
22€ 1,931
19,09 $ 17,35/
1,80¢ $ 3,81¢
2,73¢ 2,22€
1,57¢ 1,43€
471 477
5,26: 4,86:
11,84¢ 12,82(
6 6
192 191
1) 1)
13,54¢ 13,09¢
(142) (220)
(6,80¢) (8,975)
6,797 4,10¢
45¢ 431
19,09 $ 17,35/




Net revenue:
Cost of revenues

Gross profil

Selling, general and administrative expe
Depreciation and amortization
Operating incomu

Interest expens

Other (income)

Income before provision for income tay

Provision for income taxes
Net income

Net income attributable to n-controlling interest
Net income attributable to SPAR Group,
Net income per basic and diluted common sf

Net income- basic and diluted
Weighted average common shares — basic
Weighted average common shares — diluted

See accompanying notes.

SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share data)
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Year Ended December 31

2010 2009
$ 63,15¢ 57,54¢
42,16¢ 40,01¢

20,98¢ 17,53

17,14( 16,127

1,01¢ 1,081

2,831 322

31C 17¢

(21) (582)

2,542 72€

262 16¢

2,27¢ 557

112 55

$ 2,167 502
$ 0.11 0.0¢
19,20¢ 19,13¢

20,60: 19,43«




Balance at January 1, 20

Preferred Stock Issue
Issuance of stock
options to non-
employees for service
Issuance of stock
options to employees
for services

Purchase of non-controlling
interest in joint
ventures

Stock Compensatic

Comprehensive incom

Foreign currency
translation gair

Net Income

Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31,
2009

Preferred Stock Issue

Issuance of stock
options and warrants t
non-employees for
services

Issuance of stock
options to employees
for services
Exercise of Option
Purchase of non-controlling
interest in joint
ventures
Other changes to non-
controlling interes
Comprehensive incom
Foreign currency
translation gair
Net Income
Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31,
2010

See accompanying notes.

SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Equity

Preferred Stock

(In thousands)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Other

Non-

Treasury Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive Controlling  Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Stock Capital Deficit (Loss) Gain Interest Equity
554 $ 6 19,13¢ $ 191% (1) $12,82: $ (9,477 $ (361) $ 48¢ $ 3,661
- - - 70 - - - 70
- - - 13€ - - - 13€
- - - 51 - - (112) (612)
- - - 21 - - - 21
- - - - - 141 - 141
502 - 55 557
502 141 55 69€
554 $ 6 1913¢ $ 191 % (1) $13,09¢ $ (8,975 $ (220 $ 431 $ 4,531
12C 1 - 204 - - - 20k
- - - 131 - - - 131
55 1 - 25 - - - 26
- - - 90 - - (141 (52)
48 48
- - - - - 78 - 78
2,167 — 11z 2,27¢
2,167 78 112 2,351
554 $ 6 19,31« $ 192 % (1) $13,54¢ $ (6,80¢) $ (142) $ 45C $ 7,247
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Operating activities
Net income $ 227¢ % 557
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciatiol 1,01¢ 1,081
Issuance of stock and stock options for set 33¢€ 27¢
Additional paid-in capital purchase of non-
controlling interest and other changesan-
controlling interes 93 (112)
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Accounts receivab (3,790 2,997
Prepaid expenses and other as 1,60¢ 13¢
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, othegrduiabilities and
customer deposits (1,280 (3,529)
Net cash provided by operating activit 26C 1,411
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment and non- dbngyinterest in
subsidiary (1,439 (831)
Financing activities
Net borrowing (repayments) from lines of cre 44k (743)
Repayments of capital lease obligatis (95) -
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan andisgdr options 26 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 37¢€ (743)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash 67 137
Net change in cash and cash equival (73€) (26)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,65¢ 1,68t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 92 $  1,65¢
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows informatiol
Interest paid $ 37¢ $ 28¢
Income taxes paid $ 20 $ 79¢
Equipment purchased through capital lease $ 25C $ =

See accompanying notes.
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Business and Organization

The SPAR Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“SGQR&nd its subsidiaries (together with SGRP, ti¢AR Group” or the “Company”)s &
supplier of merchandising and other marketing sesvihroughout the United States and internatipn@iie Company also provides $tere ever
staffing, product sampling, furniture and otherdarot assembly services, Radio Frequency Identifingt RFID”) services, technology services .
marketing research services. Assembly servicepar®rmed in stores, homes and offices while thatber services are primarily performec
mass merchandisers, office supply, grocery and stmig chains, and independent, convenience antt@i&s stores.

Merchandising services primarily consist of regiylascheduled, special project and other productises provided at the store level, and
Company may be engaged by either the retailer @mianufacturer. Those services may include restgcind adding new products, remo\
spoiled or outdated products, resetting categddasthe shelf" in accordance with client or stochematics, confirming and replacing shelf t
setting new sale or promotional product displayd advertising, replenishing kiosks, providingsiore event staffing and providing asser
services in stores, homes and offices. Other naeidiBing services include whole store or departaigrbduct sets or resets, including new ¢
openings, new product launches andtiore demonstrations, special seasonal or pronatimerchandising, focused product support and pt
recalls. The Company also provides RFID servitmd)nology services and marketing research setvices

Today the Company operates in 9 countries thatrapass approximately 47% of the total world popalatiAlthough it operates in a sin
business segment (merchandising and marketingcesyithe Company currently divides its operatiforsmarketing, administrative and ot
purposes into two geographic divisions: its Dontestierchandising Services Division, which providéede services in the United State:
America since certain of its predecessors were ddrin 1979; and its International Merchandisingvi®es Division, which began operation:
May of 2001 and provides similar merchandising, keting services and istore event staffing services in Japan, CanadathS&inica, India
Romania, China, Australia and New Zealand.

The Company continues to focus on expanding itchaerdising and marketing services business thraittghe world.

Domestic Merchandising Services Divisic

The Company’s Domestic Merchandising Services iviprovides nationwide merchandising and otherketamg services throughout the United
States of America primarily on behalf of consumerduct manufacturers and retailers at mass merasensdoffice supply, grocery and drug store

chains, and independent, convenience and electratoces. Included in its clients are home entamant, general merchandise, health and beauty
care, consumer goods and food products companies.
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coathu

1. Business and Organization (continued)

The Company's international business in each ¢eyritutside the United States is conducted thraufreign subsidiary incorporated in its prim
territory. The primary territory (together with amaadditional territory in which it conducts its diwess), establishment date (which may inc
predecessors), the percentage of the Company'syequnership, and the principal office location ftwr US (domestic) subsidiaries and each ¢
foreign (international) subsidiaries is as follows:

Primary Territory Date SGRP Percentage Principal Office Location
(+ additional Territory’ Establishec Ownershig
United States of America 1979 100% Tarrytown, New York
United States of Americ
Japar May 2001 100% Osaka, Japa
Canade June 200! 100% Toronto, Canad
Turkey July 2003 51%* Istanbul, Turkey
South Africa April 2004 51% Durban, South Africi
India April 2004 100%** New Delhi, India
Lithuania September 200 519p*** Siauliai, Lithuaniz
Australia (+ New Zealanc April 2006 51% Melbourne, Australii
Romaniza July 2009 5194**** Bucharest, Romani
China March 201C 5109p***** Shanghai, Chin
* Currently not in operation while the Company expka change in this subsidiary's market fo
*k As of September 30, 2010, the Company owned 1008ti®Eubsidiary

*kk The Company closed this subsidiary's operatiof®imrth Quarter 201(

**xx Currently the Company owns two subsidiariesRRomania. One Subsidiary is 100% owned and tbenskesubsidiary, acquired in July
2009, is 51% ownec

*kkk Currently the Company owns two subsidiaries in @hi®ne Subsidiary is 100% owned and the secorgldiaty, acquired in March 20:
and operational in August 2010, is 51% owr

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior

The Company consolidates its 100% owned subsidiafiee Company also consolidates all of its 51%ewhsubsidiaries as the Company belie
it is the primary beneficiary and controls the emmit activities in accordance witkccounting Standards Codification (ASC) 810-10, Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities .

All significant intercompany accounts and transatiihave been eliminated.
Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid shtetm investments with maturities of three monthslems at the time of acquisition to be ¢
equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cbgthvapproximates fair value.

Revenue Recognitio

The Companys services are provided to its clients under catdrar agreements. The Company bills its cliensetlaipon service fee or per unit
arrangements. Revenues under service fee arrantgearenrecognized when the service is performed. Gompanys per unit fee arrangemei
provide for fees to be earned based on the retlbof a cliens products to consumers. The Company recognizesniefees in the period su
amounts become determinable and are reported ©dhgany.
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coathu

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (canued)

Unbilled Accounts Receivable

Unbilled accounts receivable represent servicefopeed but not billed and are included as accoretsivable.
Doubtful Accounts and Credit Risk

The Company continually monitors the validity of i&ccounts receivable based upon current cliemitcigformation and financial conditic
Balances that are deemed to be uncollectible #felCompany has attempted reasonable collectiamtefare written off through a charge to
bad debt allowance and a credit to accounts relslgivAccounts receivable balances, net of any eablé reserves or allowances, are stated
amount that management expects to collect fromotitetanding balances. The Company provides forgigbuncollectible amounts throug
charge to earnings and a credit to bad debt alloevdased in part on managemsrassessment of the current status of individusdwauts. Base
on managemery’assessment, the Company established an allovimndeubtful accounts of $143,000 and $317,000 e¢elnber 31, 2010, a
2009, respectively. Bad debt expenses were $26500412,000 in 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Property and Equipment and Depreciatic

Property and equipment, including leasehold impnosets, are stated at cost. Depreciation is calkedlan a straighline basis over estimated use
lives of the related assets, which range from thweseven years. Leasehold improvements are depeelcdver the shorter of their estimated u:
lives or lease term, using the straight-line method

Capital Lease Obligations

The Company has two outstanding capital lease afidigs. The first lease originating in March 201&8sha cost of $215,000, accumule
depreciation of $29,800 and a net book value o6 @ at December 31, 2010. The second leasenafiigg in November 2010 has a cos
$48,100, accumulated depreciation of $2,700 aret dook value of $45,400 at December 31, 2010.

Annual future minimum lease payments required utigetease, together with the present value asecEBber 31, 2010 are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31 Amount
2011 $ 99
2012 99
2013 55
252
Less amount representing interest 23
Present value of net minimum lease payments indudth
other liabilities $ 23C

Internal Use Software Development Co:

In accordance withASC-350-10-720, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use , the Compan
capitalizes certain costs associated with its imatkty developed software. Specifically, the Compaapitalizes the costs of materials and ser
incurred in developing or obtaining internal uséware. These costs include (but are not limitéctie cost to purchase software, the cost to

program code, payroll and related benefits andetraxpenses for those employees who are directlglied with and who devote time to

Company’s software development projects. Capitdlzaftware development costs are amortized oveetjears on a straight-line basis.

The Company capitalized $632,000 and $586,000 efscrelated to software developed for internal ins€010, and 2009, respectively, i
recognized approximately $518,000 and $396,000nudrtization of capitalized software for the twelrnths ended December 31, 2010,
2009, respectively.




SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coathu

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (canued)
Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impant whenever events or changes in circumstandésaie that an assettarrying amount mi
be higher than its fair value. If an asset is abex®d to be impaired, the impairment charge thatldvbe recognized is the excess of the asset’
carrying value over the asset’s fair value.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Companys balance sheets include the following financiatimments: accounts receivable, accounts payabléiraes of credit. The Compa
considers the carrying amounts of current assetks liabilities in the financial statements to approate the fair value for these finant
instruments, because of the relatively short pedbtime between origination of the instruments dheir expected realization or payment.
carrying amount of the lines of credit approximdtgsvalue because the obligations bear intereatflmating market rate of interest.

Excess Casl

The Companys domestic cash balances are generally utilizgdyats bank lines of credit. International castabees are maintained in liquid ci
accounts and are utilized to fund daily operations.

Major Customers- Domestic

One customer accounted for 10% of the Company'sevenues for the years ended December 31, 20H02@00, resulting from merchandis
services performed for a large pharmaceutical idigior. This customer accounted for approximatedy &nd 6% of the Company's accol
receivable at December 31, 2010, and 2009, respécti

In addition, approximately 10% and less than 1%hef Companys net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2002009, respective
resulting from merchandising and assembly servip$ormed for a major office supply chain and foamafacturers within this claim. The
customers accounted for approximately 3% and hess 1% of the Company’s accounts receivable at Dbee 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Approximately 7% and 6% of the Compasynhet revenues for the years ended December 31), 200 2009, respectively, resulting fr
merchandising services performed for manufactumadsothers in stores operated by a leading masshangdising chain in the United States. *
customer accounted for approximately 4% and 9% ®fQompany’s accounts receivable at December 31, 20hd 2009, respectively.

In 2010, the Company performed merchandising andketiag services for manufacturers and others imational drug store chain. The serv
accounted for approximately 6% of the company'sraeenues for the twelve months ended Decembe@1). Effective March 1, 2011, |
Company will no longer be providing these merchaimdj and marketing services in this national drtiegeschain.

Foreign Currency Rate Fluctuations
The Company has foreign currency exposure assdciith its international subsidiaries. In both 2048d 2009, these exposures are prim
concentrated in the Canadian Dollar, South AfriRand, Australian Dollar and Japanese Yen. At Deeerth, 2010, international assets tot

$8.2 million and international liabilities totale®6.2 million. For 2010, international revenues obsidiaries posted $26.6 million and
international share of the Company’s net income avast loss of approximately $506,000.
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coathu
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (canued)
Interest Rate Fluctuation:

The Company is exposed to market risk related ¢ovtiriable interest rate on its lines of credit.Dcember 31, 2010, the Compasigutstandin
debt totaled $5.3 million, as noted in the tabllein thousands):

Location Variable Interest Rat®) US Dollars(@
United State! 4.7% $ 3,53¢
4.0% -
International 10.2% 1,72
$ 5,26:
Q) Per annum interest at December 31, 2010
2) Based on exchange rate at Decembe&2®1)

Based on 2010 average outstanding borrowings watéble-rate debt, a omeercentage point increase in interest rates woetghtively impac
annual pre-tax earnings and cash flows by appraein&45,000.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent titaré tax return consequences of certain tempodéfgrences that will either be taxable
deductible when the assets and liabilities arevexas or settled. Deferred taxes are also recodrfireoperating losses that are available to c
future taxable income and tax credits that arelabks to offset future income taxes. In the evéetfuture consequences of differences betwee
financial reporting basis and the tax basis of @lmnpanys assets and liabilities result in a net defereedaisset, an evaluation is required of
probability of being able to realize the future bfts indicated by such asset. A valuation alloveaiscprovided when it is more likely than not -
some portion or the entire deferred tax assetnwitlbe realized.

Stock-Based Compensation

As of January 1, 2006, ASC-718-10 became effecivé applicable to the Company’s accounting foreitgployee options. Under ASC-718;
compensation expense is recognized in the Compdimgacial statements when employee stock optiorsgaanted. Shareased compensati
cost is measured on the grant date, based onithafae of the award calculated at that date,iardcognized over the employsekquisite servic
period, which generally is the options’ vestingipédr Fair value is calculated using the Ble@kholes option pricing model. The options gra
have a ten (10) year life and vest over four-yeaiquls at a rate of 25% per year, beginning orfiteeanniversary of the date of grant.

The fair value of each option grant is estimateskblzon the date of grant using the Black-Schol&smpricing model with the following weight:
average assumptions: dividend yield of 0% for alng; volatility factor of expected market pricecommon stock of 140% and 144% for 2010,
2009, respectively; risk-free interest rate of 3@&nd 3.85% for 2010, and 2009, respectively; apeeted lives of six years.

Net Income Per Shari

Basic net income per share amounts are based hpeoweaighted average number of common shares odistarDiluted net income per sh
amounts are based upon the weighted average nushlmmmmon and potential common shares outstandiecgpe for periods in which su
potential common shares are aditistive. Potential common shares outstanding idelstock options and are calculated using the urgastoc}
method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States reqt
management to make estimates and assumptionsffinettthe reported amounts of assets and lialslitibe amounts disclosed for contingent a
and liabilities at the date of the financial stagens and the reported amounts of revenues and sapeaturing the reporting year. Actual res
could differ from those estimates.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company followsASC-805-10, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets , as such, goodwill is no longer amortized, busubject to annu
impairment tests. At December 31, 2010 and 200¥ihmpany performed the required impairment tese Thmpany calculated the fair value
each business unit for which goodwill was recortiedetermine if there was an impairment. The faiue of each unit was based upon the esti
of the discounted cash flow generated by the resebusiness unit. As a result of these calcutatiat was determined that there was
impairment to the goodwill.

On April 1, 2010, with the approval of SGRP's dioes, the Company acquired substantially all of blaginess, customer contracts, receiva
work-in progress, other assets and certain liabilitie8078281 Ontario Limited, an Ontario merchandisimgl marketing company doing busir
as Wings & Ink. A portion of this purchase waoedlted to customer contracts. The contracts drey lznortized on a straight line basis ov



years.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The financial statements of the foreign entitieasmdidated into SPAR Group, Inc. consolidated foiahstatements were translated into Ur

States dollar equivalents at exchange rates aswellbalance sheet accounts for assets and liebilitere converted at yeand rates, equity
historical rates and income statement accounteegihge exchange
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coathu

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (canued)

rates for the year. The resulting translation gaind losses are reflected in accumulated other mmimpsive gain or loss in the statemen
stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transacgiains and losses are reflected in net earnings.

Recently Issued Accounting Standar

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new accountinglatdrrelated to the consolidation of VIEs. Thendtad replaces the quantitatibased risk
and rewards calculation with an approach that iimaily qualitative. The standard also requiregang reassessments of the appropriatene
consolidation, and additional disclosures aboubimement with VIEs. The standard is effective @sras of January 1, 2010. The adoption of
standard did not have a material impact on ounfifel condition, results of operations, and finahstatement disclosures.

During December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2P90"Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Infoiorator Business CombinationsThe
ASU is effective prospectively for business combores whose acquisition date is at or after theirb@gg of the first annual reporting per
beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The ASkciies that if a public entity presents compamtfinancial statements, the entity shc
disclose revenue and earnings of the combinedyeagithough the business combination that occulueithg the current year had occurred as o
beginning of the comparable prior annual reportpegiod only. The amendments to this guidance alquamd the supplemental pro for
disclosures to include a description of the naamd amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma sihents directly attributable to the busir
combination included in the reported pro forma rexeand earnings. The adoption of the ASU will istpdisclosures in future interim and anr
financial statements issued if the Company entesbusiness combinations.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to th8 #iil@ncial statements to conform to the 2010 preg®n.

3. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

December 31

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the follgyim thousands): 2010 2009

Trade $ 9,84¢ $ 7,25(

Unbilled 3,91¢ 2,95

Non-trade 382 34E
14,14: 10,54¢

Less:

Allowance for doubtful accounts (143 (317)

$ 13,99¢ $ 10,231
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SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coathu

3. Supplemental Balance Sheet Information (contindje

December 31

Property and equipment consists of the followinghousands): 2010 2009
Equipmen $ 7,89 $ 7,66¢
Furniture and fixture 541 55€
Leasehold improvemen 25C 24¢
Capitalized software development costs 3,51¢ 2,88¢
12,20: 11,35¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 10,75( 9,80¢

$ 1,45 $ 1,55(

December 31

Other assets (in thousands): 2010 2009
Safeway settlement (inclusive of intere $ - $ 1,744
Other 22€ 187

$ 22€ $ 1,931

December 31

Accrued expenses and other current liabilitieghousands): 2010 2009

Accrued accounting and legal exper $ 26€ $ 201
Accrued salaries payat 70¢ 69¢€
Other 1,75¢ 1,32¢

$ 2,73t $ 2,22¢

4. Lines of Credit

Domestic Credit Facility (“Webster Credit Facility)(reporting period through July 5, 2010):

In January 2003, the Company (other than SGRBteign subsidiaries) and Webster Business Ci@diporation, then known as Whitet
Business Credit Corporation (“Webster&ntered into the Third Amended and Restated Rewpl@redit and Security Agreement (as amer
collectively, the “Webster Credit Facility”Y.he Webster Credit Facility provided for a $5.0lioil revolving line of credit which matured on M
15, 2010. In February 2008, the Webster Creditlifjagvas amended to establish monthly EBITDA covasauntil September 30, 2008, and to ¢
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant for the yede@ December 31, 2008. In January 2009 the WeBstelit Facility was amended to ext
the agreement until March 15, 2009, adjust therésterate to the greater of 5%, the AlternativeeBRate or 30 day LIBOR plus 2.75% ani
increase the limit on the capital expenditurest@$nillion. In March 2009, the Webster Credit fiacwas amended to extend the maturity t
March 15, 2010, extend the monthly Fixed ChargedCaye Ratio covenant until March 15, 2010 and résetlimit on capital expenditures
$800,000. On March 15, 2010, the Webster CreddiliBawas further amended to extend the maturibd aontinue the monthly coven.
requirements until September 15, 2010.

Borrowings were based upon a borrowing base forrasildefined in the agreement (principally 85% digfele” domestic accounts receivable |

certain reserves). The Webster Credit Facility sasured by all of the assets of the Company's diicrasbsidiaries. The Webster Credit Fac
also limited certain expenditures, including, bat limited to, capital expenditures and other inreents.
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4. Lines of Credit (continued)

In addition, Mr. Robert G. Brown, a Director, thén@rman and a major stockholder of SGRP, and Milidkti H. Bartels, a Director, the Vi
Chairman and a major stockholder of SGRP, provjsrdonal guarantees of the Webster Credit Fatdigling $1.0 million.

The basic interest rate under the Webster Creditifyavas the greater of i) Webster's “AlternatiBase Rate” plus 1.0% per annum, which
automatically changes with each change made by Wfeimssuch Alternative Base Rate, ii) LIBOR plug®46 per annum, or iii) the minimum rate
imposed by Webster of 5% per annum. The actuabgecinterest rate under the Webster Credit Faeildtg 5% per annum for the period that
commenced on January 1, 2010, and ended on JAB16, The Webster Credit Facility was securedutstantially all of the assets of the
Company (other than SGRP’s foreign subsidiariesthen assets).

New Domestic Credit Facility (“Sterling Credit Facility”)(July 6, 2010, to present):

SGRP and certain of its domestic direct and indisabsidiaries, namely SPAR Incentive Marketing;. IlPIA Merchandising Co., Inc., Pivc
Sales Company, National Assembly Services, IncARBBurgoyne Retail Services, Inc., SPAR Group In&ional, Inc., SPAR Acquisition, In
SPAR Trademarks, Inc., SPAR Marketing Force, Imd 8PAR, Inc. (each a "Subsidiary Borrower", argetber with SGRP, collectively, thi
Borrowers "), entered into a Revolving Loan andusiégz Agreement dated as of July 6, 2010 (the "Légneement”), with Sterling National Ba
and Cornerstone Bank as the lenders (the "Lenderst)) issued their Secured Revolving Loan Notegkénoriginal maximum principal amounts
$5.0 million to Sterling National Bank and $1.5 linih to Cornerstone Bank (the "Notes"), to docurmemd govern its new credit facility with th
(the "Sterling Credit Facility"). The Sterling &tit Facility replaced the Webster Credit Facibty July 6, 2010, and the first advance under
new facility was used to fully repay and termintéite Webster Credit Facility and its documents sl

In addition, Mr. Robert G. Brown, a Director, thdn@rman and a major stockholder of SGRP, and Milidkti H. Bartels, a Director, the Vi
Chairman and a major stockholder of SGRP, haveigedvpersonal guarantees of the Sterling CreditiBamtaling $2.5 million pursuant to the
Limited Continuing Guaranty in favor of the Lendeeted as of July 6, 2010. (the "Limited Guaranty")

Revolving Loans of up to $6.5 million are availaldethe Borrowers under this new Sterling Creditiitg based upon the borrowing base forn
defined in the Loan Agreement (principally 85% efigible” domestic accounts receivable less certagerves). The Sterling Credit Facilit
secured by substantially all of the assets of the@®vers (other than SGRP's foreign subsidiariedain designated domestic subsidiaries, and
respective equity and assets).

The domestic revolving loan balance outstandingeuride Sterling Credit Facility was approximateB.% million at December 31, 2010, and
revolving loan balances outstanding under the WelBtedit Facility was approximately $ 4.0 milliabh December 31, 2009. As of Decembel
2010, the Company had unused availability underStegling Credit Facility of $1.7 million out of ¢hremaining maximum $3.0 million unus
revolving line of credit.

The basic interest rate under the Sterling Creadilfy is equal to the fluctuating Prime Rate oferest published in the Wall Street Journal 1
time to time plus one and ommalf (1.50%) percent per annum, which automatycelianges with each change in such rate. The gagréntere:
rate on December 31, 2010, was 4.75% per annunt tingieformula. The actual average interest rate under the Ste@eglit Facility was 4.75'
per annum for the period that commenced on JUA&0, and ended on December 31, 2010.

Because of the requirement to maintain a lock rexngement with the Agent and the Lenders' abititinvoke a subjective acceleration claus
its discretion, borrowings under the Sterling Crédicility will be classified as current.

The new Sterling Credit Facility contains certaiimahcial and other restrictive covenants and alwitd certain expenditures by the Borrow
including, but not limited to, capital expendituraed other investments. At December 31, 2010 thengany was in compliance with st
covenants and does not expect to be in violatidntate measurement dates. However, there can lassirances that the Company will not k
violation of certain covenants
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4. Lines of Credit (continued)
in the future and should the Company be in violgtibere can be no assurances that the Lenderssuik waivers for any future violations.

International Credit Facilities and Other Debt :

The Japanese subsidiary SPAR FM Japan, Inc. lingredfit agreement totaling 100 million Yen or appmoately $1.1 million (based upon f
exchange rate at November 30, 2009) was cancetiétbwember 30, 2009 in connection with SGRP’s iaseein ownership from 50% to 100%.

In 2008, the Australian subsidiary, SPARFACTS Aalédr Pty. Ltd., entered into a revolving line o&dit arrangement with Commonwealth B
of Australia (CBA) for $2.0 million (Australian)On September 11, 2009, the line of credit arrang¢nmvas amended to reduce the line of crec
$1.5 million (Australian), or approximately $1.5lloin (based upon the exchange rate at Decembe2@®n). At December 31, 2010, SPARFAC
Australia Pty. Ltd. had $540,000 (Australian), ppeoximately $548,000, outstanding under the lifieredit (based upon the exchange rate a
date). The average interest rate under this fpeilés 10.2% per annum for the twelve months endsceBber 31, 2010.

On October 20, 2006, SPAR Canada Company, a wloaliyed subsidiary, entered into a secured credieagent with Royal Bank of Cane
providing for a Demand Operating Loan for a maximbanrowing of $750,000 (Canadian) or approximat&h0,000 (based upon the exche
rate at December 31, 2010). The Demand Operatiag lpoovides for borrowing based upon a formulaeisdd in the agreement (principally 7
of eligible accounts receivable less certain dédos) and a minimum total debt to tangible net waxdvenant. On March 28, 2008, Royal Bar
Canada amended the secured credit agreement teerétRimaximum borrowing to $500,000 (Canadian)éw@s, in October 2008, Royal Bank
Canada reinstated the loan limit to $750,000 (Ceamd At December 31, 2010, SPAR Canada Company $6@28,000 (Canadian or US
outstanding under the line of credit (based up@nekchange rate at December 31, 2010). The avaénggest rate under this line of credit \
4.0% per annum for the twelve months ended DeceBibe2010.

The Company was in compliance with the minimumltdédbt to tangible net worth covenant under this Ibf credit at December 31, 2010.

At the March 2010 quarterly board meeting of SGR®, Board of Directors authorized the Company touse bridge financing for futu
acquisition efforts in an amount not to exceed $hilion. On March 26, 2010 the Company signed ar@nd Security Agreement an
Promissory Note with Michael Anthony Holdings, Ifier a total of $1.0 million and the Company reeghits first advance of $500,000 which
used for the acquisition of certain assets of aa@em company that closed on April 1, 2010. Thetigmramended such loan agreemer
November 5, 2010, to reduce the applicable intei@ss. The remaining $500,000 balance of theiraily-contemplated loan would have b
advanced to the Company upon request and satwsfiagticertain conditions prior to maturity, but tBempany currently does not expect to rec
that advance. The loan matures and is due iofuMarch 31, 2011. The Company currently plangpay the loan in full on maturity.

The loan is payable on an interest only basiseatdlte of 9.5% per annum (originally 14% per anmpsiar to such amendment). If the loan is
paid in full by March 31, 2011, the interest ratecaatically increases to 14% per annum (which wdwdve been 24% per annum prior to ¢
amendment). The average interest rate for thiseas 13.1% per annum for the twelve months ends=gedber 31, 2010.

In addition to the cost of interest, the Companidpat closing, to Michael Anthony Holding, Inc.fee of $10,000 in cash and issued 75
warrants to purchase 75,000 shares of SGRP Comrtumk.SThe warrants are exercisable over two (2xyea the market price of $0.85
Common share (SPAR’closing stock price on that date). The Compacproed a $52,000 expense for the cost of the wardaming 2010. |
addition, the loan is secured by the stock of S”¥Rada Company.
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5. Income Taxes

The provision for income tax expense is summaraetbllows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009

Current $ 265 % 16¢
Deferred -

$ 265 $  16¢

The provision for income taxes is different fromatthwhich would be obtained by applying the stattederal income tax rate to income be
income taxes. The items causing this differenceaarm®llows (in thousands):

Year Ended Decembel

31,
2010 2009

Provision for income taxes at

federal statutory rate, net of foreign $ 72€ $ 13€
State income taxes, net of federal ber 89 43
Permanent difference 18 18
Change in valuation allowan: (722) (202)
International tax provisior 92 10¢
Federal Alternative Minimum Ta 58 -
Change in Tax Resen 22 4
Other (20) 61
Provision for income taxes $ 26 $ 16¢
Deferred taxes consist of the following (in thoussin December 31

2010 2009

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 595 $ 7,17¢

Deferred revenu 14£ 3

SIM reserve against loan commitm: 147 147

Allowance for doubtful accounts and other recbig: 36 11F

Shar-based compensation expel 427 374

Depreciatior 34 72

Accrued expense - 5

Other 27 27

Valuation allowance (6,27F) (6,997
Total deferred tax asse 494 92¢€
Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill 121 101

Litigation receivable - 49€

Capitalized software development costs 373 32¢
Total deferred tax liabilities 494 92€
Net deferred tax asse $ - $ -

At December 31, 2010, the Company has net operkisgycarryforwards (NOLs) of $4.9 million, relatedthe PIA Acquisition available to redt
future federal taxable income. Section 382 ofltiternal Revenue Code restricts the annual utibpabf the NOLs incurred prior to a change
ownership. Such a change in ownership had occimr&€l99. The Company may utilize $657,500 of th® ROLs per year through the year 2018.
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5. Income Taxes (continued)
In addition, the Company incurred NOLs relatedsqorior year losses totaling $10.8 million of wlic

$2.7 expires in 2024,
$0.7 expires in 2025,
$3.6 expires in 2026,
$2.9 expires in 2027,
$0.7 expires in 2028, and
$0.2 expires in 2029.

As a result of losses, a challenging market andldbk of certainty of continued profitability in 20, the Company has established a valu
allowance of approximately $6.3 million againsteteéd tax assets at December 31, 2010.

The Company does not provide currently for U.Soine taxes on the undistributed earnings of itsifatole foreign subsidiaries since, at the pre
time, management expects any earnings to be read/@s the foreign subsidiaries and not distributegbon distribution of those earnings in
form of dividends or otherwise, the Company would subject to U.S. income taxes, which could potdlgtibe offset by foreign te
credits. Distribution of those earnings can alsobject the Company to related withholding taxes abéy to various nok).S.
jurisdictions. Determination of the amount of wwognized deferred U.S. income tax liability is rmoicticable because of the complex
associated with its hypothetical calculations.

ASC-740-10 prescribes detailed guidance for the financiakst&nt recognition, measurement and disclosure agrtein tax positions recognizec
an enterprise's financial statements in accordavitte ASC-740-10 . Tax positions must meet a more-likely-thamt- recognition threshold at 1
effective date to be recognized upon the adoptfohSE-740-10 and in subsequent periodsSC-740-10 is effective for fiscal years beginning a
December 15, 2006 and the provisionsA8C-740-10 will be applied to all tax positions upon initiadl@ption of the Interpretation. The Comp
has adopteASC-740-10 as of January 1, 2007.

The Company adopted provisionsASC-740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, on January 1, 2007 . A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized taefisris as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended

December 31,

2010 2009
Beginning Balanc $ 11¢ $ 11t
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 33 21
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (109) (17)
Ending Balance $ 43 $  11¢

ASC-740-10 requires that interest and penalties that theawaxrequires to be paid on the underpayment of taliesld be accrued on the differe
between the amount claimed or expected to be cthonehe return and the tax benefit recognizethénfinancial statements. The Company's p
is to record this interest and penalties as aduititax expense.

SPAR and its subsidiaries file numerous consoliatembined and separate company income tax retartiee U.S. Federal jurisdiction and
many U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. With fexceptions, SPAR is subject to U.S. Federal, statelocal income tax examinations for
years 2005 through the present. However, tax aiigt®have the ability to review years prior to phesition taken by the Company to the extent
SPAR utilized tax attributes carried forward fromos$e prior years.
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5. Income Taxes (continued)

In management's view, the Company's tax reservBeember 31, 2010, totaling $43,000 for potemt@hestic state tax liabilities were suffici
to meet the requirements A8C-740-10 . The Company has evaluated the tax liabilitiest®finternational subsidiaries and does not belia
reserve is necessary at this time.

Details of the Company's tax reserves at Decemhe2@®L0, are outlined in the table below (in thaows:

Total Tax
Taxes Interest Penalty Liability
Domestic
State $ 34 $ 5 % 4 % 43
Federa - - - -
International — — — —
Total reserve $ 34 $ 5 % 4 % 43

6. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitment

The Company leases equipment and certain officeesimaseveral cities, under neancelable operating lease agreements. Certaiesieaquire tr
Company to pay its share of any increases in dpegraxpenses and real estate taxes. Rent experssappeoximately $346,000 and $418,00(
2010, and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2@itdye minimum commitments under all noancelable operating lease arrangements
follows (in thousands):

Year Amount

2011 $ 78C
2012 71C
2013 47¢
2014 428
2015 467
Total $ 2,85¢

International Commitments

The Company’s international model is to join foreéth local investors experienced with merchandjsservices and combine their knowledge of
their local markets with the Company’s proprietaoftware and expertise in the merchandising andetiag business. In 2001, the Company
established its first international subsidiary &ad continued this strategy. As of this filing, empany is currently operating in Japan, Canada,
South Africa, India, Romania, China, Australia atelv Zealand through 7 active international subsieléa

Certain of these international subsidiaries aregmatly profitable while others are operating albas. None of these entities have excess
reserves. In the event of continued losses, SGRFfinGit necessary to provide additional cash &bas into these subsidiaries.

Legal Matters

Longstanding litigation with Safeway Inc. ("Safewgagoncluded in August 2010. On October 24, 200dfe®ay filed a complaint against F
Merchandising Co., Inc. ("PIA Co."), a wholly-ownedbsidiary of SPAR Group, Inc. ("SGRP"), Pivotales Company ("Pivotal"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of PIA Co., and SGRP in Alamedar®p (California) Superior Court, case no. 2001@B4Safeways claims, as subsequer
amended, alleged causes of action for breach dfaminand breach of implied contract. PIA Co. aibfal filed crosselaims against Safews
including causes of action for breach of contrat mterference with economic relationships. Theegaroceeded to trial by jury. On May 26, 2!
the jury returned a verdict that awarded certaimages on different claims to PIA Co. and Pivotadl amwarded certain damages to Safe'
resulting in a net award of $1,307,700 to Pivalatigment was entered in favor of Pivotal and ag&ageway on August 14, 2006, for $1,307,
A subsequent order awarded Pivotal certain cowgtscotaling $33,725.
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6. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Thereafter, both sides filed appeals. On May 2702@he California Court of Appeal issued a decisidfirming the judgment in full. All appelle
proceedings concluded on July 28, 2010. On AuBug2010, Safeway tendered, and the Company acceggent of $1,888,000 in full paym
of the judgment.

In addition to the above, the Company is a partwdadous other legal actions and administrativecpealings arising in the normal courst
business. In the opinion of Compasyhanagement, disposition of these other mattersatr anticipated to have a material adverse efiadhe
Company or its estimated or desired assets, bissioapital, cash flow, credit, expenses, financ@addition, income, liabilities, liquidity, locatia
marketing, operations, prospects, sales, strategestion or other achievement, results or cooniti

7. Treasury Stock

The Company initiated a share repurchase progra2@®2, which allowed for repurchase of up to 100,6Bares. In 2003, the Board of Direc
authorized the repurchase of an additional 122gb@0es increasing the total to 222,000 shares.

The Company'’s treasury stock balances have remainelthnged at a quantity of 254 shares at a vdl#i#,212 for the years 2010 and 2009.
8. Preferred Stock

SGRP's certificate of incorporation also authoriitegs issue 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock @ipar value of $0.01 per share (the "Si
Preferred Stock"), which may have such preferemees priorities over the SGRP Common Stock and otigéts, powers and privileges as
Company's Board of Directors may establish in #scrtion from time to time. The Company has @daand authorized the issuance

maximum of 3,000,000 shares of Series A Prefertedk3pursuant to SGRP's Certificate of DesignatibSeries "A" Preferred Stock (the "SG
Series A Preferred Stock™), which have dividend dqdidation preferences, have a cumulative divitled 10% per year, are redeemable a
Company's option and are convertible at the hadeption (and without further consideration) on r@e-¢o-one basis into SGRP Comrnr
Stock. The number of shares authorized by suclymion could, however, be reduced by amendmenéademption to facilitate the creation
other SGRP Preferred Series. On December 31, 20&€ were 554,402 shares of SGRP Series A Pedf&tock were issued and outstanc
such shares are fully paid and rassessable, and the Company owes approximatelyGRI0LB accumulated and unpaid dividends on thhaees
and there were 2,455,598 shares of authorizedsS&rereferred Stock that remained unissued andadaifor issuance.

On December 31, 2010, there were 338,801 sharesotf Series A Preferred Stock owned by a 8@RP retirement plan whose trustee is
beneficiaries include Robert G. Brown (who is afeonder, director, executive officer and signifitahareholder of SGRP), and 215,601 shar
such Series A Preferred Stock owned by a 8&RP retirement plan whose trustees is and beageéisiinclude William H. Bartels (who also i
co-founder, director, executive officer and signifitahareholder of SGRP), which shares collectivelgstituted all of the outstanding share
Series A Preferred Stock. Those shares were olligiparchased pursuant to subscription agreememtglarch 31, 2008, and September 24, 2
at the closing Nasdagq bid price of SGRP CommonkSimrcthe preceding trading day, which was $1.12gb&re for the March purchases and $
per share for the September purchases. The dafféisale of such Preferred Stock was not registeneter the Securities Act or other secur
laws, as they were a nqnublic offer and sale made in reliance upon (amathgr things) Section 4 (2) of the Securities Agar more informatio
respecting these purchases - "See Note 10 to thedlidated Financial Statements — Related Partgsketions, below."

On or before March 10, 2011, Mr. Brown and Mr. Bt as trustees of those plans, each had requistedheir plan's preferred shares
converted into SGRP Common Stock in accordance itgitterms, and in order to facilitate conversidthmse shares by payment of all accruec
unpaid dividends, on March 10, 2011, SGRP's Bo&rdikectors (i) fixed March 10, 2011, as the apabte record date for determination of
holders of the SGRP Series A Preferred Stock adidith receive such dividends, (ii) declared a divid on such SGRP Series A Preferred ¢
equal to the accrued and unpaid dividends themgaygble in shares of SGRP Common Stock valueceatrirarket value ($2.34 per share) on ¢
record date, and (iii) authorized the issuancéefshares of SGRP Common Stock necessary to stfebtconversion (554,402 shares) and act
dividend payment (54,584 shares) in consideratiothe preferred shares surrendered and the acclive@tends thereby satisfied. As a resul
such conversions and stock dividends, on Marct2@11, Mr. Brown's plans received 372,158 share®GRP Common Stock (33,357 shares of
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8. Preferred Stock (continued)

which were for accrued dividends) and Mr. Bartplan received 236,828 shares of SGRP Common SRIGRZ7 shares of which were for accr
dividends).

9. Employee Benefits

Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has Employee and Consultant Stock BsecRlans (the “SP PlansThe SP Plans allow employees and consultants oCtmepan'
to purchase common stock without having to pay emymissions on the purchases. On August 8, 20@2 Cibmpanys Board of Directol
approved a 15% discount for employee purchasesesuimmended that its affiliates (See Note 10 — tReéarty Transactions) approve a 1
cash bonus for affiliate consultant purchases. Mhgimum amount that any employee or consultantotantribute to the SP Plans per quart
$6,250, and the total number of shares reserveadeb@ompany for purchase under the SP Plans i9600,

Shares purchased by employees and consultants thed&P Plans were 16,763 and 13,237 for 20102a06, respectively. As of December
2010, 141,907 shares remain outstanding underRh@zs.

The Company’s expense resulting from the 15% distoffered to employees and consultants was imradfer all years presented.
Retirement/Pension Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan caogesubstantially all eligible employees. Employenitibutions were suspended for 2009
2010.
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10. Related-Party Transactions

Mr. Robert G. Brown, a Director, the Chairman andajor stockholder of SGRP, and Mr. William H. Bast a Director and the Vice Chairmat
the Company and a major stockholder of SGRP, aeewtive officers and the sole stockholders andctbrs of SPAR Marketing Services, |
("SMS”), SPAR Management Services, Inc. (“SMSI'ZdsSPAR Infotech, Inc. (“SIT").

SMS and SMSI provided approximately 99% of the Canys domestic merchandising specialists field forcd approximately 92% of tl
Companys domestic field management at a total cost of@pprately $20 million and $14 million for 2010 a2609, respectively. Pursuant to
terms of the Amended and Restated Field Servicedwgent dated as of January 1, 2004, as amendedFjgid Services Agreement"), SI
provides merchandising services to the Companyutiirahe use of approximately 5,300 of its fieldckoof merchandising specialists. Pursua
the terms of the Amended and Restated Field ManageAgreement dated as of January 1, 2004, SMSiges 54 fulltime national, regional al
district managers to the Company. For those sesyithe Company has agreed to reimburse SMS and &l of their costs of providing tho
services and to pay SMS and SMSI each a premiurmal équd% of their respective costs (the "Plus Comspé&on”). In 2009, SMS and 1
Company agreed to provide a temporary price coimesy lowering the Plus Compensation rate by ogregntage point, from 4% to 3%, effec
January 1, 2009, continuing through December 30928t which time the Plus Compensation rate wasstated to 4% as of January 1, 2010.
total Plus Compensation earned by SMS and SMSsdorices rendered in 2010 was $778,000. The Rited Compensation (3% of the cost
SMS and SMSI for 2009) earned by SMS and SMSI dovises rendered in 2009 was $404,000.

The Company has continued to purchase those sefv@muse it believes the terms it receives framthre at least as favorable to the Compa
it could obtain from noraffiliated providers of similar services. The Camny periodically engages an outside firm to condustirvey of fees ai
rates charged by comparable national labor souriings to serve as a comparison to the rates chabgesuch affiliates. The most recent ¢
survey showed that the rates negotiated with thiligtés are in fact slightly less than those cleardyy unrelated vendors providing sim
services. The Company's cost of revenue would leeeased by $609,000 and $492,000 for the yeadede December 31, 2010 and 2(
respectively, if the Company would have insteadduae unaffiliated entity to provide comparable =g at the surveyed rates. All affili
contracts are reviewed and approved by SGRP's Aaiitmittee, as described below.

The Company has been advised that Messrs. BrowrBanigls are not paid any salaries as officers dSSr SMSI so there were no sal
reimbursements for them included in such costsrempum. However, since SMS and SMSI are “SubchaBterorporations and are owned
Messrs. Brown and Bartels, all income from SMS 8MbI is allocated to them.

In an effort to further reduce costs and improviicieincies, on January 1, 2010, the Company begafopning its own programming servi
through its centralized data processing facilityalied in Auburn Hills, Michigan, using its own empées and contractors worldwide, and ce
utilizing the programming services of SIT. The Quany hired the majority of the employees and cattra who previously worked for SIT w
SIT's cooperation. In 2009, SIT provided subs#diytiall of the Internet computer programming seed purchased by the Company at a total
of $572,000 for the twelve months ended DecembefB@9. SIT provided approximately 21,000 hourénéérnet computer programming servi
to the Company for the twelve months ended Decei®@begP009. The average hourly billing rate was 626or the twelve months ended Decen
31, 2009. The Company has been advised that ndyhcharges or business expenses for Messrs. BrorBartels were charged to the Comg.
by SIT for the twelve months ended December 3126{@fvever, since SIT is a "Subchapter S" corpora#ind is owned by Messrs. Brown
Bartels, all income of SIT is allocated to them.

In July 2008, the Company, through SPAR MarketingcE, Inc. (“SMF”),entered into a new Master Lease Agreement with Si8,in July an
September of 2008 entered into new separate opgr&ases with SMS pursuant to Equipment Leasinge@des under that Master Le
Agreement. Each operating lease has a 36 monthard representations, covenants and defaultsmasydor the leasing industry. The leases
for handheld computers to be used by field mercisansl in the performance of various merchandisimd) marketing services in the United St
and have a total monthly payment of $11,067. Theselheld computers had an original purchase pricg01,188. The monthly payments
based upon a lease factor of 3.1%.
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In November 2004 and January 2005 and as amendédyir?005, the Company entered into separate dpgriatase agreements between SMS
the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, SPAR MtnkeForce, Inc. (“SMF”) and SPAR Canada ComparyRAR Canada”)Each lease, i
amended, has a 36 month term and representatiouspants and defaults customary for the leasingsing. The SMF lease is for handt
computers to be used by field merchandisers inpthéormance of various merchandising and marketienyices in the United States and h
monthly payment of $17,891. These handheld comgutad an original purchase price of $632,200. TRARS Canada lease is also for hand
computers to be used by field merchandisers inpvformance of various merchandising and markesignyices in Canada and has a mor
payment of $2,972. These handheld computers hatigimal purchase price of $105,000. The monthlyrpents, as amended, are based uf
lease factor of 2.83%. In March 2005, SMF entergd an additional 36 month lease with SMS for hadiltomputers. The lease factor is 2.
and the monthly payment is $2,341. These handlwettbaters had an original purchase price of $82,727.

By March 31, 2008, all of the operating leases ci@tbove had expired. Both SMF and SPAR Canadaeel¢otnotify SMS of their intention
continue to lease the equipment for an additiomadlie month period. On September 24, 2088]S entered into a Bill of Sale and Le
Termination agreement with SMF and SPAR Canadasyaumt to which the parties terminated those leasesSMF purchased from SMS
equipment SMF leased under its existing equipmesagd pursuant to its option thereunder and theeearit SPAR Canada leased under its exi
equipment lease (with SPAR Canada's consent), fotah purchase price of $500,000 (the fair markatie of the hand held computer unite
purchased). SGRP'Audit Committee and Board of Directors each neei@ and approved this affiliated transaction, idoig (without limitation
the terms of the Bill of Sale and the affiliatetht®nship of the parties.

Through arrangements with the Company, SMS, SM8ISIT participate in various benefit plans, insweupolicies and similar group purche
by the Company, for which the Company charges ttieir allocable shares of the costs of those gitaups and the actual costs of all items
specifically for them. All transactions between empany and the above affiliates are paid andibeaed by the Company in the normal col
of business.

The following transactions occurred between the @amy and the above affiliates (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Services provided by affiliate
Independent contractor services (SMS) $ 16,05. $ 10,82(
Field management services (SMSI) $ 4,11C $ 3,22¢
Handheld computer leases (SMS) $ 132 $ 13z
Internet and software program consulting ises/(SIT) $ - $ 572
Accrued expenses due to affiliates (in thousgnd December 31
2010 2009
Total accrued expenses due to affiliates $ 157t $ 1,43¢

In addition to the above, through the services ity Insurance, Ltd. (“Affinity”), the Company purchases insurance coverage fordtsattg ani
property insurance risk. The Company’s Chairman\died Chairman own, through SMSI, a minority (I&san 1%) equity interest in Affinity.
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10. Related-Party Transactions (continued)

SGRP5 Audit Committee periodically reviews and has appd all of the related party relationships anageztions described above, as reqt
by and in accordance with its Charter and the CatyipaCode of Ethical ConduddASDAQ rules and applicable law, the Audit Commétteview:
each material related party transaction for itsraldairness to the Company, both initially andipdically (often annually), which review incluc
(without limitation) the costs and benefits to tBhempany, the other terms of the transactions, tlieted relationship of the parties, and whe
the overall economic and other terms are (or castito be) no less favorable to the Company tharloMoe the case with an unrelated provide
substantially similar services.

11. Stock Based Compensation

SGRP currently has five stock option plans: th&@&&tock Compensation Plan ("2008 Plan"), the 28@fck Option Plan ("2000 Plan"), 1
Special Purpose Stock Option Plan ("Special Purdar"), the Amended and Restated 1995 Stock Oftlan (“1995 Plan™and the Directol
Plan.

On May 29, 2008, SGRP's stockholders approved dogtad the 2008 Plan as the successor to the 2800tRe 1995 Plan and the Direc®Plar
with respect to all new options issued. The 20GHRirovides for the granting of either incentivenonqualified stock options, restricted st
restricted stock units, stock appreciation rightd ather stock based awards to specified employeesultants, and directors of the Comp
although to date SGRP has not issued any permeskibin of award other than stock options. Purstarhe 2008 Plan, no more than 5,600
shares of SGRP's common stock in the aggregatex(tilan Covered Shares") may be covered by optiorsthtar awards issued from time to ti
under the 2008 Plan on or after May 29, 2009 ("Mewvards"), or to the extent still outstanding on M2§, 2008, issued at any time under the .
Plan or 1995 Plan ("Continuing Awards"). Sharegeted by New Awards or Continuing Awards that egpiapse, terminate, are forfeited, bec
void or otherwise cease to exist (other than assalr of exercise) are added back to the Maximurve@m Shares and become available for
grants, while those shares covered by exercised Awards or Continuing Awards are not added back accbrdingly effectively reduce t
Maximum Covered Shares under the 2008 Plan. Thiergphave a maximum term of ten years, excephéndase of incentive stock optis
granted to greater than 10% stockholders (whosestarre limited to a maximum of five years), and $GRas generally issued options ha
maximum terms.

On December 4, 2000, SGRP adopted the 2000 Pltre asiccessor to the 1995 Plan and the Direcfldn with respect to all new options iss
The 2000 Plan provides for the granting of eitherentive or nonqualified stock options to specifeedployees, consultants, and directors o
Company for the purchase of up to 3,600,000 (lesset options still outstanding under the 1995 Blagxercised after December 4, 2000 unde
1995 Plan). The options generally had a term ofygars, except that incentive stock options gratdegteater than 10% stockholders generally
five year terms. The exercise price of nonqualiiéatk options must be equal to at least 85% ofdhiemarket value of SGRB’common stock
the date of grant (although typically the options igsued at 100% of the fair market value), amdetkercise price of incentive stock options mu:
equal to at least the fair market value of SGRBmImON stock at the date of grant.

On July 8, 1999, in connection with the merger, $GRRtablished the Special Purpose Plan of PIA Merdising Services, Inc. to provide for
issuance of substitute options to the holders tftanding options granted by SPAR Acquisition, Iflcere were options to purchase 134,114 s
granted at $0.01 per share under this plan. SulyeB) 1999, SGRP has not granted any new optiadegiuthis plan.

The 1995 Plan provided for the granting of eitherentive or nonqualified stock options to specéioployees, consultants, and directors o
Company for the purchase of up to 3,500,000 sha#fr8&RPS common stock. The options had a term of ten yfeams the date of issuance, exc
in the case of incentive stock options grantedréatgr than 10% stockholders for which the term fiveessyears. The 1995 Plan was supersede
the 2008 Plan and the 2000 Plan with respect toeall options issued.

The Director’s Plan was a stock option plan for 4eomployee directors and provided for the purchdagao 120,000 shares of SGRRommol

stock. Since 2000, SGRP has not granted any neangpinder this plan. The DirecterPlan has been replaced by the 2008 Plan and@®:Pal
with respect to all new options issued.
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11. Stock Based Compensation (continued)
Summary of 2010 Plan Activities:

Outstanding Options

Beginning December 31

Plan Balance Granted Exercised Cancelled 2010 Balance

2008 Plar 2,102,18! 422,95( (40,06%) (32,600 2,452 ,47.
2000 Plar 281,04 - (14,87¢) (37,000 229,16!
Special Purpose Ple - - - - -
1995 Plar 2,00( - - (2,000 -
Director’s Plan — — — — —
Total 2,385,23I 422 ,95( (54,947) (71,600 2,681,63!

SGRP grants options to purchase shares of comrook isisued by SGRP to its directors, officers, eygés and certain employees of its affili
pursuant to its 2008 Stock Compensation Plan, ended (the “2008 Plan”gnd has granted stock options under various predecelans th
continue to be outstanding. SGRP has the authtritysue other types of stotiesed awards under the 2008 Plan, but to datediatone so. Tt
Company accounts for its employee and affiliate leyg®e stock option expense as compensation expaertbe Companys financial statemer
when the stock options are granted. Shmrsed compensation cost is measured on the gremtldsed on the fair value of the award calculal
that date, and is recognized over the requisiteéeperiod, which generally is the options’ vegtiperiod. Fair value is calculated using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The options graritade a ten (10) year life and vest over fgaar periods at a rate of 25% per year, beginni

the first anniversary of the date of grant.

On August 6, 2009, 330,000 new stock option gramse issued to employees, officers, and certainl@yeps of its affiliate at an exercise prict
$0.40, which represents the fair market value share of the Comparg’common stock on August 6, 2009, as determinetdordance with tt
Company’s 2008 Stock Compensation Plan. The estoingtock compensation expense is $93,000 and @200 employees and namployees
respectively, which will be recognized ratably otles four-year vesting period.

At the 2009 annual meeting on May 28, 2009, theldtolders of SGRP approved an amendment (the “BiagriAmendment”}o the 2008 Ple
that gives the Compensation Committee of SGRP'sdofDirectors (the "Compensation Committee") fak authority and complete flexibilit
from time to time to designate and modify (in iisadetion) one or more of the outstanding stockomst or other awards (including their exer:
prices and other terms) to (among other thingsjorestheir intended values and incentives to thwilders. No further consent of SGRP’
stockholders is required for any repricing or othedification of any award pursuant to the Repgchmendment. The Repricing Amendir
permits changes in all outstanding stock optiond ather awards, including those previously issuedeu predecessor plans. However
modification can adversely affect an awardee’stagir obligations under an award without the awaisleonsent.

On August 6, 2009, in order to restore the intendalde and incentives under SGRP's outstandind siptions as permitted by the Repric
Amendment, the Compensation Committee and Boardogpg a plan to offer to its employees, officersectors, consultants and retirees
opportunity to surrender options on approximatelly raillion shares of the Company's common stoclexichange for repriced replacement opt
(“New Option Contracts”)in the same amount as the surrendered option skacept for those surrendered by outside directans, will receive
fewer replacement shares.

The Company detailed such plan in its Offer to Exwe Certain Outstanding Stock Options for New IStOptions dated August 24, 2(
(including its exhibits and incorporated documetits,"Exchange Offer"), as filed with the SEC m 8chedule TO on August 25, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, pursuant to the Companychdige Offer: eighty-one of the Compangligible officers, employees and consult
voluntarily surrendered for exchange and cancelettieir existing option contracts to
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11. Stock Based Compensation (continued)

purchase an aggregate of 1,257,740 shares of SG®RmoN stock, representing approximately 82.5%heftotal option shares under all exis
option contracts eligible for exchange. Those @égsbption contracts were accepted for exchangéhbyCompany; and in exchange for tt
surrendered option contracts, the Company issugd steck option contracts to them to purchase arreagge of 1,257,740 shares of SGI
common stock (“New Option Contractsfhese New Option Contracts have an exercise pfi§®.d0 per share, which represents the fair m
value of a share of SGRP's common stock on Auguad®@ (their grant date), as determined in aceurgavith SGRP's 2008 Stock Compens:
Plan and will vest over four (4) years. The incesal compensation expense to the Company is ajppately $92,000 (based on current Black-
Scholes computation factors), which will be recagdiratably over the vesting period from Augu2aQ9, to August 6, 2013.

Also on September 24, 2009, pursuant to the Conipdixchange Offer: all five of the Compasyeligible current and retired outside direc
voluntarily surrendered for exchange and cancelatieir existing option contracts to purchase ggregate of 530,564 shares of SGRP's con
stock, representing 98.2% of the total option shameder all existing option contracts eligible éxchange by such directors; those existing o
contracts were accepted for exchange by the Compautyin exchange for those surrendered optiorraots;, the Company issued new stock of
contracts to them to purchase an aggregate of @d6sbares of SGRP's common stock for exchange anceltation of their existing opti
contracts. These new contracts have an exerdise @fr$0.40 per share, which represents the faiket value of a share of SGRP's common ¢
on August 6, 2009 (their grant date), as determinextcordance with the Company's 2008 Stock Cosgiem Plan, vest immediately, and hav
incremental compensation expense to the Compahg. nimber of shares covered by the new stock aptieceived by the outside direci
averaged 0.83 new option shares for each surresh@ered cancelled option share, which they requioeavbid any such incremental compenss
expense to the Company from their participatiothenrepricing exchange.

Based upon the Black-Scholes calculation, shased compensation expense related to employdeaition grants totaled $131,000 and $136
for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2008ectgely. Compensation expense related to emmployee stock option grants awarded tc
employees of the Comparsyaffiliates was $80,000 and $70,000 for the yeaded December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivelg. uflamortize
expense as of December 31, 2010, was approxim&@#0,000 for outstanding stock option grants. Timpact of the total sharease:
compensation expense on basic/diluted earningshaee was $0.01 for both years ended Decembe030, &hd 2009.

On March 10, 2010, in connection with an Investefa®ons Consulting agreement dated August 15, 2008 Alliance Advisors LLC, the Boa
of Directors approved the issuance of 120,000 shaf SGRP common stock in return for a cash payre#0.01 per share and services renc
by Alliance Advisors LLC to the Company.

The following table summarizes stock option acgivinder SGRP’s plans:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding, January 1
2009 2,245,44! $ 1.21
2009
Granted 2,123,73! $ 0.41
Exercisec - -
Canceled or expired (1,983,95) 1.2z
Options outstanding, Decembe
31, 200¢ 2,385,233 $ 0.4¢
2010
Granted 422 ,95( $ 0.9¢
Exercisec (54,94)) 0.47
Canceled or expired (71,600 0.9C
Options outstanding, Decembe
31, 2010 2,681,63! ¢ 0.5t
Option price range at Decembe
31, 201C $0.01 to $4.6¢
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11. Stock Based Compensation (continued)

Grant Date weighted average fair value of optiamsigd during

the yeal

2010

2009

0.9¢ $

0.41

The following table summarizes information abowtcktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2010:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Number
Number Average Average Exercisable at Weighted
Range of Outstanding at Remaining Exercise December 31, Average
Exercise Prices December 31, 201C Contractual Life Price 2010 Exercise Price
Less than $1.0 2,598,47. 8.57 year: $ 0.52 976,65" $ 0.4¢
$1.01- $2.00 78,91t 4.02 year: 1.2¢8 73,41¢ 1.27
$2.01- $4.00 4,00( 2.08 year: 2.9¢ 4,00( 2.9¢
Greater than $4.00 25C 2.60 years $ 4.65 25C $ 4.65
Total 2,681,63! 1,054,32!

12. Geographic Data

The Company operates in the same single businegrese (e.g., merchandising and marketing serviged)oth its Domestic Merchandisi

Services Division and its International MerchandisiServices Division. The Company uses those idivésto improve its administration

operational and strategic focuses, and it trackisraports certain financial information separafelyeach of those divisions, as described in It¢
— Business in our Annual Report, above. The Compaagsures the performance of its domestic and itierral divisions and subsidiaries us
the same metrics. The primary measurement utillgednanagement is operating profits, historicalig key indicator of longerm growth an
profitability, as the Company is focused on reiivgsthe operating profits of each of its interoatil subsidiaries back into its local markets i
effort to improve market share and continued exjpanefforts. Set forth below are summaries (inuends) of the Company's net revenues
its United States subsidiaries (i.e., the Domebterchandising Services Division) and from its imi&ional (nond.S.) subsidiaries (i.e., t
International Merchandising Services Division), net revenue froertain international subsidiaries as a percentarisolidated net reveni

operating income (loss) and long lived assets lmggephic area for 2010 and 2009, respectively:

Year Ended Decembel

31,
2010 2009
Net revenues
United State: $ 3656: $ 26,427
International 26,59( 31,12¢
Total net revenues $ 63,15 $§ 57,54¢
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12. Geographic Data (continued)

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Net revenue % of consolidated net % of consolidated net
International : revenue revenue
Australia $ 7,711 12.2% $ 6,171 10.7%
Canads 7,21¢ 11.4% 4,66° 8.1%
Japar 4,08¢ 6.5% 10,97: 19.1%
India 2,93¢ 4.€% 5,01( 8.7%
All Others 4,63¢ 7.2% 4,30¢ 7.5%
Total international netrevent $  26,59( 42.(% $ 31,12: 54.1%

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009
Operating income (loss
United State: $ 3,04: % 88¢
International (212) (56€)
Total operating income $ 2,831 $ 322

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Long lived asset:
United State: $ 2231 $ 4,001
International 657 27¢€
Total long lived assets $ 2,88t $ 4,27¢

Purchase of Interest in Subsidiaries

In July 2009, the Company purchased the remain8@®) dwnership in the Company's existing Romaniarsisligry, which currently has minin
operations. As consideration for purchase, the izom forgave $34,344 of debt owed by the formeallaevestor. The Company is curret
assessing ongoing business opportunities for thisidiary.

On August 6, 2009, the Board of Directors and itedih Committee approved the purchase of the 51%eositip in S.C. SPAR City S.R.L.
Romanian marketing services company, held by SPafBtdch, Inc. (“SIT"), an affiliated company (Seetd 10, Relatedrarty Transaction
above), for a cost of $61,876, which was the fairket value of SIT's interest in the company aduvfe 30, 2009. The purchase by the Compa
SIT's entire 51% ownership in such new Romaniarsigidry was effective as of July 1, 2009, for pug® of the consolidation of the r
Romanian subsidiary into the Company's financiateshents. The remaining 49% ownership in the nemdhian subsidiary is held by
Romanian party not affiliated with the Company.

On September 27, 2010, the Company purchased thainig 49% ownership in the Compasysubsidiary in India at a cost of $90,000.
Company is actively pursuing alternative local istees to purchase a 49% ownership interest in India

Effective August 31, 2009, the Company purchased¢maining 50% ownership in the Compangubsidiary in China, SPAR China Limited,

cost of $1.00 and its assumption of a working epitan payable to the previous local investordpproximately $191,000 USD payable in e
monthly installments beginning September 2009. The

F-27




SPAR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatnu

12. Geographic Data (continued)

Company was actively pursuing a new local investadhe merchandising business to purchase a 498¢esittin itssubsidiary in China. On Mar
23, 2010, the Company entered into a joint venagmeement with a Local Partner in mainland China.

Effective November 30, 2009 the Company purchalseddmaining 50% ownership in the Compangubsidiary in Japan, SPAR FM Japan, In
a cost of 667,578 Yen or approximately $8,000 UBadn The Company is actively pursuing a new Igzatner in the merchandising busines
purchase a 49% interest in its subsidiary in Japan.

New International Subsidiary organized

On July 26, 2010 the Company announced the stingtwf a new joint venture corporation in Chinalwits new joint venture local inves
Shanghai Wedone Marketing Consulting Co., Ltd. e joint venture will have national market preseircChina.

The new joint venture corporation is called SPARg$ghai) Marketing Management Company Ltd.. SPAR®W1% of the joint ventu
corporation while Shanghai Wedone Marketing Comsgllowns 49% in accordance with the laws of thepRee Republic of China. The new jc
venture corporation, which started operations ormgusti 1, 2010, has begun providing merchandising eeldted marketing services
manufacturers and retailers throughout China.

Shanghai Wedone Marketing Consulting is a comprglenmarketing management company that provideadb@mmunication and ret
marketing management service in China. They wotk wiore than 50 international brands such as @mia; Unilever, Johnson & Johnson

Swatch, and several prominent Chinese brands subteag Niu Dairy, Guan Sheng Yuan and Dong{&&- Their business covers all tier 1, 2
3 cities in China, which equal more than 150 citesughout the country.

The effects of the above transactions on the roeinire attributed to the Company and transfers fitoenmibon-controlling interest are as follows
thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2010 2009
Net income attributed to SPAR Group, |i $ 2,167 $ 50z
Increase in SPAR Group, Inc. Paid in Capital forchase of subsidiaries common stock 51 61
Change from net income attributed to SPAR Grougp, &md transfer from non-controlling interest $ 2,21t $ 568

The purpose of the above schedule is to discloseeffects of changes in the Company’s ownershigrést in its subsidiaries on the Company’
equity.
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13. Net Income Per Share
The following table sets forth the computationdasic and diluted net income per share (in thousaedtept per share data):

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Numerator:

Net income $ 2,167 $ 502
Denominator

Shares used in basic net income per share cadru 19,20¢ 19,13¢

Effect of diluted securitie:

Employee stock options: 1,39: 29E

Shares used in diluted net income per share leilcos 20,60: 19,43¢

Basic and diluted net income per common st $ 011 $ 0.0z

14. Acquisitions

On December, 4 2009, the Company acquired subslignéll of the business and customer contracts lained certain employees of Bren
Associates Inc., an assembly service and merchiagdiervice company that also did business as NaltiMarketing Services or "NMS". NN
was in a bankruptcy proceeding. With the appro¥ahe court, the trustee and NMS's secured lerldvlorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("Chase"), ar
return for the transfer of certain NMS assets ® @ompany, Chase released certain claims again§,Nbd the Company agreed to compel
Chase through a contingent eaun-based on achieving certain future gross revésweds and to indemnify Chase for up to $50,00Qrfollecte:
NMS receivables in the event the collections byttiistee and Chase were less than the specifietinomim. The $50,000 was paid to Chase
recorded as goodwill. No other consideration waid for NMS.

The earn out is based on the Company achievinggat £8.0 million in gross revenue from the acquiM®1S business on a rolling 12 month be
If this revenue level is achieved, Chase will b @ monthly earmut that could aggregate $350,000 during a 12 mpatlod. If the Compar
achieved a similar gross revenue level on suchsss lturing a second 12 month period, Chase wilh&id a second monthly eaowt that coul
aggregate $350,000 over that period (thus providihgse with a potential eaowt of $700,000 over a 24 month period). The earof $8.(
million in gross revenue was not achieved in thst fiwelve months and current revenue levels danditate that the remaining earn out will
triggered, as such, no contingent liability wasorded.The acquired NMS assets included all of theksof its wholly owned subsidiaries; Natio
Assembly Services, Inc., a New Jersey corporatia performs irhome furniture assembly services ("NAS"), and NM&aR Services UL!
("NRS”), a Nova Scotia unlimited Liability Company that merhs merchandising services in Canada. The praheigsets of NAS and NRS w
cash and accounts receivable, which had an appateifair value of $205,000 on December 4, 2009, thad principal liabilities were accoul
payable and accrued expenses, which had a faie \afl$214,000 on the date of such acquisition.séssidiaries of the Company, the assets
liabilities of NAS and NMS Canada, as well as theults since the date of acquisition, are indluidethe Company's 2009 consolidated finar
statements.

In March 2010, the Company established a new Canadubsidiary, SPAR Wings & Ink Company ("SWI") eifieally to expand it
merchandising and marketing services throughout@anOn April 1, 2010, with the approval of SGRHirectors, SWI acquired substantially
of the business, customer contracts, receivablesk-im progress, other assets and certain liabilitit2@/8281 Ontario Limited, an Onta
merchandising and marketing company doing busiassd/ings & Ink (the "Seller"). The Company, at @hgs also hired substantially all of 1
Seller’s employees including offering consultingtracts to the principals of the Seller.

In return for the purchase of such assets and assliabilities, at closing SWI compensated the Sethrough 1) a cash payment of $500

Canadian dollars (“CAD”")2) issued a $75,000 CAD interest bearing promissatg payable over an 18 month period and 3) pl&&8J000 ii
escrow for a 12 month period and 4) assumed $48673D of liabilities.
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The Company has completed its valuation of thevialiue and allocation for the assets acquired ihilities assumed and has recorded the
following (in US dollars):

Accounts Receivabl $ 644,00(
Equipment 2,00c¢
Customer contracts 426,00(

$1,072,00

The Company is amortizing the customer contract4@6,000 on a straight line basis over 5 yeatse fet book value at December 31, 2010
$362,000. Amortization expense for the year enddegember 31, 2010 was approximately $64,000. drmual amortization amount of th:
contracts is expected to be approximately $82,002011-2013 and $18,000 in 2014.

SWI also agreed to pay an earn out to the pringipélthe Seller based on SWI achieving certain mageand gross profit margin levels of
acquired business for each of the next two12 mpatiods. The earn out is based on revenue and groBsmargins exceeding certain agreed (
base levels, if achieved, the principles will bépane third of the excess gross profit dollargdch of the two 12 month periods. The Compan
not recorded a contingent liability as it is unlikéhese revenue and gross margin targets will be m

15. Mergers

In 2010, the Company entered into merger agreermttiveen several of its inactive subsidiariesnireffiort to simplify the Compang’reporting
structure.

The following inactive subsidiaries were merge@iSPAR All Store Marketing Services, Inc. (as thevor):

« SPAR Technology Group, Inc.
« SPAR/PIA Retail Services, Inc.
« Retail Resources, Inc.

« Pivotal Field Services, Inc.

The following inactive subsidiaries were mergeaiRtA Merchandising Co. Inc. (as the survivor):
« Pivotal Sales Company

The following inactive subsidiaries were mergeaiSPAR Marketing Force, Inc. (as the survivor):
« SPAR/Burgoyne Retail Services, Inc.
« SPAR, Inc.
« SPAR Marketing, Inc.

There is no expected tax or reporting impact exgefrom the above mergers, as all such subsidiesées inactive.
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(In thousands)

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and End
Period Expenses Deductions® of Period

Year ended December 31, 20.
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 317 26E 43¢ $ 143
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accour $ 292 412 387 $ 317

Q) Uncollectible accounts written ofétrof recoveries
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Exhibit 14.2
SPAR GROUP, INC.
STATEMENT OF POLICY REGARDING
PERSONAL SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS IN SGRP STOCK AND
NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION
As Adopted, Restated, Effective and Dated as of Ma3004,
and
As Further Amended Through March 10, 2011

The Board of Directors and Governance Committe8RAR Group, Inc. (" SGRB, have adopted this SPAR Group Statement of P&liegardin
Personal Securities Transactions in SGRP StockNordPublic Information Dated, Adopted and EffectiveaisMay 1, 2004, and As Furtr
Amended Through March 10, 2011 (as the same mag begn and hereafter may be modified, amendeateedsor replaced from time to time
the manner provided herein, this " Polify " Company" shall mean each of SGRP, each of its direct ad@éct subsidiaries and (to the ex
they have agreed to adopt this Policy and apply fheir Covered Persons) each of SGRP's othdiatd. " SGRP Securiti€ésneans any commt
stock or other securities issued by SGRP. SGRRasieesd SPAR Marketing Services, Inc., SPAR Managei8ervices, Inc., and SPAR Infote
Inc. (the three SGRP affiliates currently providisgrvices to SGRP and its subsidiaries) to adaptRblicy to apply to their respective Cove
Employees as if they were SGRP subsidiaries, acld leas done so. Accordingly, such SPAR affiliatesll be included as part of the Compan)
purposes of this Policy.

1. Non-Public Information - Introduction

Each officer, director or employee of the Comparayrfrom time to time receive or become aware ofemal, nonpublic information regarding tl
Company that may be of significance to the seagitharkets. Material information is any informatibat an investor would consider importar
a decision to buy, hold or sell a security. Whiles impossible to provide a detailed list of géineric types of material information, the follog
list illustrates events that are often considereatemal: internal nompublic financial reports and forecasts; mergeraayuisitions, increases
decreases in revenues or profits, important neviracis or projects and important financing develepta. Nonpublic information is informatic
that has not been generally known or availableh&ihvesting community for at least two trading slaycluding any trading day where a pu
announcement or other disclosure thereof is mafteder reasonably concurrently with the openingradiing.

Under the Insider Trading and Securities Fraud Esfment Act of 1988, it is illegal for any persanttade securities based on material, pablic
information ("_insider trading) or to give such information to someone else wien makes a trade (" tippiriyy Under federal law, penalties
insider violations include disgorgement of profitssil penalties of three times the amount of pgrotined or loss avoided, criminal fines of u
$1,000,000 and jail terms of up to ten years.

In addition, the Securities and Exchange Commis§i@EC") may seek penalties of up to $1,000,000 or thiraes the amount of profit gained
loss avoided (whichever is greater) against "cdiimigp persons" for failing to take proper stepspt@vent insider trading or tipping violations
those under their supervision. Under current keamtrolling persons may include SGRP, its directord its officers.

2. Policy and Procedures — No Trading on or Disosure of Non-Public Information, Etc.
The Company is committed to the maintenance ofejpsitation for ethical conduct as well as to fudinpliance with applicable laws. In orde
help ensure that trading in SGRP Securities doesasalt in violations of law, the Company has iempented the following policies and proced:

applicable to each director, officer and employkethe Company (each a " Covered Per§omxcept as otherwise noted in item 3, below.

It is the Company's policy that a Covered Persatl stot under any circumstances use any poblic information with respect to the Company
his or her benefit or trade in any SGRP Securiiesther securities related to such information.

Company personnel should not discuss or disclosepnblic information to anyone else within the Compamless such person has a clear

and need to know such information in order to fulfis or her job responsibilities. Company pemsainshould not discuss or disclose ¢
information under any circumstance with anyoneidetthe Company, including (without limitation) afamily member, relative
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or business or social acquaintance. If you areimenehether certain information should be considenside information, you should resolve
doubt by assuming that it is such inside informatiQuestions concerning what is or is not insigfermation should be directed to the C
Financial Officer of the Company.

3. Blackout Period on SGRP Securities for Spe@ifd Restricted Persons

The Company has determined that the individualglihgl any of the following positions (each a " Res&d Persorl) may not under ar
circumstance trade in SGRP Securities in which theye a beneficial interest (except as otherwiseiged below) during a period (aBlackou
Period") that (i) begins on the tenth day of the thirdmioof any fiscal quarteri(e. , March 10, June 10, September 10 and Decembena@)(ii)
ends on the close of the second trading day afteirtitial public announcement or other disclosofSGRP's financial results for the applic:
first, second or third fiscal quarter or the fisgaar, as the case may be. If such public annonece or other disclosure is made befor
reasonably concurrently with the opening of tradimga trading day, that trading day counts asitetfading day after such public announcer
or other disclosure.

The Restricted Persons are:
« Each member of the Board of Directors;
« The Chairman, Vice-Chairman, President, Treas@ecretary, Controller and each other executive gemaf the Company;
« Any assistant controller, director of accounting/gzes or other similar financial staff member loé tCompany;

« Any other person receiving copies (whether hardycapectronic or otherwise) of internal npoblic financial reports, forecasts or sim
materials; ant

« Any Related Person (as defined below) of such Réstr Person to the extent required by applicable |

The prohibition against trading by a RestrictedsBerduring such a Blackout Period in SGRP Secardfall not apply to: (a) any private purct
or sale by a Restricted Person that does not ievalmarket transaction, does not involve the peididclosure of any nopublic information, an
satisfies the requirements of an available exemptieder the Securities Act of 1933, as amended"(Becurities Act’), the rules and regulatio
thereunder, and any applicable state securities (lB\wany cash or cashless exercise by such indiidf any employee, director or affiliate st
option; (c) any purchase, sale or other transagtiothe market or otherwise) by or through anyld0t similar plan, employee or consultant st
purchase plan or other employee benefit plan ferbinefit of a participating individual in accordarwith (i) any directions given or allocatic
made outside of any Blackout Period by such indiglcbutside of any Blackout Period or (ii) the regments of such plan or applicable law;
any sale to (and purchase by), any gift to or amertransfer to or from (1) such individual's speuchildren, or grandchildren, (2) any tr
rollover account or other plan for the benefit atls individual and/or such other persons, (3) aastnership, limited liability company or ott
entity in which such individual and/or such othergons are the only equity holders, or (4) anoRestricted Person or SGRP,dachcaseso long
as such sale, purchase or other transfer is noerma@ market transaction; (e) any purchase pexchitinder Rule 1068 under the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the " Exchange"A@ny trade under a written plan established idat®f any Blackout Period for (
automatic trading of SGRP Securities through altparty broker or (2) discretionary trading of SGB&urities by an independent persay(., €
broker or investment adviser) so long as such peisonot aware of material nonpublic informatiorrpyided that such plan satisfies t
requirements of Rule 10bb-under the Exchange Act and the trading authdoizst formulae and the like are not changed dutiregBlackou
Period, or any trade satisfying the requirementsrof other similar statutory, regulatory or intefpre safe harbor or exception; (f) any tr
permitted at the time under any applicable emengemder issued by the SEC and its related extessém interpretations, including (with
limitation) those issued pursuant to Section 120k}f the Exchange Act; or (g) any purchase, saletler transaction (in the market or othern
by a Restricted Person to provide any funds reddpmaquired by such person respecting or relategttly or indirectly to any personal hardshiy
such person or his or her relative or other depetdacluding (without limitation) any death, dighty, infirmity, illness, long or short term cal
loss, calamity or other extraordinary circumstaoc@ny educational expense, in each case so lofiy sisch Restricted Person has given a
written request to SGRP's Chief Executive OfficerGhief Financial Officer for permission to makeckurade due to personal hardship, w
request shall include a brief description of suahdship and proposed trade and a certificationhbair she decided to make such trade at tha
because of such hardship and not because of amsriadatonpublic information that he or she may have, (iiymission to make such hards
trade has been given in writing (A) pursuant tesotution adopted by SGRP's Governance Committdeinase of any requesting person,
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or (B) by any such SGRP Officer in the case of eeguesting person other than anyone otherwise nedjtd file any report respecting his or
SGRP stock transactions or holdings with the SE@euRule 16a of the Exchange Act, and (iii) sucéy; if and to the extent made, is mac
accordance with such terms and conditions as mapéeified in such permission.

However, no Restricted Person or other CoveredoReshall at any time or under any circumstanceetiadany SGRP Securities using matt
non-public information, even if such a BlackoutiBdris not then in effect.

4. Beneficial Interests and Responsibility foRelated Persons

A Covered Person will generally be deemed undelicgipe law to have a beneficial interest in SGRRBities when (among other things): (a)
Covered Person has the power to vote or direct/tie of such securities; (b) the Covered Personttg®wer to sell or direct the sale of s
securities; (c) the Covered Person has the rigptdéit or share in any profit from such securitiés) the Covered Person owns options, warr
convertible securities or other rights to acquiretssecurities; or (e) any Related Person (to thee@2d Person) owns such securities or any op
warrants, convertible securities or other righta¢quire them.

A " Related Persoh of a Restricted Person or other Covered Persoindes, to the extent required by applicable lajvarly 401k, benefit pla
stock purchase plan or other plan for the benéfuch Restricted Person or Covered Person,r{ji)taust where such Restricted Person or Coy
Person is a trustee, (iii) any corporation, limitéability company, partnership or other entity aehor controlled by such Restricted Pe
or Covered Person, (iv) the spouse of such RéstriPerson or Covered Person who has the same &®mech Restricted Person or Cov
Person, and (v) any family member of such Restti€erson or Covered Person or his or her spousehab the same home as such Rest
Person or Covered Person.

A Covered Person also may under certain circumethe deemed under applicable law to have a béaléfiterest in the SGRP Securities thai
held by other family members, trusts and affiliatesthe extent required by applicable law. CoveRsisons include (without limitation)
Restricted Persons to the extent required by agigéclaw. SGRP itself is neither a Covered Perswra Restricted Person.

A Covered Person may be liable for any violationhi Policy by his or her Related Person(s).

5. Recommended Notice Before Each Purchase aul& of SGRP Securities

For their own protection, the Company recommendséhach Restricted Person notify the Chief Findr@@fficer before or contemporaneously v
any purchase or sale by such Restricted Persois or her Related Person of any SGRP Securities.

6. Penalty for Violation of Policy

Any Covered Person violating this Policy in any engl respect (as determined by the Board) wilsbkject to disciplinary action, and (depent
on the circumstances and severity) may be termiriaye¢he Company.

Please note that acts or omissions of a CoveresbRén violation of this Policy also may violateptipable law and subject the Covered Persc
possible civil or criminal liability, whether or hthe Company may take any such disciplinary action

7.  Questions Regarding this Policy

Questions concerning this Policy should be refeteethe Chief Financial Officer. If any personibegs that they may have inadvertently viol:
the law or this policy in connection with purchasesale of SGRP Securities, such person shoulduttongh their own counsel before discuss
the details thereof with the Chief Financial Office

8. Code of Ethical Conduct Provisions Incorporated byReference

This Policy is part of the Company's codes of ethtonduct, including (without limitation) the SPARoup, Inc., Code of Ethical Conduct for
Directors, Senior Executives and Employees Datsd{pMay 1, 2004 (as the same may be supplememtedified, amended, restated or reple
from time to time in the manner provided therelre t Code"). This Policy shall be governed by and constriredccordance with the provisic
contained in Article VI (entitled "Covered PersoResponsibilities") and Article VII (entitled "Mistlaneous") of the Code (and any succe
provisions, however numbered), which provisions iamrporated by reference into this Policy asuéls provisions were fully set forth in tl
Policy and this Policy were the "Code" referredintsuch incorporated provisions.
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100 % Owned Subsidiari

PIA Merchandising Co , Inc

PIA Merchandising Limitec

Pacific Indoor Display Co , In
SPAR Acquisition, Inc

SPAR All Store Marketing Services, Ir
SPAR Canada Compal

SPAR Wings & Ink Compan

SPAR Canada, Int

SPAR Group International, In
SPAR Incentive Marketing, In
SPAR International LTLC

SPAR Marketing, Inc. (f/k/a SPAR Acquisition, In
SPAR Marketing Force, In

SPAR Trademarks, In

SPAR Merchandising Romania, Li
SPAR China Ltd

SPAR FM Japan, In

SPAR Solutions India Private Limite
SPAR Shanghe

NMS Retail Services, UL(

National Assembly Services, Ir

51% Owned International Subsidiaries

SGRP Meridian (Pty), Ltc

SPAR Turkey Ltd

UAB SPAR RSS Baltic

SPARFACTS Australia (Pty), Ltc

S.C. SPAR City S.R.L

SPAR (Shanghai) Marketing Management Company

SPAR Group, Inc.

List of Subsidiaries

Exhibit 21.1

State/Country of Incorporatit
Californie

Nova Scotia, Cana
Californie

Nevadi

Nevadi

Nova Scotia, Cana
Nova Scotia, Cana
Nevad:

Nevad:

Delawart

Cayman lIslanc
Delawart

Nevadi

Nevadi

Romanii

Chine

Japal

India

Chine

Nova Scotia, Cana
New Jerse

Country
South Africe
Turkey
Lithuanie
Australie
Romanii
Chine



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the use of our report dated Marct2@5], with respect to the consolidated finandialesnents and schedules of SPAR Group.
and Subsidiaries for the years ended December@®1) and 2009 included in its Annual Report on FA@K for the year ended December
2010, and to their use (directly or through incogtion by reference), and to the reference to aum kinder the caption “Expertsif @pplicable), ir
each of the following: the Registration Statenmmform S-8 (No. 3387377) pertaining to the 1995 Stock Option Plar;Registration Stateme
on Form S-8 (No. 333-53400) pertaining to the Sgdeurpose Stock Option Plan; the Registratione@tant Form S-8 (No. 3333000) pertainin
to the 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; the Rafijign Statement on Form S-8 (No. 3833002) pertaining to the 2000 Stock Option Plan
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 352706) pertaining to the SPAR Group, Inc. 2008ciSt€ompensation Plan; the Registra
Statement on Form S-8 (No. 332998) pertaining to the 2001 Consultant Stock Pase Plan of SPAR Group, Inc.; the RegistratioteStant ol
Form S-3 (No. 333:62657) pertaining to the registered offering aalé ®f certain shares of common stock of SPAR Gréup; and each relat
Prospectus, Supplemental Prospectus or Summaryiptse.

/s/ Rehmann Robsc

Troy, Michigan
March 15, 2011



Exhibit 23.2
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

We consent to the use of our report dated Marct2@1}, with respect to the consolidated finandialesnents and schedules of SPAR Group.
and Subsidiaries for the years ended December@®1) cluded in its Annual Report on Form K{der the year ended December 31, 2010, a
their use (directly or through incorporation byeneince), and to the reference to our Firm undec#ption “Experts” if applicable), in each of ti
following: the Registration Statement on Form gN®. 33307377) pertaining to the 1995 Stock Option Plae; Registration Statement on Fc
S-8 (No. 333-53400) pertaining to the Special PsepStock Option Plan; the Registration StatementnF$-8 (No. 333#3000) pertaining to tt
2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; the Registr&tatement on Form S-8 (No. 333002) pertaining to the 2000 Stock Option Plam
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 352706) pertaining to the SPAR Group, Inc. 2008ciSt€ompensation Plan; the Registra
Statement on Form S-8 (No. 332998) pertaining to the 2001 Consultant Stock Pase Plan of SPAR Group, Inc.; the RegistratioteStant ol
Form S-3 (No. 333:62657) pertaining to the registered offering aalé ®f certain shares of common stock of SPAR Gréup; and each relat
Prospectus, Supplemental Prospectus or Summaryiptse.

/s/ Nitin Mittal and Co

New Delhi, India

March 12, 2011



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Gary S. Raymond, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual reporfonm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018 (tteiport”), of SPAR Group, Inc. (t
“registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsdoet contain any untrue statement of a materietl é& omit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements made, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financtatesnents, and other financial information includedhis report, fairly present in .
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrarst’'other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitaleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedur:
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controld procedures, or caused such disclosure contralspamcedures to be desigt
under our supervision, to ensure that materialriédion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated subsidiaries, is made know
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control ovieauficial reporting, or caused such internal contnegr financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandi@porting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgisteants disclosure controls and procedures and presdntdtis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegpeovered by this report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changehie registrans internal control over financial reporting thacooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabre that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisir's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrast’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosé@dsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob ovel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditoredahe audit committee of the registrantoard of directors (or persons performing theiedent
functions):

@) All significant deficiencies and mida weaknesses in the design or operation of iiatecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectragistrant’s ability to record, process, summaard report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidlat involves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 15, 2011 /s/ Gary S. Raymon
Gary S. Raymond, Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANTO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, James R. Segreto, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual reportonm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018 (tteiport”), of SPAR Group, Inc. (t
“registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsdoet contain any untrue statement of a materietl é& omit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements made, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financtatesnents, and other financial information includedhis report, fairly present in .
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrarst’'other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitaleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedur:
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(€)) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure controlspamckedures to be desigr
under our supervision, to ensure that materialriédion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated subsidiaries, is made know
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control ovieauficial reporting, or caused such internal contnegr financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandi@porting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgisteants disclosure controls and procedures and presdntdtis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegpeovered by this report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changehie registrans internal control over financial reporting thacooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabre that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisir's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrast’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosé@dsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob ovel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditoredahe audit committee of the registrantoard of directors (or persons performing theiedent
functions):

@) All significant deficiencies and mida weaknesses in the design or operation of iiatecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectragistrant’s ability to record, process, summaard report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidlat involves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 15, 2011 /s/ James R. Segre
James R. Segreto, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secrete




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10eK the year ended December 31, 2010 (this “repoofSPAR Group, Inc. (the “registrantthe
undersigned hereby certifies that, to his knowledge

1. The report fully complies with the vé@ments of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeasiiExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
2. The information contained in the redairly presents, in all material respects, theaficial condition and results of operations o
registrant.

/s/ Gary S. Raymon
Gary S. Raymon
Chief Executive Office

March 15, 201:

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to SPAR Groumd. and will be retained by SPAR Groug
Inc., and furnished to the Securities and Exchang€ommission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10eK the year ended December 31, 2010 (this “repoof 'SPAR Group, Inc. (the “registrantthe
undersigned hereby certifies that, to his knowledge

1. The report fully complies with the vé@ments of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeasiiExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
2. The information contained in the redairly presents, in all material respects, theaficial condition and results of operations o
registrant.

/sl James R. Segre
James R. Segre
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre:

March 15, 201:

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to SPAR Groumd. and will be retained by SPAR Groug
Inc., and furnished to the Securities and Exchang€ommission or its staff upon request.



